




City of Colfax 1
City Council Minutes February 11, 2015
 

City of Colfax 
City Council Minutes 

Regular Meeting of Wednesday, February 11, 2015 
City Hall Council Chambers 
33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 

 

1 CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER
The Regular Council meeting was called to order at 6:59 PM by Mayor Douglass.  
1A. The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Greg Walsh. 
1B. Roll Call:  

Councilmembers present:  Delfino, Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, and Parnham 
1C. Approval of Agenda: 
  

On a motion by Councilmember Harvey, seconded by Councilmember Delfino, the 
City Council approved the agenda. 
AYES:   Delfino, Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham 
NOES:   None 
 

2 CONSENT CALENDAR 
2A.  Minutes City Council Meeting of January 28, 2015 

Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 28, 
2015. 

2B. Building Department 2014 Year End Report 
Recommendation:  Receive and File 

2C. Sales Tax Revenue Update 
 Recommendation: For information only 
 Recommendation: Approve and File 

 

On a motion by Councilmember Delfino, seconded by Councilmember Hesch, the 
City Council approved the consent agenda. 
AYES:   Delfino, Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, and Parnham 
NOES:   None 
 

3     COUNCIL, STAFF AND OTHER REPORTS
3A. Committee Reports and Informational Items – All Council Members  
Councilmember Delfino 
¶ Attended his first meeting as a Board member on SEDCorp this term.  He took 

offense that a person’s National Heritage would be a reason to add an at-large 
member to the board.  He is resigning from SEDCorp. 

 

Council discussed a replacement member for SEDCorp.  Mayor Douglass will step into 
this position and Councilmember Harvey agreed to become the alternate. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 2A







City of Colfax 4
City Council Minutes February 11, 2015
 

¶ The City’s railcar lease has expired and is at below market rate.  The City will be 
advertising for tenant proposals in the near future at a rate that will cover current 
and anticipated costs. 

¶ Attended the Placer Transportation Planning Agency Technical Advisory 
Committee meeting.  Colfax received the preliminary Local Transportation 
Funding amount which is up slightly at about $116,000.  Most of the funds will be 
used to fill potholes and other minor street repairs. 
 

3C. Additional Reports – Agency Partners 
Frank Klein, Colfax Chamber of Commerce President 
¶ At the February 8 general meeting, new officers were elected and Mr. Klein 

continues as president. 
¶ The next mixer will be hosted by Lighthouse Realty on February 24th at 5:30 PM. 

 

Councilmember Delfino asked if Ms. Brigit Barnes had been contacted to schedule 
the meeting she requested in a letter.  City Manager Miller stated that he will work 
with Council for a date of the meeting.  Councilmember Delfino requested that City 
Manager Miller contact Ms. Barnes out of respect. 
 

Councilmember Delfino inquired about the status of the proposed Dollar General 
project.  City Manager Miller responded that the environmental study is almost 
complete and the City will schedule a public meeting when the study is completed. 

 

4    PUBLIC COMMENT 
Suzanne Roberts – Placer Hills Road: 
¶ Stated that she feels Councilmember Hesch should not have interrupted 

Councilmember Harvey and owes an apology to him and City Council. 
Foxey McCleary 
¶ Announced that the VFW will be raising funds for returning veterans at a dinner 

on February 21st at the VFW Hall.  Tickets are $12 and cocktails will be served at 
5:00 followed by dinner at 6:00 pm. 

¶ Handed out pictures from Winterfest illustrating that the vender booths were 
located in front of businesses, blocking views and discouraging visitors.  The 
generators also were noisy and smelly.  City Manager Miller assured her that 
these issues were discussed at the Winterfest debriefing and her concerns were 
addressed.  Councilmember Hesch suggested that the City also look into 
requirements about air quality control for the generators.   Councilmember 
Delfino suggested that generator requirements be added to the event permit 
process. 

¶ Requested that the City erect directional signs to the Sierra Vista Community 
Center. 

Steve Baird – Live Oak Road: 
¶ Requested that Council place a 15-20 minute presentation regarding the proposed 

State of Jefferson for on a future agenda.  
Greg Walsh: 
¶ Spoke in favor of Council allowing a presentation about the proposed State of 

Jefferson. 

ITEM 2A
4 of 6



City of Colfax 5
City Council Minutes February 11, 2015
 

Christopher Moyer of Grass Valley: 
¶ Just received his business license and will be in Colfax for a few months soliciting 

insurance sales. 
Kristi Parnham 
¶ Spoke in favor of having a workshop regarding the State of Jefferson before a 

Council meeting. 
 

Councilmember Delfino stated that this is his second request for the State of Jefferson 
presentation to be placed on the agenda and could take as little as 10 minutes.  City 
Manager Miller responded with concern that this isn’t within the business purview of the 
City and that it is best to keep business separate from public information and political 
issues.  He suggested a workshop at 6:00 before a Council meeting.  Councilmember 
Delfino stated that this is of interest to the public and politics are the purview of City 
Council.  He would consider a workshop as a first step.  Council discussed the request 
and determined that they would support a workshop to present the State of Jefferson 
proposal.  Mayor Douglass may have a conflict of interest and will have a discussion with 
City Attorney Cabral about this matter.   

 

5 COUNCIL BUSINESS 
5A. Update for 44 Gearhart Lane 

STAFF PRESENTATION: Mick Cabral, City Attorney 
RECOMMENDATION: Information only 

City Attorney Cabral stated that he delivered the abatement order to the Placer County 
Court and the City is now required to demolish the structure at 44 Gearhart.  He is fairly 
confident that the costs will be recovered either by a lien on the property or foreclosure 
and sale of the property.  He also mentioned that as City Attorney he never charges for 
travel time. 
 

5B. Contract for Temporary Administrative Staff Position 
 STAFF PRESENTATION:  Mark Miller, City Manager 

RECOMMENDATION:  Authorize City Manager to Execute Contract with 
Blue Ribbon Personnel Services for temporary office services should they exceed 
$5000. 

City Manager Miller stated that the vacancy in the office staff provides an opportunity to 
evaluate position classifications and job responsibilities.  Several potential contract 
individuals were recommended by Blue Ribbon Personnel Services for consideration to 
temporarily fill the vacancy.  The Finance Director and City Clerk interviewed three 
candidates and selected Amy Ugalde and she has worked out well.  Staff envisions 
recruiting a permanent employee within 3 months and is requesting the flexibility of 
extending the current contract beyond the City Manager’s signature authority if 
necessary. 
 

Suzanne Roberts, Placer Hills Road, spoke against the concept of using an Agency to fill 
the position temporarily as it eliminated the opportunity for locals to fill the vacancy.  
She feels it is Council’s responsibility to be included in the process of hiring all 
personnel.  She reminded Council that they are under the guidelines of the 1985 
Employee Handbook. 
 

ITEM 2A



City of Colfax 6
City Council Minutes February 11, 2015
 

Councilmember Hesch would not want to hire a new permanent employee without 
reviewing the job description.  Councilmember Harvey voiced concern over continuity, 
the need to train 2 people, and the cost difference between hiring a new employee and 
contracting for a temporary person.  City Manager Miller stated that the costs of the 
temporary person and a new employee are essentially the same.  Councilmember Delfino 
asked for clarification of the costs and the buy-out if the current temporary person were 
hired after the recruitment process.  Mayor Pro Tem Parnham stated that it is the City 
Manager’s job to staff City Hall.  
 

On a motion by Councilmember Hesch, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Parnham, 
the City Council approved Resolution 2-2015 Authorizing the City Manager to 
Execute a Contract with Blue Ribbon Personnel Services for Temporary Office 
Services should they exceed $5000. 

 

AYES:   Douglass, Hesch, and Parnham 
NOES:   Delfino, Harvey 
 

Councilmember Delfino asked to have in the record his request that Council look into an 
ad-hoc committee for future personnel decisions. 
 

5C. American Disabilities Act (ADA) Transition Plan Progress Report 
 STAFF PRESENTATION: Mark Miller, City Manager 

RECOMMENDATIONS: Information Only 
 

City Manager Miller stated that even beyond the ADA requirements, it is very important 
that access is universal.  In 2012, the City applied for a CDBG grant but was turned 
down.  A transition plan to comply with ADA requirements was not continued beyond 
that point other than all new public works projects being constructed within ADA 
regulations.  With limited funds, the City must prioritize the projects that are undertaken 
to bring existing structures up to code.  One priority is the entrance to City Hall.  Staff 
has received a few bids which are up to $12,000 to make the front door universally 
accessible.  This may be a good item to put into the budget at the mid-year review.  One 
key to protect from frivolous lawsuits is to have an ADA Transition plan in place.  
Council and the City Attorney discussed the value of an ADA plan and its subsequent 
protection for the City.  City Manager Miller suggested that the City reapply for a grant 
as ADA compliance can be very expensive.  Councilmember Delfino thanked City 
Manager Miller for looking into this issue. 

 

Mayor Douglass adjourned the meeting at 8:23 PM stating, “This concludes the 3rd 
meeting of the 53rd Council of the City of Colfax.” 
 

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 25th day of February, 2015 

ITEM 2A



 
 
 
 
 
 

FOR THE FEBRUARY 25, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director

DATE: February 7, 2014
SUBJECT: City of Colfax Cash Summary Report: January, 2015

 

X N/A FUNDED UN FUNDED AMOUNT: FROM FUND:

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept and File City of Colfax Cash Summary Report: January 2015.

SUMMARY:
Staff recommends that the Council accepts and files the Colfax Cash Summary Report: for January 2015.

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:
These monthly financial reports include General Fund Unassigned Cash Analysis Graphs and the City of Colfax
Cash Summary Report (with supporting documentation). The reports are prepared monthly on a cash basis and
are reconciled to the General Ledger accounting system, previous reports and bank statements. Detailed
budget comparisons are provided as a mid year report and also as part of the proposed budget process each
year.

The purpose of the reports is to provide status of funds and transparency for council and the public of the
financial transactions of the City.

CONCLUSION:
The attached reports reflect an overview of the financial transactions of the City of Colfax in January 2015.

Monthly highlights include:

¶ As anticipated, January receipts included the first bi annual allocation from Placer County for
property taxes, triple flip sales tax, and delinquent sewer charges that were placed on the
County Tax rolls. As part of the Teeter program, we receive 55% of the annual allocation in
January of each year for these revenues. The balance is expected in May (40%) and July (5%). 

¶ General fund disbursements were fairly typical and included the quarterly payments for Sheriff
Services. The quarterly payment for the Winner property purchase is scheduled in February. 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs

a. Cash Analysis – Balance
b. Expenses by Month
c. Revenues by Month

2. Cash Activity Reports – December 2014
a. Cash Summary
b. Cash Transaction Report – by individual fund
c. Check Register Report
d. Daily Cash Summary Report





3 of 12



4 of 12



5 of 12











10 of 12







Whereas, David A. Breninger has served nearly fortyȤeight years in public administration; and 

Whereas, twentyȤthree of those years of service have been leading the Placer County Water 
Authority as General Manager; and 

Whereas, under his leadership the Placer County Water Authority has achieved significant 
advances in the management of water resources and hydroelectric production, as well as water 
utility service to wide areas of Placer County ; and 

Whereas, Mr. Breninger’s leadership abilities have brought people and organizations together 
to solve past challenges, admirably steering the  Agency through Placer County droughts, floods, 
wildland fires, canal breaks and water shortage emergencies; and 

Whereas, Mr. Breninger has always had a great affection for the natural resources, small 
communities, and history of Sierra Foothill communities; and, 

Whereas, Mr. Breninger’s accomplishments go beyond agency management, extending from 
contributions in local community radio station programming to protecting local resources from 
statewide challenges;  

Now, Therefore, I, Kim Douglass, Mayor of the City of Colfax on the behalf of the Council 
and its citizens, hereby recognize and congratulate, with great gratitude, David Breninger for his 
dedication of 23 years of service with Placer County Water Agency. 

 
Signed this 25th day of February 2015 

 
 
 

Kim Douglass, Mayor 

ITEM 2C



 
 
 
 
 
 

FOR THE FEBRUARY 25, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager
PREPARED BY: Staff 

DATE: February 18, 2015 
SUBJECT: Abatement Update 

 

X N/A FUNDED UN FUNDED AMOUNT: FROM FUND

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Information Only 

 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:   
 

Several properties within the City limits stand vacant and/or are in need of major repair.  As they stand in 

violation of Colfax Municipal Code, staff has drafted  letters to property owners giving 15 days to contact 

Staff regarding a plan for abatement.  If a second letter is necessary after 15 days, the City will escalate the 

process.  If no reasonable action is taken at that point, the City will begin further legal proceedings to abate 

the nuisance. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:
 
For information only
 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
  Letter to Property Owner – 10 E Grass Valley Street 
  Letter to Property Owner – 2121 S Auburn Road 





February 19, 2015

William Jay Park

1510 Buttercup Ln

Kingwood, TX 77339

RE: Abatement Request 2121 S. Auburn Street, Colfax, CA 95713

The City of Colfax has received a number of complaints regarding the state of your building and its overall

impact on public health and welfare. Property owners are required to abate the public nuisance created by

structures that violate the Colfax Municipal Code.

The old restaurant building located at 2121 S Auburn Street is not in compliance with the Colfax Municipal Code

in the following respects:

1. It is a building which is abandoned, boarded up, partially destroyed or left in a state of partial

construction in violation of Colfax Municipal Code §8.16.030M.

2. The paint on the building exterior, which is visible from a public street, is mostly worn off or not in

compliance with the general plan design element or established design guidelines. This is a violation of

Colfax Municipal Code §8.16.030J.

3. It constitutes an attractive nuisance dangerous to children and visible from a public street. It is also

attractive to transients that have frequently utilized the premises as temporary living quarters. This is a

violation of Colfax Municipal Code §8.16.030E.

4. It constitutes a structure or condition which is a hazard to public health, safety or welfare. This is a

violation of Colfax Municipal Code §8.16.020.

5. It constitutes a Dangerous Building as defined by Section 302 of the Uniform Code for the Abatement of

Dangerous Buildings which is incorporated into Colfax Municipal Code §15.04.080.

6. It is an attractive nuisance with extensive graffiti on the building.

These nuisance conditions need to be remedied so the structure can be brought into compliance and become an

asset to the community instead of a detriment. The City would like to work with you to develop a plan and

schedule for abating these nuisance conditions. Please contact the City Code Enforcement Officer Gabe

Armstrong, or City Manager Mark Miller, within 15 days of the date of this letter so that process can begin.

Thank you in advance for your cooperation.

Gabe Armstrong

Community Services Director�

3 of 3











ITEM 5B



GENERAL ENGINEERING CONTRACTOR
CSL# 207705 
Residential & Commercial Site Development
Quality Aggregates & Ready Mixed Concrete

Landscape & Masonry Products
U-Cart Concrete 

 

PROPOSAL AND CONTRACT FOR:                         City of Colfax  Attn: Gabe Armstrong LOCATION:

P.O. Box 702 PROJECT:

Colfax, CA  95713

DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL 

1 Demo and Offhaul Burned House & Foundation 1,000.00 SF 11.30 11,300.00
Total: $11,300.00

Note: Carpenter to be onsite if any part is to be saved.

Projects are placed on the schedule in the order signed contracts are received.  Therefore, timely return of the executed contract is of the 

essence. Weather and ground conditions must be suitable for this work to be started and/or completed.  This quote is good for 10 days.

page 1

A California Corporation
Grass Valley: ( 530) 273-3381 – All Services

(530) 273-3100 - Rental Yard
(530) 272-5401 - Main Office Fax

ESCALATION CLAUSE: Due to unstable cement, petroleum and steel prices, items requiring fuel, asphalt oil, plastic, concrete or steel may be

increased or decreased by the difference between suppliers quoted price as of the date of this proposal and the invoice price at the time of delivery,

plus 10%.  (Items may include but not be limited to fuel, asphalt oil, PVC, HDPE and CMP pipe and culvert, rebar, catch basins, etc.) 

Colfax: (530) 346-2432 – Ready Mix Concrete

Hansen Bros. Enterprises proposes to furnish all materials and perform all labor necessary to complete the following per conversation with Gabe

Armstrong on February 9, 2015. Requested or required modifications or changes in the scope of work, including increases/decreases in contract

quantities, will be handled by field order or change order and must be approved by owner. These changes/modifications may affect the total price of

this project. If required, a copy of the job permit must be on file with Hansen Bros. prior to start of work. Hansen Bros. is an open shop firm.  Private 

wages have been figured for this project.

Demo Burned House and Foundation,

44 Gearheart, Colfax

4. Grading Permit/Tree Removal Permit: Counties and cities require a grading permit under several circumstances related to disturbance of, placing or moving dirt on a parcel,

and constructing or altering a drainage course. In some cases, a permit may be required for moving or placing less than 50 cubic yards of dirt. A tree removal permit may be

required if your project includes removing trees of a certain diameter. 

EXCLUSIONS: Engineering, surveying, staking, fees, permits, bonds, licenses, compaction testing; damage to property corners and or

underground utilities other than as located by owner or U.S.A.; relocating of utility poles or underground utilities; drilling, blasting, rock splitting or

breaking, underslab, structural backfill, structural excavation, footings, concrete curbs, slabs, sidewalks, ADA upgrades, walls; removal and/ or

replacement of fencing, landscaping, topsoil, irrigation systems, tree protection fencing, temporary or permanent erosion control, winter erosion

control maintenance, import, primecoat, fog seal, slurry seal, striping, signs, paving, removal and cleanup of hazardous or toxic waste. Unhooking 

any utlities, gas, water, electric or sewer.

Locations: 11727 La Barr Meadows Road, Grass Valley, CA  95949    44 Central Street, Colfax, CA  95713
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 1599, Grass Valley, CA  95945

Offhaul

February 11, 2015

3. Encroachment Permit: An encroachment permit is required from the controlling government agency for all work done within the city, county, state or federal (road) right-of-

way, which generally includes the driveway approach and pipeline installations within the right-of-way.  

  (530) 346-8174  - Landscape/Masonry Yard

www.gohbe.com
(530) 346-8798 - Main Office Fax

Established in 1953

Permit Requirements: Various governmental agencies require permits if work is being performed on land. With some exceptions, these permits must be obtained by the owner.

Some of the more commonly required permits are listed below. This list is provided for your information and is not meant to be all-inclusive; neither is Hansen Bros. responsible if

the permit your particular job requires is not among those listed.  

2. Air Quality Permit: If a job disturbs 1 or more acres, an AQ Permit may be required.  Call the Northern Sierra Air Quality Management District at 530/274-9360 for information.

1. Construction Storm Water Control Permit: If a job disturbs 1 or more acres, the owner must obtain a CSWC permit from the California Regional Water Quality Control Board.

Call 916/657-0520 for information.

ITEM 5B
4 of 5



mailto:gabe.armstrong@colfax-ca.gov


Page 1

 
 
 
 
 
 

FOR THE FEBRUARY 25, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager

PREPARED By: Jim Fletter, Assistant City Engineer

SUBJECT: Construction Authorization
UPRR Pedestrian Crossing and Bike Path Improvement Project

 

N/A X FUNDED UN FUNDED AMOUNT: $536,668
FROM FUND: RSTP Fed,
RSTP Exch., PTMISEA, and
Local TDA

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 1) Approve construction plans and specifications for the UPRR Pedestrian and
Bike Improvements Project No. 12 01.02 and authorize the City Engineer to solicit construction bids; and,
2) Approve the revised Project Budget Sheets for the Grass Valley Street Road Rehabilitation Project No.
12 01.01 and the UPRR Pedestrian Crossing and Bike Path Improvement Project.

ISSUE STATEMENT AND DISCUSSION:

On March 12, 2014, Staff updated Council on the status of the Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR) Pedestrian and
Bike Improvements Project No. 12 01.02, and the Grass Valley Street Road Rehabilitation Project No. 12
01.01.

Grass Valley Street Road Rehabilitation Project No. 12 .1.01
The project was partially completed in August 2014 with the chip sealing of Grass Valley Street from Main
Street to Rising Sun Road. The remainder of the project will resurface the roadway between Main Street
and S. Auburn Street with asphalt concrete (ac), and has been combined with the UPRR Pedestrian and Bike
Improvements. The attached Project Budget Sheet reflects the final costs associated with the completed
first phase of the project.

UPRR Ped and Bike Improvements Project No. 12 01.02 (CML 5187(007)
The project includes the grind and placement of ac pavement on Grass Valley Street from the Main Street
Intersection to S. Auburn Street, construction of pedestrian and bike improvements across the railroad
tracks, accessibility improvements, and relocation of UPRR Signals. The project will result in a safer
roadway for pedestrians, bicyclists and vehicles.

The design is complete and Caltrans has approved the Right of Way Certification, which allows the City to
submit the Construction Request for Authorization. Once Caltrans authorizes construction to proceed, then
the City can proceed with bid call.





C

E

N

T

R

A

L

 
 
 
S

T

.

A

U

B

U

R

N

 
 
 
 
 
A

V

E

H

I

L

L

 

D

R

.

O
A

K

V
E

D

A
 
L
A

N

E

W

A
Y

E

A

S

Y

H

U

N

T

E

R

 
L

N

.

S

C

H

O

O

L

 
S

T

.

S

C

H

A

L

T

Z

 
L

N

.

N

E

W

M

A

N

 
S

T

.

C

O

L

F

A

X

 
S

T

.

P

L
E

A

S

A

N

T
 
S

T
.

P

I
N

E

Q

U

I
N

N

'
S

 
L

N

RD.

S

U

N

R

I

S

I

N

G

S
U

N
S

E
T

 
 
A

V
E

.

H

I

L

L

P

A

R

K

D

E

P

O

T

 
S

T

.

G

R

A

S

S

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V

A

L

L

E

Y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

T

.

W

E

S

T

 
 
 
 
C

H

U

R

C

H

 
 
 
S

T

.

S

T

.

A
V

E

P

I
N

E

 
S

T

S

.
 
M

A

I
N

 
S

T

.

N

.
 
M

A

I
N

 
S

T

.

S
U

N
R

I
S

E
 
A

V
E

N

O

R

T

H

 
S

T

A

R

 
A

V

E

.

SMITH LN.

VISTA AVE.

R

O

S

E

 
A

V

E

.

W

A

L

N

U

T

 
S

T

.

C

U

L

V

E

R

W

E

S

T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O

A

K

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

T

.

L

I
N

C

O

L

N

 
S

T

.

W

A

S

H

I
N

G

T

O

N

 
S

T

.

C

H

U

R

C

H

 
 
 
S

T

.

E

A

S

T

N

.
 
F

O

R

E

S

T

.

S

.
 
F

O

R

E

S

T

 
 
 
 
H

I
L

L

 
S

T

.

CAPE.

S
I
E

R
R

A
C

A
N

Y
O

N

C
O

L
F

A
X

 C
E

M
E

T
E

R
Y

 R
D

.

V

I

E

W

 

R

D

.

C

A

N

N
O

R
T

H

C
A

N
Y

O
N

W
A

Y

T

A

Y

L

O

R

B

E

N

R

D

.

W

A

Y

A
L
P

IN
E

R

D

.

P

I

N

E

L

N

.

G

E

N

T

R

Y

T

O

K

A

Y

A

N

A

 

W

A

Y

P

O

U

N

D

S

 
C

T

.

G

E

A

R

H

A

R

T

P

I

N

E

O

A

K

 
S

T

R

A

I

L

 

R

D

 

A

V

E

D
IN

K
Y

M

A

R

V

I
N

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S

T

K

N

E

E

L

A

N

D

 
S

T

.

JAY ST.

M

I
L

L

E

R

I
-
8
0

S

C

H

A

L

T

Z

B
R

O
W

N
S

 
L
N

.

S

.

 

M

A

I

N

 

 

 

 

 

 

S

T

.

N

.

 

M

A

I

N

 

S

T

.

A

V

E

.

R

D

.

C

R

O

F

T

L

N

.

C

T

.

P

R

I
V

A

T
E

R

A

I

L

R

O

A

D

L
N

.

Y

O

N

H
I
L
L
 
S

T
.

BARN

1216 Fortna Avenue
Woodland,  CA  95776
Phone: (530) 668-5883
Fax  : (530) 668-5893

PONTICELLO ENTERPRISES

FINAL DESIGN FOR AGENCY APPROVAL

DATE:    

CITY OF COLFAX
COLFAX, CALIFORNIA

GRASS VALLEY ST. ROAD AND PEDESTRIAN
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

PROJECT NO. 12-01.02

ABBREVIATIONS

LEGEND

SHEET INDEX

1 TITLE SHEET

2 CONSTRUCTION NOTES

3 CONSTRUCTION PLAN AT RAILROAD XING

4 UPRR AT GRADE RAILROAD XING PROFILE VIEW

5 ROAD REHAB / MAIN ST. TO RR XING

6 ROAD REHAB / RR XING TO S. AUBURN ST.

7 SIGNING & STRIPING PLAN & DETAILS

PROJECT SITE

UPRR MILE POST 141.91

ROSEVILLE SUBDIVISION



1216 Fortna Avenue
Woodland,  CA  95776
Phone: (530) 668-5883
Fax  : (530) 668-5893

PONTICELLO ENTERPRISES

FINAL DESIGN FOR AGENCY APPROVAL

DATE:    







1216 Fortna Avenue
Woodland,  CA  95776
Phone: (530) 668-5883
Fax  : (530) 668-5893

PONTICELLO ENTERPRISES

FINAL DESIGN FOR AGENCY APPROVAL

DATE:    

        CONSTRUCTION NOTES:

S
. M

A
IN

 S
T

R
E

E
T

        CONSTRUCTION NOTES (ADD ALT):

1. STAMPED COLORED ASPHALT.  "OFFSET BRICK"

PATTERN COLORED "BRICK RED".

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

1"   =        '10

2010510

SSMH



1216 Fortna Avenue
Woodland,  CA  95776
Phone: (530) 668-5883
Fax  : (530) 668-5893

PONTICELLO ENTERPRISES

FINAL DESIGN FOR AGENCY APPROVAL

DATE:    

       CONSTRUCTION NOTES:

1. GRIND EXISTING PAVEMENT AND PAVE 1/2" TYPE A

PG 64-16 HMAC (0.25' DEPTH)

2.  PAVE 

1

4

" ABOVE EXISTING MANHOLE COVER,

ADJUST AS NECESSARY.

3. PAVE 

1

2

" ABOVE EXISTING WATER VALVE, ADJUST

AS NECESSARY..

N
. A

U
B

U
R

N
 S

TR
E

E
T

R
A

IL
R

O
A

D
S

T
R

E
E

T

N

GENERAL NOTES:

1. PROOF ROLL PRIOR TO PAVING.  ALLOW

TIME FOR POTENTIAL  BASE REPAIR

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

1"   =        '10

2010510

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH



1216 Fortna Avenue
Woodland,  CA  95776
Phone: (530) 668-5883
Fax  : (530) 668-5893

PONTICELLO ENTERPRISES

FINAL DESIGN FOR AGENCY APPROVAL

DATE:    

    CONSTRUCTION NOTES:

1. PLACE STOP LEGEND (T)

2. PLACE TYPE IV (R) ARROW  (T)

3. PLACE ONLY LEGEND (T)

4. PLACE BIKE LANE LEGEND (T)

5. PLACE RAILROAD CROSSING LEGEND (T)

6. PLACE STOP BAR 2' X WIDTH OF LANE, 8' FROM

GUARD ARM (T)

7. INSTALL SIGN (MUTCD SIGN TYPE BELOW REF.)

8. PLACE 12" CROSS WALK LINES (T)

9. STENCIL "LOOK FOR TRAINS" IN BLACK LETTERING

AND YELLOW BACKGROUND

10. PAINT 4" WHITE PARKING STALLS

11. INSTALL SIGN AND PAINT END OF MEDIAN YELLOW.

SIGN SHALL BE BREAKAWAY TYPE

12. PLACE FIRE HYDRANT REFLECTIVE MARKER

# CALTRANS STANDARD STRIPING DETAIL

XX

' NUMBER AND LENGTH OF STRIPE

S
. M

A
IN

 S
T

.

W10-1

W10-9

D11-1

W10-1

W10-9

D11-1

M4-6

D11-1

M4-6

D11-1

21

125'
21

78''

    GENERAL NOTES:

1. CONCRETE RAILROAD CROSSING PADS

NOT TO BE STRIPED.

2. T=THERMOSTRIP

27B

144'

27B

130'

27B

478'

27B

269'

27C

71'

27B

85'

38A

85'

R15-8

R15-8

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

1"   =        '20

40201020

¼

¼

½

MONOLITHIC CURB, GUTTER & SIDEWALK

NTS

A

VAR

MEDIAN CURB

NTS

B

VAR

COMMERCIAL DRIVEWAY

NTS

C

VAR

NOTE:

1. IF DIG-OUT IS ADJACENT TO THE LIP OF GUTTER, INSTALL 2" TYPE A AC,0.25' BELOW THE

LIP OF GUTTER TO ACCOMMODATE FINAL 0.25' AC OVERLAY.

2. EXISTING AC SHALL BE SAW CUT AS SHOWN ON PLANS TO A NEAT, STRAIGHT LINE AND

REMOVED. THE EXPOSED EDGE SHALL BE SEALED WITH EMULSION PRIOR TO PAVING.

THE EXPOSED BASE MATERIAL SHALL BE GRADED, RE-COMPUTED, AND RESEALED PRIOR

TO PAVING.

2" AC TYPE A, OVER 8" AB

CLASS 2 (3/4" MAX.)

95% RELATIVE COMPACTION

EX. PAVEMENT

SURFACE

FINISH GRADE

AC OVERLAY

SAW CUT EX PVMT TO A

NEAT STRAIGHT LINE,

PERPENDICULAR OR

PARALLEL TO THE STREET

CENTERLINE, AS MARKED

BY THE ENGINEER.

ADDITIONAL DIG-OUT AS

REQUIRED PER ENGINEER

TO REMOVE UNSUITABLE

MATERIAL & REPLACE

MATERIAL WITH CLASS 2

AGGREGATE BASE, SEE

NOTE 2.

STREET DIG-OUT CROSS SECTION

NTS

D

VAR

OM2-1V

    x2

OM2-1V

SSMH

SSMH

SSMH



 

 

CITY OF COLFAX 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

FOR 

UPRR PED XING AND BIKE PATH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

  

CONTRACT NO. 12-01.02 
FEDERAL AID PROJECT No.  CML-5187(007) 

BID OPENING – APRIL 16, 2015 IMMEDIATELY AFTER 2:00:00 P.M. 

 

CITY MANAGER   MAYOR MAYOR PRO-

TEMPORE 

Mark Miller. Kim Douglas Tom Parnham  

COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Ken Delfino Steve Harvey Tony Hesch 

 

Prepared By: Approved for 

Construction By: 

PONTICELLO ENTERPRISES 

    

JAMES E. FLETTER, P.E.  ALAN M. MITCHELL, 

P. E. 

PROJECT ENGINEER/MANAGER  CITY ENGINEER 

  













UPRR PED XING AND BIKE PATH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

PART I – BID BOOK 

Page | 7 

Bids are to be submitted for the entire work.  A contract will be awarded to the lowest, responsible and 

responsive bid that does not exceed the available construction funds or the base bid plus each additive 

alternative in the following order.  The basis for award shall be on base bid items alone, or base bid plus 

any or all additive bid items 1A, 2A, 3A and 4A in that order, up to and not exceeding the City’s 

budget for construction of $198,145 and whose bid complies with the specified requirements. 

Base Bid Item #1, Mobilization, shall be no more than 5% of the total of all bid items excepting bid 

Item #1. 

The bidder shall set forth for each unit basis item of work a unit price and a total for the item, and for each 

lump sum item a total for the item, all in clearly legible figures in the respective spaces provided for that 

purpose.  In the case of unit basis items, the amount set forth under the "Item Total" column shall be the 

product of the unit price bid and the estimated quantity for the item. 

In case of discrepancy between the unit price and the total set forth for a unit basis item, the unit price shall 

prevail, except as provided in (a) or (b), as follows: 

 (a) If the amount set forth as a unit price is unreadable or otherwise unclear, or is omitted, or is the 

same as the amount as the entry in the item total column, then the amount set forth in the item 

total column for the item shall prevail and shall be divided by the estimated quantity for the item 

and the price thus obtained shall be the unit price; 

 (b) (Decimal Errors) If the product of the entered unit price and the estimated quantity is exactly off 

by a factor of ten, one hundred, etc., or one-tenth, or one-hundredth, etc. from the entered total, 

the discrepancy will be resolved by using the entered unit price or item total, whichever most 

closely approximates percentage-wise the unit price or item total in the CITY OF COLFAX Final 

Estimate of cost. 

If both the unit price and the item total are unreadable or otherwise unclear, or are omitted, the bid may be 

deemed irregular.  Likewise if the item total for a lump sum item is unreadable or otherwise unclear, or is 

omitted, the bid may be deemed irregular unless the project being bid has only a single item and a clear, 

readable total bid is provided. 

Symbols such as commas and dollar signs will be ignored and have no mathematical significance in 

establishing any unit price or item total or lump sums.  Written unit prices, item totals and lump sums will 

be interpreted according to the number of digits and, if applicable, decimal placement.  Cents symbols also 

have no significance in establishing any unit price or item total since all figures are assumed to be expressed 

in dollars and/or decimal fractions of a dollar.  Bids on lump sum items shall be item totals only; if any unit 

price for a lump sum item is included in a bid and it differs from the item total, the items total shall prevail. 

The foregoing provisions for the resolution of specific irregularities cannot be so comprehensive as to cover 

every omission, inconsistency, error or other irregularity which may occur in a bid.  Any situation not 

specifically provided for will be determined in the discretion of the CITY OF COLFAX, and that discretion 

will be exercised in the manner deemed by the CITY OF COLFAX to best protect the public interest in the 

prompt and economical completion of the work.  The decision of the CITY OF COLFAX respecting the 

amount of a bid, or the existence or treatment of an irregularity in a bid, shall be final. 

If this bid shall be accepted and the undersigned shall fail to enter into the contract and furnish the 2 bonds 

in the sums required by the State Contract Act, with surety satisfactory to the CITY OF COLFAX, within 

8 days, not including Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays, after the bidder has received notice from the 

CITY OF COLFAX that the contract has been awarded, the CITY OF COLFAX may, at its option, determine 

that the bidder has abandoned the contract, and thereupon this bid and the acceptance thereof shall be null 

and void and the forfeiture of the security accompanying this bid shall operate and the same shall be the 

property of the CITY OF COLFAX. 

The undersigned, as bidder, declares that the only persons or parties interested in this bid as principals are 

those named herein; that this bid is made without collusion with any other person, firm, or corporation; that 

he has carefully examined the location of the proposed work, the annexed proposed form of contract, and 

the plans therein referred to; and he proposes, and agrees if this bid is accepted, that he will contract with 

the CITY OF COLFAX, in the form of the copy of the contract annexed hereto, to provide all necessary 

machinery, tools, apparatus and other means of construction, and to do all the work and furnish all the 



UPRR PED XING AND BIKE PATH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

PART I – BID BOOK 

Page | 8 

materials specified in the contract, in the manner and time therein prescribed, and according to the 

requirements of the Engineer as therein set forth, and that he will take in full payment therefor the following 

prices, to wit: 



UPRR PED XING AND BIKE PATH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

PART I – BID BOOK 

Page | 9 

BID ITEM LIST 

UPRR PED XING AND BIKE PATH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

 

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNITS QTY 

UNIT 

PRICE 

ITEM 

TOTAL 

Base Bid 

1.* Mobilization and Demobilization LS 1   

2. 
Railroad Right-of-Entry Permit, Insurance & 

Flagging 
LS 1   

3. Traffic Control LS 1   

4. 
Water Pollution Control Plan & 

Implementation 
LS 1   

5. Construct Concrete Curb & Gutter LF 280   

6. Construct Concrete Sidewalk SF 1,300   

7. 
Construct Commercial Driveway (including 

Sidewalk) 
SF 800   

8. Construct Type C Corner Ramp EA 1   

9. Install ADA Detectable Warning Surface EA 15   

10. 
Place and Compact Soil between Curb & 

Sidewalk 
LS 1   

11. Construct Storm Drainage Facilities LS 1   

12. Road Dig-out SF 720   

13. Asphalt Grinding SF 15,000   

14. 
½” Type A PG 64-16 HMAC Leveling 

Course 
TON 228   

15. ½” PG 64-16 RHMA Final Course TON 341   

16. Install Pedestrian Barrier LS 1   

17. Install Signs, Posts and Markers LS 1   

18. Lane and Legend Thermostriping LS 1   

19. 4” Parking Stripes LF 300   

20. Curb Painting LF 300   

TOTAL OF BASE BID ITEMS*  

Additive Alternatives 

1A 
Excavation and Disposal of Tracks (Sheet 3, 

Add Alt. 2) 
LS 1   

2A 
Install Stamped Colored Asphalt Crosswalk 

(Sheet 5, Add Alt. 1) 
SF 1,783   

3A Place Stamped Colored Concrete (Sheet 3, 

Add Alt. 1) 

SF 1,090   

4A Replace HMAC Final Course with RHMA TON 341   

TOTAL OF BASE BID ITEMS AND ADDITIVE ALT. ITEMS 1A, 2A, 3A & 4A*  

* NOTE: Total Bid lines are provided for convenience purposes only. The actual bid shall be computed as described 

above.  See price limit for mobilization as described above. 







UPRR PED XING AND BIKE PATH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

PART I – BID BOOK 

Page | 12 

The Bidder shall list the name and address of each subcontractor to whom the Bidder proposes to subcontract 

portions of the work, as required by the provisions in Section 2-1.33C, Subcontractor List" of the Standard 

Specifications. Attention is also directed to Section 5-1.13A, “Subcontracting”, of the special provisions. 

 

 

LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS 
 

Subcontractor’s  

Name, Address,  

And License Number  

Bid Item 

Number  

Subcontracted  

Bid Item Description  Percentage of 

Item Cost 

Subcontracted  
    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

 



UPRR PED XING AND BIKE PATH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

PART I – BID BOOK 

Page | 13 

Exhibit 12-B  Bidder’s List of Subcontractors (DBE and Non-DBE) – Part I 
 

The bidder shall list all subcontractors (both DBE and non-DBE) in accordance with Section 2-1.054 of the Standard Specifications and per Title 49, Section 26.11 of the Code of 

Federal Regulations.  This listing is required in addition to listing DBE Subcontractors elsewhere in the proposal.  Photocopy this form for additional firms. 

 

Firm Name/ 

Address/ 

City, State, ZIP 

Phone/ 

Fax 

 

Annual Gross 

Receipts 
Description of Portion of Work to be Performed 

Local Agency Use 

Only 

(Certified DBE?) 

Name Phone 

 

 < $1 million  YES 

 < $5 million  NO 

Address  < $10 million  If YES list DBE #: 

Fax  < $15 million   

City State ZIP  > $15 million  Age of Firm (Yrs.) 

   
Name Phone 

 

 < $1 million  YES 

 < $5 million  NO 

Address  < $10 million  If YES list DBE #: 

Fax  < $15 million   

City State ZIP  > $15 million  Age of Firm (Yrs.) 

   
Name Phone 

 

 < $1 million  YES 

 < $5 million  NO 

Address  < $10 million  If YES list DBE #: 

Fax  < $15 million   

City State ZIP  > $15 million  Age of Firm (Yrs.) 

   
Name Phone 

 

 < $1 million  YES 

 < $5 million  NO 

Address  < $10 million  If YES list DBE #: 

Fax  < $15 million   

City State ZIP  > $15 million  Age of Firm (Yrs.) 

   

 

  



UPRR PED XING AND BIKE PATH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

PART I – BID BOOK 

Page | 14 

Exhibit 12-B  Bidder’s List of Subcontractors (DBE and Non-DBE) Part II 
 

The bidder shall list all subcontractors who provided a quote or bid but were not selected to participate as a subcontractor on this project.  This is required for compliance with Title 

49, Section 26 of the Code of Federal Regulations. Photocopy this form for additional firms. 

 

Firm Name/ 

Address/ 

City, State, ZIP 

Phone/ 

Fax 

 

Annual Gross Receipts Description of Portion of Work to be Performed 
Local Agency Use Only 

(Certified DBE?) 

Name Phone 

 

 < $1 million  YES 

 < $5 million  NO 

Address  < $10 million  If YES list DBE #: 

Fax  < $15 million   

City State ZIP  > $15 million  Age of Firm (Yrs.) 

   

Name Phone 

 

 < $1 million  YES 

 < $5 million  NO 

Address  < $10 million  If YES list DBE #: 

Fax  < $15 million   

City State ZIP  > $15 million  Age of Firm (Yrs.) 

   

Name Phone 

 

 < $1 million  YES 

 < $5 million  NO 

Address  < $10 million  If YES list DBE #: 

Fax  < $15 million   

City State ZIP  > $15 million  Age of Firm (Yrs.) 

   

Name Phone 

 

 < $1 million  YES 

 < $5 million  NO 

Address  < $10 million  If YES list DBE #: 

Fax  < $15 million   

City State ZIP  > $15 million  Age of Firm (Yrs.) 

   

 

 

 

 

 



UPRR PED XING AND BIKE PATH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

PART I – BID BOOK 

Page | 15 

Pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 3400, the following substitutions are proposed as “Equals” for those set 

forth in the Contract. All data substantiating the proposed substitutions shall be submitted to the City upon request. 

 

 

LIST OF PROPOSED SUBSTITUTIONS 
 

Contract Section  Name of Product to 

be Substituted Out  

Name and Manufacturer of 

Proposed Product To Be 

Substituted  
 

Model/Quantity of Proposed 

Product  
 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

 



UPRR PED XING AND BIKE PATH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

PART I – BID BOOK 

Page | 16 

(THE BIDDER'S EXECUTION ON THE SIGNATURE PORTION OF THIS PROPOSAL SHALL ALSO CONSTITUTE 

AN ENDORSEMENT AND EXECUTION OF THOSE CERTIFICATIONS WHICH ARE A PART OF THIS PROPOSAL) 

 

 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CERTIFICATION 
 

 

The bidder_________________________________________________________________, proposed 

subcontractor_______________________________________________, hereby certifies that he has ___ ,       has not        , 

participated in a previous contract or subcontract subject to the equal opportunity clauses, as required by Executive Orders 

10925, 11114, or 11246, and that, where required, he has filed with the Joint Reporting Committee, the Director of the Office 

of Federal Contract Compliance, a Federal Government contracting or administering agency, or the former President's 

Committee on Equal Employment Opportunity, all reports due under the applicable filling requirements. 

 

 

 

Note: The above certification is required by the Equal Employment Opportunity Regulations of the Secretary of Labor (41 

CFR 60-1.7(b) (1)), and must be submitted by bidders and proposed subcontractors only in connection with contracts 

and subcontracts which are subject to the equal opportunity clause.  Contracts and subcontracts which are exempt 

from the equal opportunity clause are set forth in 41 CFR 60-1.5.  (Generally only contracts or subcontracts of $10,000 

or under are exempt.) 

 

Currently, Standard Form 100 (EEO-1) is the only report required by the Executive Orders or their implementing 

regulations.  

 

Proposed prime contractors and subcontractors who have participated in a previous contract or subcontract subject to 

the Executive Orders and have not filed the required reports should note that 41 CFR 60-1.7(b) (1) prevents the award 

of contracts and subcontracts unless such contractor submits a report covering the delinquent period or such other 

period specified by the Federal Highway Administration or by the Director, Office of Federal Contract Compliance, 

U.S. Department of Labor. 

 

 



UPRR PED XING AND BIKE PATH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

PART I – BID BOOK 

Page | 17 

PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE 
 

 

Public Contract Code Section 10285.1 Statement 
 

In conformance with Public Contract Code Section 10285.1 (Chapter 376, Stats. 1985), the bidder hereby declares under penalty 

of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the bidder has _____ , has not ____been convicted within the preceding 

three years of any offenses referred to in that section, including any charge of fraud, bribery, collusion, conspiracy, or any other 

act in violation of any state or Federal antitrust law in connection with the bidding upon, award of, or performance of, any 

public works contract, as defined in Public Contract Code Section 1101, with any public entity, as defined in Public Contract 

Code Section 1100, including the Regents of the University of California or the Trustees of the California State University.  

The term "bidder" is understood to include any partner, member, officer, director, responsible managing officer, or responsible 

managing employee thereof, as referred to in Section 10285.1. 

 

Note:  The bidder must place a check mark after "has" or "has not" in one of the blank spaces provided. The 

above Statement is part of the Bid.  Signing this Bid on the signature portion thereof shall also constitute 

signature of this Statement. Bidders are cautioned that making a false certification may subject the 

certifier to criminal prosecution. 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Contract Code Section 10162 Questionnaire 
 

 

In conformance with Public Contract Code Section 10162, the Bidder shall complete, under penalty of perjury, the following 

questionnaire: 

Has the bidder, any officer of the bidder, or any employee of the bidder who has a proprietary interest in the bidder, ever been 

disqualified, removed, or otherwise prevented from bidding on, or completing a federal, state, or local government project 

because of a violation of law or a safety regulation? 

 

 Yes _____    No _____ 

 

 

If the answer is yes, explain the circumstances in the following space. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





UPRR PED XING AND BIKE PATH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

PART I – BID BOOK 

Page | 19 

DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION 
 

TITLE 49, CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, PART 29 

 

 

The bidder, under penalty of perjury, certifies that, except as noted below, he/she or any other person associated 

therewith in the capacity of owner, partner, director, officer, manager: 

• is not currently under suspension, debarment, voluntary exclusion, or determination of ineligibility by 

any Federal agency; 

• has not been suspended, debarred, voluntarily excluded or determined ineligible by any Federal agency 

within the past 3 years; 

• does not have a proposed debarment pending; and 

• has not been indicted, convicted, or had a civil judgement rendered against it by a court of competent 

jurisdiction in any matter involving fraud or official misconduct within the past 3 years. 

 

If there are any exceptions to this certification, insert the exceptions in the following space. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exceptions will not necessarily result in denial of award, but will be considered in determining bidder 

responsibility.  For any exception noted above, indicate below to whom it applies, initiating agency, and dates of 

action. 

 

 

 

 

Notes: Providing false information may result in criminal prosecution or administrative sanctions.  The above 

certification is part of the Bid.  Signing this Bid on the signature portion thereof shall also constitute 

signature of this Certification. 

 

 

 

 













UPRR PED XING AND BIKE PATH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

PART I – BID BOOK 

Page | 25 

 

EXHIBIT 15-G  LOCAL AGENCY BIDDER DBE COMMITMENT 

(CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS) 

NOTE:  PLEASE REFER TO  INSTRUCTIONS ON THE REVERSE SIDE OF THIS FORM 
  
  LOCAL AGENCY: ____________________________________               LOCATION: ___________________________________________ 

 
  PROJECT DESCRIPTION: ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

  TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT: $ _____________________________________________________________________________________ 
  

  BID DATE: ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
  BIDDER'S NAME: __________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

  CONTRACT DBE GOAL:  __________________________________________________________________________________________ 

CONTRACT 
ITEM NO. 

ITEM OF WORK AND DESCRIPTION 
OR SERVICES TO BE 

SUBCONTRACTED OR MATERIALS 
TO BE PROVIDED (or contracted if the 

bidder is a DBE) 

DBE CERT NO. 
AND EXPIRATION 

 DATE 

NAME OF EACH  DBE 
 (Must be certified on the date bids  

are opened - include DBE address 
and phone number) 

DOLLAR AMOUNT     
DBE 

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

 For Local Agency to Complete: 
 

  Local Agency Contract Number:  _________________________________________ 

 

  Federal-aid  Project Number:  ____________________________________________ 

 

  Federal Share:  _______________________________________________________ 

 
  Contract Award Date:  _________________________________________________ 

 
Total Claimed DBE 

Participation 

 

 

 $__________ 

 

__________% 

  

 
 

  Local Agency certifies that all DBE certifications have been verified and   

  information is complete and accurate. 
 

 

 
  ________________________           __________________________     ___________ 

   Print Name                                            Signature                                         Date 

  Local Agency Representative 
 

 

 

_______________________________ 
    Signature of Bidder 

 

_______________________________ 
    Date                                    (Area Code) Tel. No. 

 

_______________________________ 
    Person to Contact               (Please Type or Print) 

 
 

  (Area Code) Telephone Number: __________________ 

 

 

Local Agency Bidder DBE Commitment (Construction 

Contracts)  

(Rev  6/26/09) 

 

 

 

Distribution: (1) Copy – Fax or scan a copy to the Caltrans District Local Assistance Engineer (DLAE) within 30 days of contract execution. Failure to   
send a copy to the DLAE within 30 days of contract execution may result in de-obligation of funds for this project. 

 (2) Copy – Include in award package to Caltrans District Local Assistance 
 (3) Original – Local agency files 

 





UPRR PED XING AND BIKE PATH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT   

PART I – BID BOOK 

Page | 27 

 

EXHIBIT 15-H  DBE INFORMATION —GOOD FAITH EFFORTS 

DBE INFORMATION - GOOD FAITH EFFORTS 

 

 

Federal-aid Project No.  CML-5187(007)                       Bid Opening Date April 16, 2015 

 

The City of Colfax established a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) goal of _____% for this project. The 

information provided herein shows that a good faith effort was made. 

 

Lowest, second lowest and third lowest bidders shall submit the following information to document adequate 

good faith efforts. Bidders should submit the following information even if the “Local Agency Bidder DBE 

Commitment” form indicates that the bidder has met the DBE goal. This will protect the bidder’s eligibility for 

award of the contract if the administering agency determines that the bidder failed to meet the goal for various 

reasons, e.g., a DBE firm was not certified at bid opening, or the bidder made a mathematical error. 

 

Submittal of only the “Local Agency Bidder DBE Commitment” form may not provide sufficient documentation 

to demonstrate that adequate good faith efforts were made. 

 

The following items are listed in the Section entitled “Submission of DBE Commitment” of the Special 

Provisions:  

 

A. The names and dates of each publication in which a request for DBE participation for this project 

was placed by the bidder (please attach copies of advertisements or proofs of publication): 

 

Publications     Dates of Advertisement 

_________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________ 

 

B. The names and dates of written notices sent to certified DBEs soliciting bids for this project and 

the dates and methods used for following up initial solicitations to determine with certainty 

whether the DBEs were interested (please attach copies of solicitations, telephone records, fax 

confirmations, etc.): 

 

Names of DBEs Solicited  Date of Initial 

Solicitation 

 Follow Up Methods and Dates 

 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 









INFORMATION ONLY, NOT TO BE COMPLETED WITH BID 

(to be completed upon award of the contract)  

UPRR PED XING AND BIKE PATH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

PART I – BID BOOK 

Page | 31 

ARTICLE II.--The said party of the first part hereby promises and agrees with the said Contractor to employ, and does hereby 

employ, the said Contractor to provide the materials and to do the work according to the terms and conditions herein contained 

and referred to, for the prices hereinafter set forth, and hereby contracts to pay the same at the time, in the manner and upon 

the conditions herein set forth; and the said parties for themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, 

do hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants herein contained. 

 

ARTICLE III.--The State general prevailing wage rates determined by the Director of Industrial Relations are hereby made a 

part of this contract.  It is further expressly agreed by and between the parties hereto that should there be any conflict between 

the terms of this instrument and the bid or proposal of said Contractor, then this instrument shall control and nothing herein 

shall be considered as an acceptance of the said terms of said bid conflicting herewith. 

 

ARTICLE IV.--By my signature hereunder, as Contractor, I certify that I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the 

Labor Code which require every employer to be insured against liability for worker's compensation or to undertake self-

insurance in conformance with the provisions of that code, and I will comply with such provisions before commencing the 

performance of the work of this contract. In addition to the insurance and indemnification requirements stated in the Standard 

Specifications, as Contractor, I will comply with the following insurance requirements: 

 

INSURANCE 

1) Throughout the period of this agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall provide the following minimum insurance coverage as 

listed below.  CONTRACTOR shall file with CITY a certificate(s) of Insurance, in a form acceptable to CITY, at the time of 

execution of this agreement.  The insurance company must be acceptable to CITY, with a Best's Rating of no less than A:VII.  

Documentation of such rating acceptable to the CITY shall be provided at the same time Insurance Certificates are submitted. 

2) In the event any of the required policies are canceled prior to the completion of the project and the CONTRACTOR does not 

furnish a new certificate(s) of insurance prior to cancellation, the CITY may obtain the required insurance and deduct the 

premium(s) from Contract monies due the CONTRACTOR. 

3) WORKER'S COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY INSURANCE:  

a) The CONTRACTOR shall maintain adequate Workers' Compensation Insurance under the Laws of the State of 

California. CONTRACTOR shall fully comply with the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code, which requires 

every employer to be insured against liability for Workers' Compensation or to undertake self insurance in accordance 

with the provisions of that Code, before commencing the performance of the work.  

b) By CONTRACTOR's signature hereunder, CONTRACTOR certifies that he/she is aware of the provisions of Section 

3700 of the California Labor Code which require every employer to be insured against liability for workers’ 

compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, and he/she will comply 

with such provisions before commencing the performance of this Contract. 

c) If such insurance is underwritten by any agency other than State Compensation Fund, such agency shall be a company 

authorized to do business in the State of California. 

d) CONTRACTOR shall require all subcontractors to maintain adequate Workers' Compensation Insurance.  Certificates 

of such Workers' Compensation shall be filed forthwith with the CITY upon demand. 

e) Worker's Compensation Insurance shall be provided as required by any applicable law or regulation.  Employer's liability 

insurance shall be provided in amounts not less than the following: 

ü One Million dollars ($1,000,000) each accident for bodily injury by accident 

ü One Million dollars ($1,000,000) policy limit for bodily injury by disease 

ü One Million dollars ($1,000,000) each employee for bodily injury by disease 

f) If there is an exposure of injury to CONTRACTOR'S employees under the U.S. Longshoremen's and Harbor Worker's 

Compensation Act, the Jones Act, or under laws, regulations, or statutes applicable to maritime employees, coverage 

shall be included for such injuries or claims. 

g) Each Worker's Compensation policy shall be endorsed with the following specific language: 

Cancellation Notice:  "This policy shall not be canceled or materially changed without first giving thirty (30) days prior 

written notice to the City of Colfax." 

h) Contractor shall require all Subcontractors to maintain adequate Worker’s Compensation insurance.  Certificates of 

Works’ Compensation shall be filed forthwith with the City upon demand. 





INFORMATION ONLY, NOT TO BE COMPLETED WITH BID 

(to be completed upon award of the contract)  

UPRR PED XING AND BIKE PATH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

PART I – BID BOOK 

Page | 33 

b) Policy Deductibles: The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for all deductibles in all of CONTRACTOR’S insurance 

policies.  The amount of deductibles for insurance coverage required herein should be reasonable and subject to CITY’S 

approval. 

c) CONTRACTOR’S Obligations: CONTRACTOR’S indemnity and other obligations shall not be limited by the foregoing 

insurance requirements and shall survive the expiration of this agreement. 

d) Material Breach: Failure of the CONTRACTOR to maintain the insurance required by this agreement, or to comply with 

any of the requirements of this section, shall constitute a material breach of the entire agreement. 

7) ENDORSEMENTS: 

a) Each Comprehensive or Commercial General Liability policy shall be endorsed with the following specific language: 

 

"The City of Colfax, and additional insureds (including, State of California, California Regional Water Quality Control 

Board) and their officers, agents, outside parties hired to inspect and/or design the work, employees, and volunteers are 

to be covered as insured for all liability arising out of the operations by or on behalf of the named insured in the 

performance of this Agreement." 

 

"The insurance provided by the CONTRACTOR, including any excess liability or umbrella form coverage, is primary 

coverage to the City of Colfax and additional insureds, with respect to any insurance or self-insurance programs 

maintained by the City of Colfax and additional insureds, and no insurance held or owned by the City of Colfax and 

additional insureds shall be called upon to contribute to a loss." 

 

"This policy shall not be canceled or materially changed without first giving thirty (30) days prior written notice to the 

City of Colfax." 

8) AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE: 

a) CONTRACTOR shall provide Automobile Liability insurance covering bodily injury and property damage in an amount 

no less than two million dollars ($2,000,000) combined single limit for each occurrence.   

b) Covered vehicles shall include owned, non-owned, and hired automobiles/trucks. 

 

ARTICLE V.--And the said Contractor agrees to receive and accept the following prices as full compensation for furnishing 

all materials and for doing all the work contemplated and embraced in this agreement; also for all loss or damage, arising out 

of the nature of the work aforesaid, or from the action of the elements, or from any unforeseen difficulties or obstructions which 

may arise or be encountered in the prosecution of the work until its acceptance by the (CITY OF COLFAX, DEPARTMENT 

OF PUBLIC WORKS), and for all risks of every description connected with the work; also for all expenses incurred by or in 

consequence of the suspension or discontinuance of work and for well and faithfully completing the work, and the whole 

thereof, in the manner and according to the plans and specifications, and the requirements of the Engineer under them, to wit: 

 

BID ITEM LIST 



INFORMATION ONLY, NOT TO BE COMPLETED WITH BID 

(to be completed upon award of the contract)  

UPRR PED XING AND BIKE PATH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

PART I – BID BOOK 

Page | 34 

 
 

 



INFORMATION ONLY, NOT TO BE COMPLETED WITH BID 

(to be completed upon award of the contract)  

UPRR PED XING AND BIKE PATH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT   

PART I – BID BOOK 

Page | 35 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The parties to these presents have here-unto set their hands the year and date first above written  

 

 

 CITY OF COLFAX 

 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 By  ________________________________________ 

 Mark M. Miller, City Manager 

 

 

 

 Contractor 

 

 

 

 By  ________________________________________ 

 

 

Licensed  in accordance with 

an act providing for the 

registration of contractors, 

 

License No.  _________________________ 

 

Federal Employer Identification 

 

Number  ____________________________ 

 

 

 

Approved and certified as being in conformance with the requirements of the State Contract Act. 

 

 

  

                                                                                        Attorney, City of Colfax 

 

 

 

 Approved Effective  __________________________ 

 

 







UPRR PED XING AND BIKE PATH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT   

PART I – BID BOOK 

Page | 40 

 

 
FEDERAL MINIMUM WAGE RATES 

 
 

See the Federal Web site, http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/esc/oe/federal-wages/fed_wages.html for current rates. 

 

It is the Contractors sole responsibility to routinely check the above listed web site for publication updates throughout the bid 

and construction periods of this project. 

 

Revisions to the applicable Federal Wage Rates, up to 10 days before bid opening, will be identified by the issuance of an 

addendum with the corresponding Internet web site address of where the revisions can be found. The final contract 

documents signed by the local agency and the contractor, will physically include the Federal Wage Rates, or Federal Wage 

Rates as revised by addendums, if any such addendums have been issued. 

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/esc/oe/federal-wages/fed_wages.html


General Decision Number: CA150009 01/23/2015  CA9 

Superseded General Decision Number: CA20140009 

State: California 

Construction Types: Building, Heavy (Heavy and Dredging) and  
Highway 

Counties: Alpine, Amador, Butte, Colusa, El Dorado, Glenn,  
Lassen, Marin, Modoc, Napa, Nevada, Placer, Plumas, Sacramento,  
Shasta, Sierra, Siskiyou, Solano, Sonoma, Sutter, Tehama,  
Trinity, Yolo and Yuba Counties in California. 

BUILDING CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (excluding Amador County only); 
DREDGING CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (does not include hopper dredge 
work); HEAVY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (does not include water well 
drilling); AND HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13658 establishes an hourly minimum 
wage of $10.10 for 2015 that applies to all contracts subject 
to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the solicitation is issued on 
or after January 1, 2015. If this contract is covered by the 
EO, the contractor must pay all workers in any classification 
listed on this wage determination at least $10.10 (or the 
applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it 
is higher) for all hours spent performing on the contract. The 
EO minimum wage rate will be adjusted annually. Additional 
information on contractor requirements and worker protections 
under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts. 

Modification Number     Publication Date 
          0              01/02/2015 
          1              01/16/2015 
          2              01/23/2015 

 ASBE0016-001 01/01/2014 

AREA 1:  ALAMEDA, CONTRA COSTA, LAKE, MARIN, MENDOCINO, 
MONTEREY, NAPA, SAN BENITO, SAN FRANCISCO, SAN MATEO, SANTA 
CLARA, SANTA CRUZ, SOLANO, & SONOMA COUNTIES 

AREA 2: ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, CALAVERAS, COLUSA, DEL NORTE, 
EL DORADO, FRESNO, GLENN, HUMBOLDT, KINGS, LASSEN, MADERA, 
MARIPOSA, MERCED,  MODOC, MONO, NEVADA, PLACER, PLUMAS, 
SACRAMENTO, SAN JOAQUIN, SHASTA, SIERRA, SISKIYOU, STANISLAU, 
SUTTER, TEHEMA, TRINITY, TULARE, TUOLUMNE, YOLO, & YUBA COUNTIES 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

Asbestos Workers/Insulator    
(Includes the application of    
all insulating materials,    
Protective Coverings,    
Coatings, and Finishes to all    

Page 1 of 42

1/29/2015http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/CA9.dvb?v=2



types of mechanical systems)   
     Area 1......................$ 57.15            18.72 
     Area 2......................$ 44.05            18.62 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 ASBE0016-007 01/01/2013 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

Asbestos Removal    
worker/hazardous material    
handler (Includes    
preparation, wetting,    
stripping, removal,    
scrapping, vacuuming, bagging    
and disposing of all    
insulation materials from    
mechanical systems, whether    
they contain asbestos or not)....$ 31.13             6.95 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 BOIL0549-002 01/01/2013 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

BOILERMAKER   
     (1) Marin & Solano Counties.$ 42.06            33.43 
     (2) Remaining Counties......$ 38.37            31.32 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 BRCA0003-001 08/01/2013 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

MARBLE FINISHER..................$ 28.05            14.01 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 BRCA0003-004 05/01/2013 

AREA 1: ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, COLUSA, EL DORADO, GLENN, 
LASSEN, MODOC, NEVADA, PLACER, PLUMAS, SACRAMENTO, SHASTA, 
SIERRA, SUTTER, TEHAMA, YOLO AND YUBA COUNTIES 

AREA 2: MARIN, NAPA, SISKIYOU, SOLANO, SONOMA AND TRINITY 
COUNTIES 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

BRICKLAYER   
     AREA 1......................$ 36.48            19.59 
     AREA 2......................$ 39.96            23.79 

SPECIALTY PAY:   
  (A)  Underground work such as tunnel work, sewer work, 
  manholes, catch basins, sewer pipes and telephone conduit 
  shall be paid  $1.25 per hour above the regular rate.  Work 
  in direct contact with raw sewage shall receive $1.25 per 
  hour in addition to the above. 
  (B)  Operating a saw or grinder shall receive $1.25 per hour 
  above the regular rate. 
  (C)  Gunite nozzle person shall receive $1.25 per hour above 
  the regular rate. 

Page 2 of 42

1/29/2015http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/CA9.dvb?v=2





  complete. The diver rate shall be paid for all saturation 
  hours. 

DIVING IN ENCLOSURES: 
  Where it is necessary for Divers to enter pipes or tunnels, 
  or other enclosures where there is no vertical ascent, the 
  following premium shall be paid:  Distance traveled from 
  entrance 26 feet to 300 feet:  $1.00 per foot.  When it is 
  necessary for a diver to enter any pipe, tunnel or other 
  enclosure less than 48" in height, the premium will be 
  $1.00 per foot. 

WORK IN COMBINATION OF CLASSIFICATIONS: 
  Employees working in any combination of classifications 
  within the diving crew (except dive supervisor) in a shift 
  are paid in the classification with the highest rate for 
  that shift. 

---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 CARP0034-003 07/01/2014 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

Piledriver.......................$ 40.60            30.73 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 CARP0035-001 08/01/2014 

AREA 1:  MARIN, NAPA, SOLANO & SONOMA 

AREA 3: SACRAMENTO, WESTERN EL DORADO (Territory west of an 
including highway 49 and the territory inside the city limits 
of Placerville), WESTERN PLACER (Territory west of and 
including highway 49), & YOLO 

AREA 4:  ALPINE, BUTTE, COLUSA, EASTERN EL DORADO, GLENN, 
LASSEN, MODOC, NEVADA, EASTERN PLACER, PLUMAS, SHASTA, SIERRA, 
SISKIYOU, SUTTER, TEHAMA, TRINITY,  & YUBA 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

Drywall Installers/Lathers:   
     Area 1......................$ 40.35            27.97 
     Area 3......................$ 34.97            27.97 
     Area 4......................$ 33.62            27.97 
Drywall Stocker/Scrapper   
     Area 1......................$ 20.18            16.30 
     Area 3......................$ 17.49            16.30 
     Area 4......................$ 16.81            16.30 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 CARP0035-009 07/01/2014 

Marin County 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

CARPENTER   
     Bridge Builder/Highway  
     Carpenter...................$ 40.35            27.53 
     Hardwood Floorlayer,  

Page 4 of 42

1/29/2015http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/CA9.dvb?v=2



     Shingler, Power Saw  
     Operator, Steel Scaffold &  
     Steel Shoring Erector, Saw  
     Filer.......................$ 40.50            27.53 
     Journeyman Carpenter........$ 40.35            27.53 
     Millwright..................$ 40.45            29.12 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 CARP0035-010 07/01/2014 

AREA 1: Marin, Napa, Solano & Sonoma  Counties 

AREA 2: Monterey, San Benito and Santa Cruz 

AREA 3: Alpine, Butte, Colusa, El Dorado, Glenn, Lassen, Modoc, 
Nevada, Placer, Plumas, Sacramento, Shasta, Sierra, Siskiyou, 
Sutter, Tehama, Trinity, Yolo & Yuba counties 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

Modular Furniture Installer   
     Area 1 
      Installer I................$ 23.36            18.31 
      Installer II...............$ 19.93            18.31 
      Lead Installer.............$ 26.81            18.81 
      Master Installer...........$ 31.03            18.81 
     Area 2 
      Installer I................$ 20.71            18.31 
      Installer II...............$ 17.76            18.31 
      Lead Installer.............$ 23.68            18.81 
      Master Installer...........$ 27.31            18.81 
     Area 3 
      Installer I................$ 19.76            18.31 
      Installer II...............$ 16.99            18.31 
      Lead Installer.............$ 22.56            18.81 
      Master Installer...........$ 29.58            18.81 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 CARP0046-001 07/01/2014 

El Dorado (West), Placer (West), Sacramento and Yolo Counties 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

Carpenters   
     Bridge Builder/Highway  
     Carpenter...................$ 40.35            27.53 
     Hardwood Floorlayer,  
     Shingler, Power Saw  
     Operator, Steel Scaffold &  
     Steel Shoring Erector, Saw  
     Filer.......................$ 34.62            27.53 
     Journeyman Carpenter........$ 34.47            27.53 
     Millwright..................$ 36.97            29.12 

  Footnote: Placer County (West) includes territory West of and 
  including Highway 49 and El Dorado County (West) includes 
  territory West of and including Highway 49 and territory 
  inside the city limits of Placerville. 

---------------------------------------------------------------- 

Page 5 of 42

1/29/2015http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/CA9.dvb?v=2







  include control function or power supply;  excludes 
  installation of raceway systems,  line voltage work, 
  industrial work, life-safety systems (all  buildings having 
  floors located more than 75' above the lowest  floor level 
  having building access); excludes energy management 
  systems. 

---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 ELEC0340-002 12/01/2013 

ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, COLUSA, EL DORADO, GLENN, LASSEN, 
NEVADA, PLACER, PLUMAS, SACRAMENTO, TRINITY, YOLO, YUBA COUNTIES 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

Communications System   
     Sound & Communications  
     Installer...................$ 24.68         3%+12.85 
     Sound & Communications  
     Technician..................$ 28.38         3%+12.85 

SCOPE OF WORK   

  Includes the installation testing, service and maintenance, 
  of the following systems which utilize the transmission 
  and/or transference of voice, sound, vision and digital for 
  commercial, education, security and entertainment purposes 
  for the following TV monitoring and surveillance, 
  background-foreground music, intercom and telephone 
  interconnect, inventory control systems, microwave 
  transmission, multi-media, multiplex, nurse call system, 
  radio page, school intercom and sound, burglar alarms, and 
  low voltage master clock systems. 

A. SOUND AND VOICE TRANSMISSION/TRANSFERENCE SYSTEMS      
  Background foreground music Intercom and telephone 
  interconnect systems, Telephone systems, Nurse call 
  systems, Radio page systems, School intercom and sound 
  systems, Burglar alarm systems, Low voltage master clock 
  systems, Multi-media/multiplex systems, Sound and musical 
  entertainment systems, RF systems, Antennas and Wave Guide. 

B. FIRE ALARM SYSTEMS      
Installation, wire pulling and testing   

  C. TELEVISION AND VIDEO SYSTEMS     Television monitoring and 
  surveillance systems,  Video security systems, Video 
  entertainment systems, Video educational systems, Microwave 
  transmission systems, CATV and CCTV 

  D. SECURITY SYSTEMS     Perimeter security systems 
  Vibration sensor systems     Card access systems     Access 
  control systems     Sonar/infrared monitoring equipment 

  E. COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS THAT TRANSMIT OR RECEIVE 
  INFORMATION AND/OR CONTROL SYSTEMS THAT ARE INTRINSIC    TO 
  THE ABOVE LISTED SYSTEMS     SCADA (Supervisory Control and 
  Data Acquisition)     PCM (Pulse Code Modulation) 
  Inventory Control Systems     Digital Data Systems 

Page 8 of 42

1/29/2015http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/CA9.dvb?v=2



  Broadband and Baseband and Carriers     Point of Sale 
  Systems     VSAT Data Systems     Data Communication 
  Systems     RF and Remote Control Systems     Fiber Optic 
  Data Systems  WORK EXCLUDED Raceway systems are not covered 
  (excluding Ladder-Rack for the purpose of the above listed 
  systems).  Chases and/or nipples (not to exceed 10 feet) 
  may be installed on open wiring systems.  Energy management 
  systems.  SCADA (Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition) 
  when not intrinsic to the above listed systems (in the 
  scope).  Fire alarm systems when installed in raceways 
  (including wire and cable pulling) shall be performed at 
  the electrician wage rate, when either of the following two 
  (2) conditions apply: 
  1.  The project involves new or major remodel building trades 
  construction. 
  2.  The conductors for the fire alarm system are installed in 
  conduit. 

---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 ELEC0340-003 12/01/2013 

ALPINE (West of Sierra Mt. Watershed), AMADOR, BUTTE, COLUSA, 
EL DORADO (West of Sierra Mt. Watershed), GLENN, LASSEN, NEVADA 
(West of Sierra Mt. Watershed), PLACER, PLUMAS, SACRAMENTO, 
SHASTA, SIERRA (West of Sierra Mt. Watershed), SUTTER, TEHAMA, 
TRINITY, YOLO & YUBA COUNTIES 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

ELECTRICIAN   
     Remaining area..............$ 39.06            18.54 
     Sierra Army Depot, Herlong..$ 48.83            18.54 
     Tunnel work.................$ 41.01            18.54 

  CABLE SPLICER:  Receives 110% of the Electrician basic hourly 
  rate. 

---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 ELEC0401-005 07/01/2013 

ALPINE (east of the main watershed divide), EL DORADO (east of 
the main watershed divide), NEVADA (east of the main 
watershed), PLACER (east of the main watershed divide) and 
SIERRA (east of the main watershed divide) COUNTIES: 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

ELECTRICIAN......................$ 37.00            14.62 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 ELEC0551-004 06/01/2014 

MARIN AND SONOMA COUNTIES 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

ELECTRICIAN......................$ 47.20            16.76 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 ELEC0551-005 12/01/2014 

Page 9 of 42

1/29/2015http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/CA9.dvb?v=2



MARIN & SONOMA COUNTIES 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

Sound & Communications   
     Installer...................$ 32.32            16.27 
     Technician..................$ 36.80            16.41 

SCOPE OF WORK INCLUDES-   
  SOUND & VOICE TRANSMISSION (Music, Intercom, Nurse Call, 
  Telephone); FIRE ALARM SYSTEMS [excluding fire alarm  work 
  when installed in raceways (including wire and cable 
  pulling) and when performed on new or major remodel 
  building  projects or jobs], 
  TELEVISION & VIDEO SYSTEMS, SECURITY SYSTEMS, COMMUNICATIONS 
  SYSTEMS that transmit or receive information and/or control 
  systems that are intrinsic to the above. 

EXCLUDES- 
  Excludes all other data systems or multiple systems which 
  include control function or power supply;  excludes 
  installation of raceway systems,  line voltage work, 
  industrial work, life-safety systems (all  buildings having 
  floors located more than 75' above the lowest  floor level 
  having building access); excludes energy management 
  systems. 

---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 ELEC0659-006 01/01/2015 

DEL NORTE, MODOC and SISKIYOU COUNTIES 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

ELECTRICIAN......................$ 30.44            15.71 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 ELEC0659-008 02/01/2013 

DEL NORTE, MODOC & SISKIYOU COUNTIES 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

Line Construction   
     (1) Cable Splicer...........$ 51.09         4%+13.30 
     (2) Lineman, Pole Sprayer,  
     Heavy Line Equipment Man....$ 45.62         4%+13.30 
     (3) Tree Trimmer............$ 32.07          4%+9.80 
     (4) Line Equipment Man......$ 45.62          4%+9.80 
     (5) Powdermen,  
     Jackhammermen...............$ 34.22          4%+9.80 
     (6) Groundman...............$ 31.31          4%+9.80 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 ELEC1245-004 06/01/2013 

ALL COUNTIES EXCEPT DEL NORTE, MODOC & SISKIYOU 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

LINE CONSTRUCTION   

Page 10 of 42

1/29/2015http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/CA9.dvb?v=2



     (1) Lineman; Cable splicer..$ 50.30               15 
     (2) Equipment specialist  
     (operates crawler  
     tractors, commercial motor  
     vehicles, backhoes,  
     trenchers, cranes (50 tons  
     and below), overhead &  
     underground distribution  
     line   equipment)...........$ 40.17            14.56 
     (3) Groundman...............$ 30.73            13.48 
     (4) Powderman...............$ 44.91            13.48 

  HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, M.L. King Day, Memorial Day, 
  Independence Day, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day 
  and day after Thanksgiving, Christmas Day 

---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 ELEV0008-001 01/01/2014 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

ELEVATOR MECHANIC................$ 59.19           26.785 

FOOTNOTE: 
  PAID VACATION:  Employer contributes 8% of regular hourly 
  rate as vacation pay credit for employees with more than 5 
  years of service, and 6% for 6 months to 5 years of service. 
  PAID HOLIDAYS: New Years Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, 
  Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Friday after 
  Thanksgiving, and Christmas Day. 

---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 ENGI0003-008 07/01/2013 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

Dredging: (DREDGING:    
CLAMSHELL & DIPPER DREDGING;     
HYDRAULIC SUCTION DREDGING:)   
     AREA 1: 
      (1) Leverman...............$ 40.53            27.81 
      (2) Dredge Dozer; Heavy  
      duty repairman.............$ 35.57            27.81 
      (3) Booster Pump  
      Operator; Deck    
      Engineer; Deck mate;  
      Dredge Tender; Winch  
      Operator...................$ 34.45            27.81 
      (4) Bargeman; Deckhand;  
      Fireman; Leveehand; Oiler..$ 31.15            27.81 
     AREA 2: 
      (1) Leverman...............$ 42.53            27.81 
      (2) Dredge Dozer; Heavy  
      duty repairman.............$ 37.57            27.81 
      (3) Booster Pump  
      Operator; Deck    
      Engineer; Deck mate;  
      Dredge Tender; Winch  
      Operator...................$ 36.45            27.81 
      (4) Bargeman; Deckhand;  

Page 11 of 42

1/29/2015http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/CA9.dvb?v=2



      Fireman; Leveehand; Oiler..$ 33.15            27.81 

AREA DESCRIPTIONS   

  AREA 1: ALAMEDA,BUTTE, CONTRA COSTA, KINGS, MARIN, MERCED, 
  NAPA, SACRAMENTO, SAN BENITO, SAN FRANCISCO, SAN JOAQUIN, 
  SAN MATEO, SANTA CLARA, SANTA CRUZ, SOLANO, STANISLAUS, 
  SUTTER, YOLO, AND YUBA COUNTIES 

AREA 2:  MODOC COUNTY 

  THE REMAINGING COUNTIES ARE SPLIT BETWEEN AREA 1 AND AREA 2 
  AS NOTED BELOW: 

ALPINE COUNTY: 
Area 1:  Northernmost part 
Area 2:  Remainder 

CALAVERAS COUNTY:  
Area 1: Remainder  
Area 2: Eastern part   

COLUSA COUNTY: 
Area 1:  Eastern part 
Area 2:  Remainder 

ELDORADO COUNTY: 
Area 1:  North Central part 
Area 2:  Remainder 

FRESNO COUNTY:  
Area 1: Remainder  
Area 2: Eastern part   

GLENN COUNTY: 
Area 1:  Eastern part 
Area 2: Remainder   

LASSEN COUNTY: 
  Area 1:  Western part along the Southern portion of border 
  with Shasta County 
Area 2:  Remainder 

MADERA COUNTY:  
Area 1: Except Eastern part  
Area 2: Eastern part   

MARIPOSA COUNTY  
Area 1: Except Eastern part  
Area 2: Eastern part   

MONTERREY COUNTY  
Area 1: Except Southwestern part  
Area 2: Southwestern part   

NEVADA COUNTY: 
  Area 1:  All but the Northern portion along the border of 
  Sierra County 
Area 2:  Remainder 

Page 12 of 42

1/29/2015http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/CA9.dvb?v=2



PLACER COUNTY: 
Area 1:  Al but the Central portion 
Area 2:  Remainder 

PLUMAS COUNTY: 
Area 1:  Western portion 
Area 2:  Remainder 

SHASTA COUNTY: 
Area 1:  All but the Northeastern corner 
Area 2:  Remainder 

SIERRA COUNTY: 
Area 1:  Western part 
Area 2:  Remainder 

SISKIYOU COUNTY: 
Area 1:  Central part 
Area 2:  Remainder 

SONOMA COUNTY: 
Area 1:  All but the Northwestern corner 
Area 2:  Remainder 

TEHAMA COUNTY: 
  Area 1:  All but the Western border with Mendocino & Trinity 
  Counties 
Area 2:  Remainder 

TRINITY COUNTY: 
  Area 1:  East Central part and the Northeastern border with 
  Shasta County 
Area 2:  Remainder 

TUOLUMNE COUNTY:  
Area 1: Except Eastern part  
Area 2: Eastern part 

---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 ENGI0003-018 06/30/2014 

"AREA 1" WAGE RATES ARE LISTED BELOW  

"AREA 2" RECEIVES AN ADDITIONAL $2.00 PER HOUR ABOVE AREA 1 
RATES. 

SEE AREA DEFINITIONS BELOW 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

OPERATOR:  Power Equipment    
(AREA 1:)   
     GROUP 1.....................$ 39.85            27.44 
     GROUP 2.....................$ 38.32            27.44 
     GROUP 3.....................$ 36.84            27.44 
     GROUP 4.....................$ 35.46            27.44 
     GROUP 5.....................$ 34.19            27.44 
     GROUP 6.....................$ 32.87            27.44 
     GROUP 7.....................$ 31.73            27.44 

Page 13 of 42

1/29/2015http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/CA9.dvb?v=2





(Tunnel and Underground Work    
- AREA 1:)   
     SHAFTS, STOPES, RAISES: 
      GROUP 1....................$ 35.95            27.44 
      GROUP 1-A..................$ 38.32            27.44 
      GROUP 2....................$ 34.59            27.44 
      GROUP 3....................$ 33.36            27.44 
      GROUP 4....................$ 32.22            27.44 
      GROUP 5....................$ 31.08            27.44 
     UNDERGROUND: 
      GROUP 1....................$ 35.85            27.44 
      GROUP 1-A..................$ 38.32            27.44 
      GROUP 2....................$ 34.59            27.44 
      GROUP 3....................$ 33.26            27.44 
      GROUP 4....................$ 32.12            27.44 
      GROUP 5....................$ 30.98            27.44 

  FOOTNOTE: Work suspended by ropes or cables, or work on a 
  Yo-Yo Cat: $.60 per hour additional. 

  POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATOR CLASSIFICATIONS   

  GROUP 1: Operator of helicopter (when used in erection work); 
  Hydraulic excavator, 7 cu. yds. and over; Power shovels, 
  over 7 cu. yds. 

  GROUP 2: Highline cableway; Hydraulic excavator, 3-1/2 cu. 
  yds. up to 7 cu. yds.; Licensed construction work boat 
  operator, on site; Power blade operator (finish); Power 
  shovels, over 1 cu. yd. up to and including 7 cu. yds. 
  m.r.c. 

  GROUP 3: Asphalt milling machine; Cable backhoe; Combination 
  backhoe and loader over 3/4 cu. yds.; Continuous flight tie 
  back machine assistant to engineer or mechanic; Crane 
  mounted continuous flight tie back machine, tonnage to 
  apply; Crane mounted drill attachment, tonnage to apply; 
  Dozer, slope brd; Gradall; Hydraulic excavator, up to 3 1/2 
  cu. yds.; Loader 4 cu. yds. and over; Long reach excavator; 
  Multiple engine scraper (when used as push pull); Power 
  shovels, up to and including 1 cu. yd.; Pre-stress wire 
  wrapping machine; Side boom cat, 572 or larger; Track 
  loader 4 cu. yds. and over; Wheel excavator (up to and 
  including 750 cu. yds. per hour) 

  GROUP 4: Asphalt plant engineer/box person; Chicago boom; 
  Combination backhoe and loader up to and including 3/4 cu. 
  yd.; Concrete batch plant (wet or dry); Dozer and/or push 
  cat; Pull- type elevating loader; Gradesetter, grade 
  checker (GPS, mechanical or otherwise); Grooving and 
  grinding machine; Heading shield operator; Heavy-duty 
  drilling equipment, Hughes, LDH, Watson 3000 or similar; 
  Heavy-duty repairperson and/or welder; Lime spreader; 
  Loader under 4 cu. yds.; Lubrication and service engineer 
  (mobile and grease rack); Mechanical finishers or spreader 
  machine (asphalt, Barber-Greene and similar); Miller 
  Formless M-9000 slope paver or similar; Portable crushing 
  and screening plants; Power blade support; Roller operator, 
  asphalt; Rubber-tired scraper, self-loading (paddle-wheels, 

Page 15 of 42

1/29/2015http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/CA9.dvb?v=2











MARIPOSA COUNTY  
Area 1: Remainder  
Area 2: Eastern part   

MENDOCINO COUNTY: 
Area 1: Central and Southeastern parts 
Area 2: Remainder  

MONTEREY COUNTY  
Area 1: Remainder  
Area 2: Southwestern part 

NEVADA COUNTY: 
  Area 1: All but the Northern portion along the border of 
  Sierra County 
Area 2: Remainder 

PLACER COUNTY: 
Area 1: All but the Central portion 
Area 2: Remainder 

PLUMAS COUNTY: 
Area 1: Western portion 
Area 2: Remainder 

SHASTA COUNTY: 
Area 1: All but the Northeastern corner 
Area 2: Remainder 

SIERRA COUNTY: 
Area 1: Western part 
Area 2: Remainder 

SISKIYOU COUNTY: 
Area 1: Central part 
Area 2: Remainder 

SONOMA COUNTY: 
Area 1: All but the Northwestern corner 
Area 2: Reaminder 

TEHAMA COUNTY: 
  Area 1: All but the Western border with mendocino & Trinity 
  Counties 
Area 2: Remainder 

TRINITY COUNTY: 
  Area 1: East Central part and the Northeaster border with 
  Shasta County 
Area 2: Remainder 

TULARE COUNTY; 
Area 1: Remainder 
Area 2: Eastern part 

TUOLUMNE COUNTY: 
Area 1: Remainder 
Area 2: Eastern Part 

Page 20 of 42

1/29/2015http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/CA9.dvb?v=2



---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 ENGI0003-019 07/01/2013 

SEE AREA DESCRIPTIONS BELOW 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

OPERATOR:  Power Equipment    
(LANDSCAPE WORK ONLY)   
     GROUP 1 
      AREA 1.....................$ 29.64            25.71 
      AREA 2.....................$ 31.64            25.71 
     GROUP 2 
      AREA 1.....................$ 26.04            25.71 
      AREA 2.....................$ 28.04            25.71 
     GROUP 3 
      AREA 1.....................$ 21.43            25.71 
      AREA 2.....................$ 23.43            25.71 

GROUP DESCRIPTIONS: 

  GROUP 1:  Landscape Finish Grade Operator: All finish grade 
  work regardless of equipment used, and all equipment with a 
  rating more than 65 HP. 

  GROUP 2:  Landscape Operator up to 65 HP: All equipment with 
  a manufacturer's rating of 65 HP or less except equipment 
  covered by Group 1 or Group 3.  The following equipment 
  shall be included except when used for finish work as long 
  as manufacturer's rating is 65 HP or less: A-Frame and 
  Winch Truck, Backhoe, Forklift, Hydragraphic Seeder 
  Machine, Roller, Rubber-Tired and Track Earthmoving 
  Equipment, Skiploader, Straw Blowers, and Trencher 31 HP up 
  to 65 HP. 

  GROUP 3: Landscae Utility Operator: Small Rubber-Tired 
  Tractor, Trencher Under 31 HP. 

AREA DESCRIPTIONS: 

  AREA 1: ALAMEDA, BUTTE, CONTRA COSTA, KINGS, MARIN,  MERCED, 
  NAPA, SACRAMENTO, SAN BENITO, SAN FRANCISCO, SAN JOAQUIN, 
  SAN MATEO, SANTA CLARA, SANTA CRUZ, SOLANO, STANISLAUS, 
  SUTTER, YOLO, AND YUBA COUNTIES 

AREA 2 - MODOC COUNTY 

  THE REMAINING COUNTIES ARE SPLIT BETWEEN AREA 1 AND AREA 2 AS 
  NOTED BELOW: 

ALPINE COUNTY: 
Area 1: Northernmost part 
Area 2: Remainder 

CALAVERAS COUNTY:  
Area 1: Except Eastern part  
Area 2: Eastern part   

COLUSA COUNTY: 
Area 1: Eastern part 

Page 21 of 42

1/29/2015http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/CA9.dvb?v=2



Area 2: Remainder 

DEL NORTE COUNTY: 
Area 1: Extreme Southwestern corner 
Area 2: Remainder  

ELDORADO COUNTY: 
Area 1: North Central part 
Area 2: Remainder 

FRESNO COUNTY  
Area 1: Except Eastern part  
Area 2: Eastern part   

GLENN COUNTY: 
Area 1: Eastern part 
Area 2: Remainder 

HUMBOLDT COUNTY: 
Area 1: Except Eastern and Southwestern parts 
Area 2: Remainder 

LAKE COUNTY: 
Area 1: Southern part 
Area 2: Remainder 

LASSEN COUNTY: 
  Area 1: Western part along the Southern portion of border 
  with Shasta County 
Area 2: Remainder 

MADERA COUNTY  
Area 1: Remainder  
Area 2: Eastern part   

MARIPOSA COUNTY  
Area 1: Remainder  
Area 2: Eastern part   

MENDOCINO COUNTY: 
Area 1: Central and Southeastern parts 
Area 2: Remainder  

MONTEREY COUNTY  
Area 1: Remainder  
Area 2: Southwestern part 

NEVADA COUNTY: 
  Area 1: All but the Northern portion along the border of 
  Sierra County 
Area 2: Remainder 

PLACER COUNTY: 
Area 1: All but the Central portion 
Area 2: Remainder 

PLUMAS COUNTY: 
Area 1: Western portion 
Area 2: Remainder 

Page 22 of 42

1/29/2015http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/CA9.dvb?v=2



SHASTA COUNTY: 
Area 1: All but the Northeastern corner 
Area 2: Remainder 

SIERRA COUNTY: 
Area 1: Western part 
Area 2: Remainder 

SISKIYOU COUNTY: 
Area 1: Central part 
Area 2: Remainder 

SONOMA COUNTY: 
Area 1: All but the Northwestern corner 
Area 2: Reaminder 

TEHAMA COUNTY: 
  Area 1: All but the Western border with mendocino & Trinity 
  Counties 
Area 2: Remainder 

TRINITY COUNTY: 
  Area 1: East Central part and the Northeaster border with 
  Shasta County 
Area 2: Remainder 

TULARE COUNTY; 
Area 1: Remainder 
Area 2: Eastern part 

TUOLUMNE COUNTY: 
Area 1: Remainder 
Area 2: Eastern Part 

---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 IRON0377-002 01/01/2015 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

Ironworkers:   
     Fence Erector...............$ 27.08            18.24 
     Ornamental, Reinforcing  
     and Structural..............$ 33.50            28.20 

PREMIUM PAY: 

$6.00 additional per hour at the following locations: 

China Lake Naval Test Station, Chocolate Mountains Naval 
Reserve-Niland, 
Edwards AFB, Fort Irwin Military Station, Fort Irwin Training 
Center-Goldstone, San Clemente Island, San Nicholas Island, 
Susanville Federal Prison, 29 Palms - Marine Corps, U.S. Marine 
Base - Barstow, U.S. Naval Air Facility - Sealey, Vandenberg AFB 

$4.00 additional per hour at the following locations: 

Army Defense Language Institute - Monterey, Fallon Air Base, 
Naval Post Graduate School - Monterey, Yermo Marine Corps 
Logistics Center 

Page 23 of 42

1/29/2015http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/CA9.dvb?v=2



$2.00 additional per hour at the following locations: 

Port Hueneme, Port Mugu, U.S. Coast Guard Station - Two Rock 

---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 LABO0067-002 12/01/2014 

AREA "A" - ALAMEDA, CONTRA COSTA, MARIN, SAN FRANCISCO, SAN 
MATEO AND SANTA CLARA COUNTIES 

AREA "B"  -  ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, CALAVERAS, COLUSA, DEL 
NORTE, EL DORADO, FRESNO, GLENN, HUMBOLDT, KINGS, LAKE, LASSEN, 
MADERA, MARIPOSA, MENDOCINO, MERCED, MODOC, MONTEREY, NAPA, 
NEVADA, PLACER, PLUMAS, SACRAMENTO, SAN BENITO, SAN JOAQUIN, 
SANTA CRUZ, SHASTA, SIERRA, SISKIYOU, SOLANO, SONOMA, 
STANISLAUS, SUTTER, TEHAMA, TRINITY, TULARE, TUOLUMNE, YOLO AND 
YUBA COUNTIES 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

Asbestos Removal Laborer   
     Areas A & B.................$ 20.06             9.62 
LABORER (Lead Removal)   
     Area A......................$ 29.02            19.42 
     Area B......................$ 28.02            19.42 

  ASBESTOS REMOVAL-SCOPE OF WORK: Site mobilization; initial 
  site clean-up; site preparation; removal of 
  asbestos-containing materials from walls and ceilings; or 
  from pipes, boilers and mechanical systems only if they are 
  being scrapped; encapsulation, enclosure and disposal of 
  asbestos-containing materials by hand or with equipment or 
  machinery; scaffolding; fabrication of temporary wooden 
  barriers; and assembly of decontamination stations. 

---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 LABO0067-006 06/30/2014 

AREA "A" - ALAMEDA, CONTRA COSTA, MARIN, SAN FRANCISCO, SAN 
MATEO AND SANTA CLARA COUNTIES 

AREA "B"  -  ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, CALAVERAS, COLUSA, EL 
DORADO, FRESNO, GLENN, KINGS, LASSEN, MADERA, MARIPOSA, MERCED, 
MODOC, MONTEREY, NAPA, NEVADA, PLACER, PLUMAS, SACRAMENTO, SAN 
BENITO, SAN JOAQUIN, SANTA CRUZ, SHASTA, SIERRA, SISKIYOU, 
SOLANO, SONOMA, STANISLAUS, SUTTER, TEHAMA, TRINITY, TULARE, 
TUOLUMNE, YOLO AND YUBA COUNTIES 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

Laborers: (CONSTRUCTION CRAFT    
LABORERS - AREA A:)   
     Construction Specialist  
     Group.......................$ 29.09            18.66 
     GROUP 1.....................$ 28.39            18.66 
     GROUP 1-a...................$ 28.61            18.66 

Page 24 of 42

1/29/2015http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/CA9.dvb?v=2



     GROUP 1-c...................$ 28.44            18.66 
     GROUP 1-e...................$ 28.94            18.66 
     GROUP 1-f...................$ 28.97            18.66 
     GROUP 1-g (Contra Costa  
     County).....................$ 28.59            18.66 
     GROUP 2.....................$ 28.24            18.66 
     GROUP 3.....................$ 28.14            18.66 
     GROUP 4.....................$ 21.83            18.66 
  See groups 1-b and 1-d under laborer classifications. 
Laborers: (CONSTRUCTION CRAFT    
LABORERS - AREA B:)   
     Construction Specialist  
     Group.......................$ 28.09            18.66 
     GROUP 1.....................$ 27.39            18.66 
     GROUP 1-a...................$ 27.61            18.66 
     GROUP 1-c...................$ 27.44            18.66 
     GROUP 1-e...................$ 27.94            18.66 
     GROUP 1-f...................$ 27.97            18.66 
     GROUP 2.....................$ 27.24            18.66 
     GROUP 3.....................$ 27.14            18.66 
     GROUP 4.....................$ 20.83            18.66 
  See groups 1-b and 1-d under laborer classifications. 
Laborers: (GUNITE - AREA A:)   
     GROUP 1.....................$ 29.35            18.66 
     GROUP 2.....................$ 28.85            18.66 
     GROUP 3.....................$ 28.26            18.66 
     GROUP 4.....................$ 28.14            18.66 
Laborers: (GUNITE - AREA B:)   
     GROUP 1.....................$ 28.35            18.66 
     GROUP 2.....................$ 27.85            18.66 
     GROUP 3.....................$ 27.26            18.66 
     GROUP 4.....................$ 27.14            18.66 
Laborers: (WRECKING - AREA A:)   
     GROUP 1.....................$ 28.39            18.66 
     GROUP 2.....................$ 28.24            18.66 
Laborers: (WRECKING - AREA B:)   
     GROUP 1.....................$ 27.39            18.66 
     GROUP 2.....................$ 27.24            18.66 
Landscape Laborer (GARDENERS,    
HORTICULTURAL & LANDSCAPE    
LABORERS - AREA A:)   
     (1) New Construction........$ 28.14            18.66 
     (2) Establishment Warranty  
     Period......................$ 21.83            18.66 
Landscape Laborer (GARDENERS,    
HORTICULURAL & LANDSCAPE    
LABORERS - AREA B:)   
     (1) New Construction........$ 27.14            18.66 
     (2) Establishment Warranty  
     Period......................$ 20.83            18.66 

FOOTNOTES: 
  Laborers working off or with or from bos'n chairs, swinging 
  scaffolds, belts shall receive $0.25 per hour above the 
  applicable wage rate.  This shall not apply to workers 
  entitled to receive the wage rate set forth in Group 1-a 
  below. 

  --------------------------------------------------------- 

Page 25 of 42

1/29/2015http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/CA9.dvb?v=2



LABORER CLASSIFICATIONS  

  CONSTRUCTION SPECIALIST GROUP: Asphalt ironer and raker; 
  Chainsaw; Laser beam in connection with laborers' work; 
  Cast-in- place manhole form setter; Pressure pipelayer; 
  Davis trencher - 300 or similar type (and all small 
  trenchers); Blaster; Diamond driller; Multiple unit drill; 
  Hydraulic drill 

  GROUP 1: Asphalt spreader boxes (all types); Barko, Wacker 
  and similar type tampers; Buggymobile; Caulker, bander, 
  pipewrapper, conduit layer, plastic pipelayer; Certified 
  hazardous waste worker including Leade Abatement; 
  Compactors of all types; Concrete and magnesite mixer, 1/2 
  yd. and under; Concrete pan work; Concrete sander; Concrete 
  saw; Cribber and/or shoring; Cut granite curb setter; 
  Dri-pak-it machine; Faller, logloader and bucker; Form 
  raiser, slip forms; Green cutter; Headerboard, Hubsetter, 
  aligner, by any method; High pressure blow pipe (1-1/2" or 
  over, 100 lbs. pressure/over); Hydro seeder and similar 
  type; Jackhammer operator; Jacking of pipe over 12 inches; 
  Jackson and similar type compactor; Kettle tender, pot and 
  worker applying asphalt, lay-kold, creosote, lime, caustic 
  and similar type materials (applying means applying, 
  dipping or handling of such materials); Lagging, sheeting, 
  whaling, bracing, trenchjacking, lagging hammer; Magnesite, 
  epoxyresin, fiberglass, mastic worker (wet or dry); No 
  joint pipe and stripping of same, including repair of 
  voids; Pavement breaker and spader, including tool grinder; 
  Perma curb; Pipelayer (including grade checking in 
  connection with pipelaying); Precast-manhole setter; 
  Pressure pipe tester; Post hole digger, air, gas and 
  electric; Power broom sweeper; Power tampers of all types 
  (except as shown in Group 2); Ram set gun and stud gun; 
  Riprap stonepaver and rock-slinger, including placing of 
  sacked concrete and/or sand (wet or dry) and gabions and 
  similar type; Rotary scarifier or multiple head concrete 
  chipping scarifier; Roto and Ditch Witch; Rototiller; 
  Sandblaster, pot, gun, nozzle operators; Signalling and 
  rigging; Tank cleaner; Tree climber; Turbo blaster; 
  Vibrascreed, bull float in connection with laborers' work; 
  Vibrator; Hazardous waste worker (lead removal); Asbestos 
  and mold removal worker 

  GROUP 1-a: Joy drill model TWM-2A; Gardner-Denver model DH143 
  and similar type drills; Track driller; Jack leg driller; 
  Wagon driller; Mechanical drillers, all types regardless of 
  type or method of power; Mechanical pipe layers, all types 
  regardless of type or method of power; Blaster and powder; 
  All work of loading, placing and blasting of all powder and 
  explosives of whatever type regardless of method used for 
  such loading and placing; High scalers (including drilling 
  of same); Tree topper; Bit grinder 

  GROUP 1-b: Sewer cleaners shall receive $4.00 per day above 
  Group 1 wage rates.  "Sewer cleaner" means any worker who 
  handles or comes in contact with raw sewage in small 
  diameter sewers.  Those who work inside recently active, 
  large diameter sewers, and all recently active sewer 

Page 26 of 42

1/29/2015http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/CA9.dvb?v=2







     GROUP 4.....................$ 33.67            19.49 
     GROUP 5.....................$ 33.13            19.49 
     Shotcrete Specialist........$ 35.12            19.49 

TUNNEL AND SHAFT CLASSIFICATIONS  

  GROUP 1: Diamond driller; Groundmen; Gunite and shotcrete 
  nozzlemen 

  GROUP 2: Rodmen; Shaft work & raise (below actual or 
  excavated ground level) 

  GROUP 3: Bit grinder; Blaster, driller, powdermen, heading; 
  Cherry pickermen - where car is lifted; Concrete finisher 
  in tunnel; Concrete screedman; Grout pumpman and potman; 
  Gunite & shotcrete gunman & potman; Headermen; High 
  pressure nozzleman; Miner - tunnel, including top and 
  bottom man on shaft and raise work; Nipper; Nozzleman on 
  slick line; Sandblaster - potman, Robotic Shotcrete Placer, 
  Segment Erector, Tunnel Muck Hauler, Steel Form raiser and 
  setter; Timberman, retimberman (wood or steel or substitute 
  materials therefore); Tugger (for tunnel laborer work); 
  Cable tender; Chuck tender; Powderman - primer house 

  GROUP 4: Vibrator operator, pavement breaker; Bull gang - 
  muckers, trackmen; Concrete crew - includes rodding and 
  spreading, Dumpmen (any method) 

  GROUP 5: Grout crew; Reboundman; Swamper/ Brakeman 

---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 LABO0261-002 06/30/2014 

MARIN COUNTY 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

LABORER (TRAFFIC CONTROL/LANE    
CLOSURE)   
     Escort Driver, Flag Person..$ 28.14            19.03 
     Traffic Control Person I....$ 28.44            19.03 
     Traffic Control Person II...$ 25.94            19.03 

  TRAFFIC CONTROL PERSON I: Layout of traffic control, crash 
  cushions, construction area and roadside signage. 

  TRAFFIC CONTROL PERSON II: Installation and removal of 
  temporary/permanent signs, markers, delineators and crash 
  cushions. 

---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 LABO0261-004 06/30/2014 

MARIN COUNTY 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

Tunnel and Shaft Laborers:   
     GROUP 1.....................$ 34.60            19.49 
     GROUP 2.....................$ 34.37            19.49 

Page 29 of 42

1/29/2015http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/CA9.dvb?v=2



     GROUP 3.....................$ 34.12            19.49 
     GROUP 4.....................$ 33.67            19.49 
     GROUP 5.....................$ 33.13            19.49 
     Shotcrete Specialist........$ 35.12            19.49 

TUNNEL AND SHAFT CLASSIFICATIONS  

  GROUP 1: Diamond driller; Groundmen; Gunite and shotcrete 
  nozzlemen 

  GROUP 2: Rodmen; Shaft work & raise (below actual or 
  excavated ground level) 

  GROUP 3: Bit grinder; Blaster, driller, powdermen, heading; 
  Cherry pickermen - where car is lifted; Concrete finisher 
  in tunnel; Concrete screedman; Grout pumpman and potman; 
  Gunite & shotcrete gunman & potman; Headermen; High 
  pressure nozzleman; Miner - tunnel, including top and 
  bottom man on shaft and raise work; Nipper; Nozzleman on 
  slick line; Sandblaster - potman, Robotic Shotcrete Placer, 
  Segment Erector, Tunnel Muck Hauler, Steel Form raiser and 
  setter; Timberman, retimberman (wood or steel or substitute 
  materials therefore); Tugger (for tunnel laborer work); 
  Cable tender; Chuck tender; Powderman - primer house 

  GROUP 4: Vibrator operator, pavement breaker; Bull gang - 
  muckers, trackmen; Concrete crew - includes rodding and 
  spreading, Dumpmen (any method) 

  GROUP 5: Grout crew; Reboundman; Swamper/ Brakeman 

---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 LABO0261-007 06/30/2014 

MARIN COUNTY 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

LABORER   
     Mason Tender-Brick..........$ 32.36            17.34 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 LABO0324-004 06/30/2014 

NAPA, SOLANO, AND SONOMA, COUNTIES 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

LABORER (TRAFFIC CONTROL/LANE    
CLOSURE)   
     Escort Driver, Flag Person..$ 27.14            19.03 
     Traffic Control Person I....$ 27.44            19.03 
     Traffic Control Person II...$ 24.94            19.03 

  TRAFFIC CONTROL PERSON I: Layout of traffic control, crash 
  cushions, construction area and roadside signage. 

  TRAFFIC CONTROL PERSON II: Installation and removal of 
  temporary/permanent signs, markers, delineators and crash 
  cushions. 

Page 30 of 42

1/29/2015http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/CA9.dvb?v=2















PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER...............$ 34.60            10.50 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 PLUM0355-001 07/01/2014 

ALPINE, AMADOR, BUTTE, COLUSA, EL DORADO, GLENN, LASSEN, MODOC, 
NAPA, NEVADA, PLACER, PLUMAS, SACRAMENTO, SHASTA, SIERRA, 
SISKIYOU, SOLANO, SUTTER, TEHAMA, TRINITY, YOLO, AND YUBA 
COUNTIES 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

Underground Utility Worker   
     /Landscape Fitter...........$ 28.55             9.25 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 PLUM0442-003 07/01/2014 

AMADOR (South of San Joaquin River) and ALPINE COUNTIES 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

PLUMBER..........................$ 38.00            25.39 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 PLUM0447-001 07/01/2013 

AMADOR (north of San Joaquin River), EL DORADO (excluding Lake 
Tahoe area), NEVADA (excluding Lake Tahoe area); PLACER 
(excluding Lake Tahoe area), SACRAMENTO AND YOLO COUNTIES 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER   
     Journeyman..................$ 41.77            22.35 
     Light Commercial Work.......$ 32.23            17.22 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 ROOF0081-006 08/01/2014 

MARIN, NAPA, SOLANO AND SONOMA COUNTIES 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

Roofer...........................$ 35.06            13.89 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 ROOF0081-007 08/01/2014 

ALPINE, BUTTE, COLUSA, EL DORADO, GLENN,LASSEN, MODOC, NEVADA, 
PLACER, PLUMAS, SACRAMENTO, SHASTA, SIERRA, SISKIYOU, SUTTER, 
TEHAMA, TRINITY, YOLO, AND YUBA COUNTIES 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

Roofer...........................$ 33.23            13.79 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
* SFCA0483-003 01/01/2015 

MARIN, NAPA, SOLANO AND SONOMA COUNTIES 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

Page 37 of 42

1/29/2015http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/CA9.dvb?v=2





                                  Rates          Fringes 

SHEET METAL WORKER (Metal    
Decking and Siding only).........$ 33.86            31.83 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 SHEE0104-019 07/01/2014 

BUTTE, GLENN, LASSEN, MODOC, PLUMAS, SHASTA, SIERRA, SISKIYOU 
AND TEHAMA COUNTIES 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

SHEET METAL WORKER   
     Mechanical Jobs $200,000 &  
     under.......................$ 29.88            28.75 
     Mechanical Jobs over  
     $200,000....................$ 39.05            31.24 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 TEAM0094-001 07/01/2014 

                                  Rates          Fringes 

Truck drivers:   
     GROUP 1.....................$ 27.96            24.28 
     GROUP 2.....................$ 28.26            24.28 
     GROUP 3.....................$ 28.56            24.28 
     GROUP 4.....................$ 28.91            24.28 
     GROUP 5.....................$ 29.26            24.28 

FOOTNOTES:    
  Articulated dump truck; Bulk cement spreader (with or without 
  auger); Dumpcrete truck; Skid truck (debris box); Dry 
  pre-batch concrete mix trucks; Dumpster or similar type; 
  Slurry truck: Use dump truck yardage rate. 
  Heater planer; Asphalt burner; Scarifier burner; Industrial 
  lift truck (mechanical tailgate); Utility and clean-up 
  truck: Use appropriate rate for the power unit or the 
  equipment utilized. 

TRUCK DRIVER CLASSIFICATIONS   

  GROUP 1: Dump trucks, under 6 yds.; Single unit flat rack (2- 
  axle unit); Nipper truck (when flat rack truck is used 
  appropriate flat rack shall apply); Concrete pump truck 
  (when flat rack truck is used appropriate flat rack shall 
  apply); Concrete pump machine; Fork lift and lift jitneys; 
  Fuel and/or grease truck driver or fuel person; Snow buggy; 
  Steam cleaning; Bus or personhaul driver; Escort or pilot 
  car driver; Pickup truck; Teamster oiler/greaser and/or 
  serviceperson; Hook tender (including loading and 
  unloading); Team driver; Tool room attendant (refineries) 

  GROUP 2: Dump trucks, 6 yds. and under 8 yds.; Transit 
  mixers, through 10 yds.; Water trucks, under 7,000 gals.; 
  Jetting trucks, under 7,000 gals.; Single-unit flat rack 
  (3-axle unit); Highbed heavy duty transport; Scissor truck; 
  Rubber-tired muck car (not self-loaded); Rubber-tired truck 
  jumbo; Winch truck and "A" frame drivers; Combination winch 

Page 39 of 42

1/29/2015http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/CA9.dvb?v=2



  truck with hoist; Road oil truck or bootperson; 
  Buggymobile; Ross, Hyster and similar straddle carriers; 
  Small rubber-tired tractor 

  GROUP 3: Dump trucks, 8 yds. and including 24 yds.; Transit 
  mixers, over 10 yds.; Water trucks, 7,000 gals. and over; 
  Jetting trucks, 7,000 gals. and over; Vacuum trucks under 
  7500 gals. Trucks towing tilt bed or flat bed pull 
  trailers; Lowbed heavy duty transport; Heavy duty transport 
  tiller person; Self- propelled street sweeper with 
  self-contained refuse bin; Boom truck - hydro-lift or 
  Swedish type extension or retracting crane; P.B. or similar 
  type self-loading truck; Tire repairperson; Combination 
  bootperson and road oiler; Dry distribution truck (A 
  bootperson when employed on such equipment, shall receive 
  the rate specified for the classification of road oil 
  trucks or bootperson); Ammonia nitrate distributor, driver 
  and mixer; Snow Go and/or plow 

  GROUP 4: Dump trucks, over 25 yds. and under 65 yds.; Water 
  pulls - DW 10's, 20's, 21's and other similar equipment 
  when pulling Aqua/pak or water tank trailers; Helicopter 
  pilots (when transporting men and materials); Lowbedk Heavy 
  Duty Transport up to including 7 axles; DW10's, 20's, 21's 
  and other similar Cat type, Terra Cobra, LeTourneau Pulls, 
  Tournorocker, Euclid and similar type equipment when 
  pulling fuel and/or grease tank trailers or other 
  miscellaneous trailers; Vacuum Trucks 7500 gals and over 
  and truck repairman 

  GROUP 5: Dump trucks, 65 yds. and over; Holland hauler; Low 
  bed Heavy Duty Transport over 7 axles 

---------------------------------------------------------------- 

WELDERS - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing 
operation to which welding is incidental. 

================================================================ 

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within 
the scope of the classifications listed may be added after 
award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses 
(29CFR 5.5 (a) (1) (ii)). 

---------------------------------------------------------------- 

The body of each wage determination lists the classification 
and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the 
cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage 
determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical 
order of "identifiers" that indicate whether the particular 
rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local), 
a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate 
(weighted union average rate). 

Union Rate Identifiers 

Page 40 of 42

1/29/2015http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/CA9.dvb?v=2





                   WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS 

1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can 
be: 

*  an existing published wage determination 
*  a survey underlying a wage determination 
*  a Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on 
   a wage determination matter 
*  a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling 

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests 
for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour 
Regional Office for the area in which the survey was conducted 
because those Regional Offices have responsibility for the 
Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this initial 
contact is not satisfactory, then the process described in 2.) 
and 3.) should be followed. 

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal 
process described here, initial contact should be with the 
Branch of Construction Wage Determinations.  Write to: 

            Branch of Construction Wage Determinations 
            Wage and Hour Division 
            U.S. Department of Labor 
            200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. 
            Washington, DC 20210 

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an 
interested party (those affected by the action) can request 
review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator 
(See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to: 

            Wage and Hour Administrator 
            U.S. Department of Labor 
            200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. 
            Washington, DC 20210 

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the 
interested party's position and by any information (wage 
payment data, project description, area practice material, 
etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue. 

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an 
interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative 
Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board).  Write to: 

            Administrative Review Board 
            U.S. Department of Labor 
            200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. 
            Washington, DC 20210 

4.) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final. 

================================================================ 

          END OF GENERAL DECISION� 

Page 42 of 42

1/29/2015http://www.wdol.gov/wdol/scafiles/davisbacon/CA9.dvb?v=2



 

 

 
 

CITY OF COLFAX 
 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

 

PART II 

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 

& 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 

FOR 
 

UPRR PED XING AND BIKE PATH IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

CITY PROJECT NO. 12-01.02,  

FEDERAL AID PROJECT NO. CML-5187(007) 
 

IN 
 

COLFAX, CA  

 

 
 

 

For use in conjunction with federally funded Local Assistance construction projects administered under the 

2010 Standard Specifications and 2010 Standard Plans of the California Department of Transportation, the 

Labor Surcharge and Equipment Rental Rates in effect on the date the work is accomplished, and the Placer 

County Land Development Manual, insofar as the same may apply and in accordance with the Special 

and Technical Provisions 
 







II-4 

 

SCHEDULE OF VALUES 01301 

PROGRESS SCHEDULES 01310 

QUALITY CONTROL  01400 

CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES AND TEMPORARY CONTROLS 01500 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROLS 01560 

EARTH MATERIALS CONTAINING LEAD 01561 

CONTRACT CLOSEOUT 01700 

RECORD DOCUMENTS 01720 

WARRANTIES 01740 

SITE PREPARATION 02200 

ABANDONMENT OF PIPELINES AND STRUCTURES, DEMOLITION 02090 

SITE PREPARATION 02100 

EXCAVATION SUPPORT SYSTEMS 02160 

EARTHWORK 02200 

PAVING  02500 

PRECAST CONCRETE STRUCTURE 02701 

TRAFFIC CONTROL 02800 

SITE RESTORATION 02930 

CONCRETE REINFORCEMENT 03200 

CAST-IN-PLACE CONCRETE 03300 

  







https://order.e-arc.com/arcEOC/PWELL_Main.asp?mem=23
https://order.e-arc.com/arcEOC/PWELL_Main.asp?mem=23
mailto:jim.fletter@ponticelloinc.com


II-8 

 

Base Bid 

1.* Mobilization LS 1   

2. 
Railroad Right-of-Entry Permit, Insurance & 

Flagging 
LS 1   

3. Traffic Control LS 1   

4. 
Water Pollution Control Plan & 

Implementation 
LS 1   

5. Construct Concrete Curb & Gutter LF 280   

6. Construct Concrete Sidewalk SF 1,300   

7. 
Construct Commercial Driveway (including 

Sidewalk) 
SF 800   

8. Construct Type C Corner Ramp EA 1   

9. Install ADA Detectable Warning Surface EA 15   

10. 
Place and Compact Soil between Curb & 

Sidewalk 
LS 1   

11. Construction Storm Drainage Facilities LS 1   

12. Road Dig-out SF 720   

13. Asphalt Grinding SF 15,000   

14. 
½” Type A PG 64-16 HMAC Leveling 

Course 
TON 228   

15. ½” PG 64-16 RHMA Final Course TON 341   

16. Install Pedestrian Barrier LS 1   

17. Install Signs, Posts and Markers LS 1   

18. Lane and Legend Thermostriping LS 1   

19. 4” Parking Stripes LF 300   

20. Curb Painting LF 300   

TOTAL OF BASE BID ITEMS*  

Additive Alternatives 

1A 
Excavation and Disposal of Tracks (Sheet 3, 

Add Alt. 2) 
LS 1   

2A 
Install Stamped Colored Asphalt Crosswalk 

(Sheet 5, Add Alt. 1) 
SF 1,783   

3A Place Stamped Concrete (Sheet 3, Add Alt. 1) SF 1,090   

4A Replace HMAC Final Course with RHMA TON 341   

TOTAL OF BASE BID ITEMS AND ADDITIVE ALT. ITEMS 1A, 2A, 3A & 4A*  

 

  







II-11 

 

 

UDBE Commitment Submittal 

 

Submit UDBE information on the “Local Agency Bidder-UDBE Commitment (Construction Contracts),” Exhibit 15-G(1), 

form included in the Bid book.  If the form is not submitted with the bid, remove the form from the Bid book before 

submitting your bid. 

 

If the UDBE Commitment form is not submitted with the bid, the apparent low bidder, the 2nd low bidder, and the 3rd low 

bidder must complete and submit the UDBE Commitment form to the Agency.  UDBE Commitment form must be received 

by the Agency no later than 4:00 p.m. on the 4th business day after bid opening. 

 

Other bidders do not need to submit the UDBE Commitment form unless the Agency requests it.  If the Agency requests you 

to submit a UDBE Commitment form, submit the completed form within 4 business days of the request. 

 

Submit written confirmation from each UDBE stating that it is participating in the contract.  Include confirmation with the 

UDBE Commitment form.  A copy of a UDBE's quote will serve as written confirmation that the UDBE is participating in 

the contract. 

 

If you do not submit the UDBE Commitment form within the specified time, the Agency finds your bid nonresponsive. 

 

Good Faith Efforts Submittal 

 

If you have not met the UDBE goal, complete and submit the “UDBE Information - Good Faith Efforts,” Exhibit 15-H, form 

with the bid showing that you made adequate good faith efforts to meet the goal.  Only good faith efforts directed towards 

obtaining participation by UDBEs will be considered.  If good faith efforts documentation is not submitted with the bid, it 

must be received by the Agency no later than 4:00 p.m. on the 4th business day after bid opening. 

 

If your UDBE Commitment form shows that you have met the UDBE goal or if you are required to submit the UDBE 

Commitment form, you must also submit good faith efforts documentation within the specified time to protect your eligibility 

for award of the contract in the event the Agency finds that the UDBE goal has not been met. 

 

Good faith efforts documentation must include the following information and supporting documents, as necessary: 

 

1. Items of work you have made available to UDBE firms.  Identify those items of work you might otherwise perform 

with its own forces and those items that have been broken down into economically feasible units to facilitate UDBE 

participation.  For each item listed, show the dollar value and percentage of the total contract.  It is your responsibility 

to demonstrate that sufficient work to meet the goal was made available to UDBE firms. 

2. Names of certified UDBEs and dates on which they were solicited to bid on the project.  Include the items of work 

offered.  Describe the methods used for following up initial solicitations to determine with certainty if the UDBEs 

were interested, and the dates of the follow-up.  Attach supporting documents such as copies of letters, memos, 

facsimiles sent, telephone logs, telephone billing statements, and other evidence of solicitation.  You are reminded to 

solicit certified UDBEs through all reasonable and available means and provide sufficient time to allow UDBEs to 

respond. 

3. Name of selected firm and its status as a UDBE for each item of work made available.  Include name, address, and 

telephone number of each UDBE that provided a quote and their price quote.  If the firm selected for the item is not a 

UDBE, provide the reasons for the selection. 

4. Name and date of each publication in which you requested UDBE participation for the project.  Attach copies of the 

published advertisements. 

5. Names of agencies and dates on which they were contacted to provide assistance in contacting, recruiting, and using 

UDBE firms.  If the agencies were contacted in writing, provide copies of supporting documents. 

6. List of efforts made to provide interested UDBEs with adequate information about the plans, specifications, and 

requirements of the contract to assist them in responding to a solicitation.  If you have provided information, identify 

the name of the UDBE assisted, the nature of the information provided, and date of contact.  Provide copies of 

supporting documents, as appropriate. 

7. List of efforts made to assist interested UDBEs in obtaining bonding, lines of credit, insurance, necessary equipment, 

supplies, and materials, excluding supplies and equipment that the UDBE subcontractor purchases or leases from the 

prime contractor or its affiliate.  If such assistance is provided by you, identify the name of the UDBE assisted, nature 

of the assistance offered, and date.  Provide copies of supporting documents, as appropriate. 

8. Any additional data to support demonstration of good faith efforts. 

 





II-13 

 

 

SECTION 5.  GENERAL  

SECTION 5-1.  MISCELLANEOUS 

5-1.01  LABOR NONDISCRIMINATION. -- Attention is directed to the following Notice that is required by Chapter 5 of 

Division 4 of Title 2, California Code of Regulations. 

NOTICE OF REQUIREMENT FOR NONDISCRIMINATION PROGRAM 

(GOV. CODE, SECTION 12990) 

Your attention is called to the "Nondiscrimination Clause", set forth in Section 7-1.01A(4), "Labor Nondiscrimination," of the 

Standard Specifications, which is applicable to all nonexempt state contracts and subcontracts, and to the "Standard California 

Nondiscrimination Construction Contract Specifications" set forth therein.  The Specifications are applicable to all nonexempt 

state construction contracts and subcontracts of $5,000 or more. 

5-1.02  PREVAILING WAGE. -- Attention is directed to Section 7-1.01A(2), "Prevailing Wage," of the Standard 

Specifications. 

The general prevailing wage rates determined by the Director of Industrial Relations, for the county or counties in which the 

work is to be done, are available at the City of Colfax, 33 S. Main Street, Colfax, CA 95713.  These wage rates are included in 

the Bid book for the project.  Changes, if any, to the general prevailing wage rates will be available at the same location. 

5-1.03  BUY AMERICA REQUIREMENTS. -- Attention is directed to the “Buy America” requirements of the Title 23 

United States Code, Section 313 and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto. In accordance with said law and regulations, all 

manufacturing processes for steel and iron materials furnished for incorporation into the work on this project shall occur in the 

United States; with the exception that pig iron and processed, pelletized and reduced iron ore manufactured outside of the 

United States may be used in the domestic manufacturing process for such steel and iron materials. The application of coatings, 

such as epoxy coating, galvanizing, painting, and any other coating that protects or enhances the value of such steel or iron 

materials shall be considered a manufacturing process subject to the “Buy America” requirements. A Certificate of Compliance, 

conforming to the provisions in Section 6-1.07, Certificates of Compliance, of the Standard Specifications, shall be furnished 

for steel and iron materials. The certificates, in addition to certifying that the materials comply with the specifications, shall 

also specifically certify that all manufacturing processes 

for the materials occurred in the United States, except for the exceptions allowed herein. The requirements imposed by said 

law and regulations do not prevent a minimal use of foreign steel and iron materials if the total combined cost of such materials 

used does not exceed one-tenth of one percent (0.1%) of the total contract cost or $2,500, whichever is greater. The Contractor 

shall furnish the Engineer acceptable documentation of the quantity and value of any foreign steel and iron prior to incorporating 

such materials into the work. 

5-1.04  REMOVAL OF ASBESTOS AND HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES. -- When the presence of asbestos or hazardous 

substances are not shown on the plans or indicated in the specifications and the Contractor encounters materials which the 

Contractor reasonably believes to be asbestos or a hazardous substance as defined in Section 25914.1 of the Health and Safety 

Code, and the asbestos or hazardous substance has not been rendered harmless, the Contractor may continue work in unaffected 

areas reasonably believed to be safe.  The Contractor shall immediately cease work in the affected area and report the condition 

to the Engineer in writing. 

In conformance with Section 25914.1 of the Health and Safety Code, removal of asbestos or hazardous substances including 

exploratory work to identify and determine the extent of the asbestos or hazardous substance will be performed by separate 

contract. 

If delay of work in the area delays the current controlling operation, the delay will be considered a right of way delay and the 

Contractor will be compensated for the delay in conformance with the provisions in Section 8-1.09, "Right of Way Delays," of 

the Standard Specifications. 

5-1.05  SUBCONTRACTOR AND DBE RECORDS 

The Contractor shall maintain records showing the name and business address of each first-tier subcontractor.  The records 

shall also show the name and business address of every DBE subcontractor, DBE vendor of materials and DBE trucking 

company, regardless of tier.  The records shall show the date of payment and the total dollar figure paid to all of these firms.  

DBE prime contractors shall also show the date of work performed by their own forces along with the corresponding dollar 

value of the work. 

Upon completion of the contract, a summary of these records shall be prepared on "Final Report-Utilization of Disadvantaged 

Business Enterprises (DBE), First Tier Subcontractors" Form CEM-2402(F) and certified correct by the Contractor or the 

Contractor's authorized representative, and shall be furnished to the Engineer.  The form shall be furnished to the Engineer 

within 90 days from the date of contract acceptance.  The amount of $10,000 will be withheld from payment until a   satisfactory 

form is submitted.  



II-14 

 

Prior to the fifteenth of each month, the Contractor shall submit documentation to the Engineer showing the amount paid to 

DBE trucking companies.  The Contractor shall also obtain and submit documentation to the Engineer showing the amount 

paid by DBE trucking companies to all firms, including owner-operators, for the leasing of trucks.  If the DBE leases trucks 

from a non-DBE, the Contactor may count only the fee or commission the DBE receives as a result of the lease arrangement.   

The Contractor shall also obtain and submit documentation to the Engineer showing the truck number, owner's name, California 

Highway Patrol CA number, and if applicable, the DBE certification number of the owner of the truck for all trucks used during 

that month.  This documentation shall be submitted on "Monthly DBE Trucking Verification" Form CEM-2404(F). 

5-1.06  DBE CERTIFICATION STATUS 

If a DBE subcontractor is decertified during the life of the project, the decertified subcontractor shall notify the Contractor in 

writing with the date of decertification.  If a subcontractor becomes a certified DBE during the life of the project, the 

subcontractor shall notify the Contractor in writing with the date of certification.  The Contractor shall furnish the written 

documentation to the Engineer. 

Upon completion of the contract, "Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) Certification Status Change" Form CEM-

2403(F) indicating the DBEs' existing certification status shall be signed and certified correct by the Contractor.  The 

certified form shall be furnished to the Engineer within 90 days from the date of contract acceptance. 

5-1.07  PERFORMANCE OF SUBCONTRACTORS 

The subcontractors listed by you in Bid  book shall list therein the name and address of each subcontractor to whom the bidder 

proposes to subcontract portions of the work in an amount in excess of one-half of one percent of the total bid or $10,000, 

whichever is greater, in accordance with the Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act, commencing with Section 4100 

of the Public Contract Code.  The bidder’s attention is invited to other provisions of the Act related to the imposition of penalties 

for a failure to observe its provisions by using unauthorized subcontractors or by making unauthorized substitutions. 

UDBEs must perform work or supply materials as listed in the “Local Agency Bidder - UDBE Commitment” form specified 

under Section 2, "Bidding," of these special provisions.  Do not terminate a UDBE listed subcontractor for convenience and 

perform the work with your own forces or obtain materials from other sources without prior written authorization from the 

Agency. 

The Agency grants authorization to use other forces or sources of materials for requests that show any of the following 

justifications: 

1. Listed UDBE fails or refuses to execute a written contract based on plans and specifications for the project. 

2. You stipulate a bond is a condition of executing the subcontract and the listed UDBE fails to meet your bond 

requirements. 

3. Work requires a contractor’s license and listed UDBE does not have a valid license under Contractors License Law. 

4. Listed UDBE fails or refuses to perform the work or furnish the listed materials. 

5. Listed UDBE's work is unsatisfactory and not in compliance with the contract. 

6. Listed UDBE delays or disrupts the progress of the work. 

7. Listed UDBE becomes bankrupt or insolvent. 

If a listed UDBE subcontractor is terminated, you must make good faith efforts to find another UDBE subcontractor to 

substitute for the original UDBE.  The substitute UDBE must perform at least the same amount of work as the original 

UDBE under the contract to the extent needed to meet the UDBE goal. 

The substitute UDBE must be certified as a DBE at the time of request for substitution. 

The Agency does not pay for work or material unless it is performed or supplied by the listed UDBE, unless the UDBE is 

terminated in accordance with this section. 

5-1.08  SUBCONTRACTING 

No subcontract releases the Contractor from the contract or relieves the Contractor of their responsibility for a subcontractor's 

work. 

If the Contractor violates Pub Cont Code § 4100 et seq., the City of Colfax may exercise the remedies provided under Pub 

Cont Code § 4110.  The City of Colfax may refer the violation to the Contractors State License Board as provided under Pub 

Cont Code § 4111. 

The Contractor shall perform work equaling at least 30 percent of the value of the original total bid with the Contractor’s own 

employees and equipment, owned or rented, with or without operators. 

Each subcontract must comply with the contract. 

Each subcontractor must have an active and valid State contractor's license with a classification appropriate for the work to 

be performed (Bus & Prof Code, § 7000 et seq.). 

Submit copies of subcontracts upon request by the Engineer. 



II-15 

 

Before subcontracted work starts, submit a Subcontracting Request form. 

Do not use a debarred contractor; a current list of debarred contractors is available at the Department of Industrial Relations' 

Web site. 

Upon request by the Engineer, immediately remove and not again use a subcontractor who fails to prosecute the work 

satisfactorily. 

Each subcontract and any lower tier subcontract that may in turn be made shall include the "Required Contract Provisions 

Federal-Aid Construction Contracts" in Section 14 of these special provisions.  Noncompliance shall be corrected.  Payment 

for subcontracted work involved will be withheld from progress payments due, or to become due, until correction is made.  

Failure to comply may result in termination of the contract. 

5-1.09  PROMPT PROGRESS PAYMENT TO SUBCONTRACTORS 

A prime contractor or subcontractor shall pay any subcontractor not later than 10 days of receipt of each progress payment in 

accordance with the provision in Section 7108.5 of the California Business and Professions Code concerning prompt payment 

to subcontractors.  The 10 days is applicable unless a longer period is agreed to in writing.  Any delay or postponement of 

payment over 30 days may take place only for good cause and with the agency’s prior written approval.  Any violation of 

Section 7108.5 shall subject the violating contractor or subcontractor to the penalties, sanction and other remedies of that 

section.  This requirement shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, administrative, or judicial remedies 

otherwise available to the contractor or subcontractor in the event of a dispute involving late payment or nonpayment by the 

prime contractor, deficient subcontract performance, or noncompliance by a subcontractor.   

5-1.10  PROMPT PAYMENT OF FUNDS WITHHELD TO SUBCONTRACTORS 

The agency shall hold retainage from the prime contractor and shall make prompt and regular incremental acceptances of 

portions, as determined by the agency, of the contract work, and pay retainage to the prime contractor based on these 

acceptances.  The prime contractor, or subcontractor, shall return all monies withheld in retention from a subcontractor within 

30 days after receiving payment for work satisfactorily completed and accepted including incremental acceptances of portions 

of the contract work by the agency.  Federal law (49CFR26.29) requires that any delay or postponement of payment over 30 

days may take place only for good cause and with the agency’s prior written approval.  Any violation of this provision shall 

subject the violating prime contractor or subcontractor to the penalties, sanctions and other remedies specified in Section 7108.5 

of the Business and Professions Code.  These requirements shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, 

administrative, or judicial remedies otherwise available to the prime contractor or subcontractor in the event of a dispute 

involving late payment or nonpayment by the prime contractor, deficient subcontract performance, or noncompliance by a 

subcontractor.   

5-1.11  PARTNERING  --  The City of Colfax will promote the formation of a "Partnering" relationship with the Contractor 

in order to effectively complete the contract to the benefit of both parties.  The purpose of this relationship will be to maintain 

cooperative communication and mutually resolve conflicts at the lowest possible management level. 

The Contractor may request the formation of such a "Partnering" relationship by submitting a request in writing to the Engineer 

after approval of the contract.  If the Contractor's request for "Partnering" is approved by the Engineer, scheduling of a 

"Partnering" workshop, selecting the "Partnering" facilitator and workshop site, and other administrative details shall be as 

agreed to by both parties. 

The costs involved in providing a facilitator and a workshop site will be borne equally by the City of Colfax and the Contractor.  

The Contractor shall pay all compensation for the wages and expenses of the facilitator, and of the expenses for obtaining the 

workshop site.  The State's share of such costs will be reimbursed to the Contractor in a change order written by the Engineer.  

Markups will not be added.  All other costs associated with the "Partnering" relationship will be borne separately by the party 

incurring the costs. 

The establishment of a "Partnering" relationship will not change or modify the terms and conditions of the contract and will 

not relieve either party of the legal requirements of the contract. 

5-1.12  QUALITY ASSURANCE  --  The Agency uses a Quality Assurance Program (QAP) to ensure a material is produced 

to comply with the Contract. You may examine the records and reports of tests the Agency performs if they are available at the 

job site. Schedule work to allow time for QAP.. 

  











II-10 

 

VII. Safety: Accident Prevention 
VIII.  False Statements Concerning Highway Projects 
IX. Implementation of Clean Air Act and Federal Water Pollution 

Control Act 
X.  Compliance with Governmentwide Suspension and Debarment 

Requirements 
XI.  Certification Regarding Use of Contract Funds for Lobbying 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Employment and Materials Preference for Appalachian Development 
Highway System or Appalachian Local Access Road Contracts (included 
in Appalachian contracts only) 
 
 
I.  GENERAL 
 
1.  Form FHWA-1273 must be physically incorporated in each 
construction contract funded under Title 23 (excluding emergency 
contracts solely intended for debris removal).  The contractor (or 
subcontractor) must insert this form in each subcontract and further 
require its inclusion in all lower tier subcontracts (excluding purchase 
orders, rental agreements and other agreements for supplies or 
services).   
 
The applicable requirements of Form FHWA-1273 are incorporated by 
reference for work done under any purchase order, rental agreement or 
agreement for other services.  The prime contractor shall be responsible 
for compliance by any subcontractor, lower-tier subcontractor or service 
provider.   
 
Form FHWA-1273 must be included in all Federal-aid design-build 
contracts, in all subcontracts and in lower tier subcontracts (excluding 
subcontracts for design services, purchase orders, rental agreements 
and other agreements for supplies or services).  The design-builder shall 
be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor, lower-tier 
subcontractor or service provider. 
  
Contracting agencies may reference Form FHWA-1273 in bid proposal 
or request for proposal documents, however, the Form FHWA-1273 must 
be physically incorporated (not referenced) in all contracts, subcontracts 
and lower-tier subcontracts (excluding purchase orders, rental 
agreements and other agreements for supplies or services related to a 
construction contract). 
 
2.  Subject to the applicability criteria noted in the following sections, 
these contract provisions shall apply to all work performed on the 
contract by the contractor's own organization and with the assistance of 
workers under the contractor's immediate superintendence and to all 
work performed on the contract by piecework, station work, or by 
subcontract. 
  
3.   A breach of any of the stipulations contained in these Required 
Contract Provisions may be sufficient grounds for withholding of progress 
payments, withholding of final payment, termination of the contract, 
suspension / debarment or any other action determined to be appropriate 
by the contracting agency and FHWA. 
 
4.  Selection of Labor: During the performance of this contract, the 
contractor shall not use convict labor for any purpose within the limits of 
a construction project on a Federal-aid highway unless it is labor 
performed by convicts who are on parole, supervised release, or 
probation.  The term Federal-aid highway does not include roadways 
functionally classified as local roads or rural minor collectors. 
 
 
II.  NONDISCRIMINATION 
 

The provisions of this section related to 23 CFR Part 230 are applicable 
to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related construction 
subcontracts of $10,000 or more.  The provisions of 23 CFR Part 230 are 
not applicable to material supply, engineering, or architectural service 
contracts.   
 
In addition, the contractor and all subcontractors must comply with the 
following policies: Executive Order 11246, 41 CFR 60, 29 CFR 1625-
1627, Title 23 USC Section 140, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as 
amended (29 USC 794), Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 
amended, and related regulations including 49 CFR Parts 21, 26 and 27; 
and 23 CFR Parts 200, 230, and 633. 
 
The contractor and all subcontractors must comply with:  the 
requirements of the Equal Opportunity Clause in 41 CFR 60-1.4(b) and, 
for all construction contracts exceeding $10,000, the Standard Federal 
Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications in 
41 CFR 60-4.3. 
 
Note: The U.S. Department of Labor has exclusive authority to determine 
compliance with Executive Order 11246 and the policies of the Secretary 
of Labor including 41 CFR 60, and 29 CFR 1625-1627.  The contracting 
agency and the FHWA have the authority and the responsibility to 
ensure compliance with Title 23 USC Section 140, the Rehabilitation Act 
of 1973, as amended (29 USC 794), and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964, as amended, and related regulations including 49 CFR Parts 21, 
26 and 27; and 23 CFR Parts 200, 230, and 633. 
 
The following provision is adopted from 23 CFR 230, Appendix A, with 
appropriate revisions to conform to the U.S. Department of Labor (US 
DOL) and FHWA requirements.   
 
1. Equal Employment Opportunity: Equal employment opportunity 
(EEO) requirements not to discriminate and to take affirmative action to 
assure equal opportunity as set forth under laws, executive orders, rules, 
regulations (28 CFR 35, 29 CFR 1630, 29 CFR 1625-1627, 41 CFR 60 
and 49 CFR 27) and orders of the Secretary of Labor as modified by the 
provisions prescribed herein, and imposed pursuant to 23 U.S.C. 140 
shall constitute the EEO and specific affirmative action standards for the 
contractor's project activities under this contract. The provisions of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) set 
forth under 28 CFR 35 and 29 CFR 1630 are incorporated by reference 
in this contract. In the execution of this contract, the contractor agrees to 
comply with the following minimum specific requirement activities of 
EEO: 
 

a. The contractor will work with the contracting agency and the Federal 
Government to ensure that it has made every good faith effort to provide 
equal opportunity with respect to all of its terms and conditions of 
employment and in their review of activities under the contract. 
 
    b. The contractor will accept as its operating policy the following 
statement: 
 

"It is the policy of this Company to assure that applicants are 
employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without 
regard to their race, religion, sex, color, national origin, age or 
disability.  Such action shall include: employment, upgrading, 
demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or 
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection 
for training, including apprenticeship, pre-apprenticeship, and/or on-
the-job training." 

 
2.  EEO Officer: The contractor will designate and make known to the 
contracting officers an EEO Officer who will have the responsibility for 

and must be capable of effectively administering and promoting an 
active EEO program and who must be assigned adequate authority and 
responsibility to do so

3.  Dissemination of Policy: All members of the contractor's staff 
who are authorized to hire, supervise, promote, and discharge 
employees, or who recommend such action, or who are substantially 
involved in such action, will be made fully cognizant of, and will 
implement, the contractor's EEO policy and contractual 
responsibilities to provide EEO in each grade and classification of 
employment.  To ensure that the above agreement will be met, the 
following actions will be taken as a minimum: 
 

a.  Periodic meetings of supervisory and personnel office 
employees will be conducted before the start of work and then not 
less often than once every six months, at which time the contractor's 

EEO policy and its implementation will be reviewed and explained.  
The meetings will be conducted by the EEO Officer. 
  

b.  All new supervisory or personnel office employees will be given 
a thorough indoctrination by the EEO Officer, covering all major 
aspects of the contractor's EEO obligations within thirty days 
following their reporting for duty with the contractor. 
 

c.  All personnel who are engaged in direct recruitment for the 
project will be instructed by the EEO Officer in the contractor's 
procedures for locating and hiring minorities and women. 
  



 

 

II-11 

 

d.  Notices and posters setting forth the contractor's EEO policy 
will be placed in areas readily accessible to employees, applicants 
for employment and potential employees. 
 

e.  The contractor's EEO policy and the procedures to implement 
such policy will be brought to the attention of employees by means 
of meetings, employee handbooks, or other appropriate means. 
 
4. Recruitment: When advertising for employees, the contractor will 
include in all advertisements for employees the notation: "An Equal 
Opportunity Employer."  All such advertisements will be placed in 
publications having a large circulation among minorities and women 
in the area from which the project work force would normally be 
derived. 
 

a.  The contractor will, unless precluded by a valid bargaining 
agreement, conduct systematic and direct recruitment through public 
and private employee referral sources likely to yield qualified 
minorities and women.  To meet this requirement, the contractor will 
identify sources of potential minority group employees, and establish 
with such identified sources procedures whereby minority and 
women applicants may be referred to the contractor for employment 
consideration. 
 

b.  In the event the contractor has a valid bargaining agreement 
providing for exclusive hiring hall referrals, the contractor is 
expected to observe the provisions of that agreement to the extent 
that the system meets the contractor's compliance with EEO 
contract provisions.  Where implementation of such an agreement 
has the effect of discriminating against minorities or women, or 
obligates the contractor to do the same, such implementation 
violates Federal nondiscrimination provisions. 
 

c.  The contractor will encourage its present employees to refer 
minorities and women as applicants for employment.  Information 
and procedures with regard to referring such applicants will be 
discussed with employees. 
 
5. Personnel Actions: Wages, working conditions, and employee 
benefits shall be established and administered, and personnel 
actions of every type, including hiring, upgrading, promotion, 
transfer, demotion, layoff, and termination, shall be taken without 
regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age or disability.  
The following procedures shall be followed: 
 

a.  The contractor will conduct periodic inspections of project sites 
to insure that working conditions and employee facilities do not 
indicate discriminatory treatment of project site personnel. 
 

b.  The contractor will periodically evaluate the spread of wages 
paid within each classification to determine any evidence of 
discriminatory wage practices. 
 

c.  The contractor will periodically review selected personnel 
actions in depth to determine whether there is evidence of 
discrimination.  Where evidence is found, the contractor will 
promptly take corrective action.  If the review indicates that the 
discrimination may extend beyond the actions reviewed, such 
corrective action shall include all affected persons. 
 

d.  The contractor will promptly investigate all complaints of 
alleged discrimination made to the contractor in connection with its 
obligations under this contract, will attempt to resolve such 
complaints, and will take appropriate corrective action within a 
reasonable time.  If the investigation indicates that the discrimination 
may affect persons other than the complainant, such corrective 
action shall include such other persons.  Upon completion of each 
investigation, the contractor will inform every complainant of all of 
their avenues of appeal. 
 
6. Training and Promotion: 
 

a.  The contractor will assist in locating, qualifying, and increasing 
the skills of minorities and women who are applicants for 
employment or current employees.  Such efforts should be aimed at 

developing full journey level status employees in the type of trade or 
job classification involved.  
 

b.  Consistent with the contractor's work force requirements and 
as permissible under Federal and State regulations, the contractor 
shall make full use of training programs, i.e., apprenticeship, and on-
the-job training programs for the geographical area of contract 
performance.  In the event a special provision for training is provided 
under this contract, this subparagraph will be superseded as 
indicated in the special provision.  The contracting agency may 
reserve training positions for persons who receive welfare 
assistance in accordance with 23 U.S.C. 140(a). 
 

c.  The contractor will advise employees and applicants for 
employment of available training programs and entrance 
requirements for each. 
 

d.  The contractor will periodically review the training and 
promotion potential of employees who are minorities and women 
and will encourage eligible employees to apply for such training and 
promotion. 
 
7. Unions: If the contractor relies in whole or in part upon unions as 
a source of employees, the contractor will use good faith efforts to 
obtain the cooperation of such unions to increase opportunities for 
minorities and women.  Actions by the contractor, either directly or 
through a contractor's association acting as agent, will include the 
procedures set forth below: 
 

a.  The contractor will use good faith efforts to develop, in 
cooperation with the unions, joint training programs aimed toward 
qualifying more minorities and women for membership in the unions 
and increasing the skills of minorities and women so that they may 
qualify for higher paying employment. 
 

b.  The contractor will use good faith efforts to incorporate an EEO 
clause into each union agreement to the end that such union will be 
contractually bound to refer applicants without regard to their race, 
color, religion, sex, national origin, age or disability. 
 

c.  The contractor is to obtain information as to the referral 
practices and policies of the labor union except that to the extent 
such information is within the exclusive possession of the labor 
union and such labor union refuses to furnish such information to the 
contractor, the contractor shall so certify to the contracting agency 
and shall set forth what efforts have been made to obtain such 
information. 
 

d.  In the event the union is unable to provide the contractor with a 
reasonable flow of referrals within the time limit set forth in the 
collective bargaining agreement, the contractor will, through 
independent recruitment efforts, fill the employment vacancies 
without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age or 
disability; making full efforts to obtain qualified and/or qualifiable 
minorities and women.  The failure of a union to provide sufficient 
referrals (even though it is obligated to provide exclusive referrals 
under the terms of a collective bargaining agreement) does not 
relieve the contractor from the requirements of this paragraph.   In 
the event the union referral practice prevents the contractor from 
meeting the obligations pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as 
amended, and these special provisions, such contractor shall 
immediately notify the contracting agency. 
 
8.  Reasonable Accommodation for Applicants / Employees 
with Disabilities:  The contractor must be familiar with the 
requirements for and comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act 
and all rules and regulations established there under.  Employers 
must provide reasonable accommodation in all employment 
activities unless to do so would cause an undue hardship. 
 
9. Selection of Subcontractors, Procurement of Materials and 
Leasing of Equipment: The contractor shall not discriminate on the 
grounds of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age or disability 
in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including 
procurement of materials and leases of equipment.  The contractor 



http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/eforms/




 

 

II-14 

 

full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth 
in Regulations, 29 CFR part 3; 

(iii) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less 
than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash 
equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified 
in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the 
contract. 

(3) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification 
set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WHï347 shall 
satisfy the requirement for submission of the ñStatement of 
Complianceò required by paragraph 3.b.(2) of this section. 

(4) The falsification of any of the above certifications may 
subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal 
prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of title 
31 of the United States Code. 

c. The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required 
under paragraph 3.a. of this section available for inspection, 
copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the 
contracting agency, the State DOT, the FHWA,  or the Department 
of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview 
employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or 
subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them 
available, the FHWA may, after written notice to the contractor, the 
contracting agency or the State DOT, take such action as may be 
necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, 
advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the 
required records upon request or to make such records available 
may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12. 

4.  Apprentices and trainees  

a. Apprentices (programs of the USDOL).  

Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined 
rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant 
to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program 
registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and 
Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer 
and Labor Services, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency 
recognized by the Office, or if a person is employed in his or her first 
90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an 
apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the 
program, but who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship 
Training, Employer and Labor Services or a State Apprenticeship 
Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary 
employment as an apprentice.  

 The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in 
any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to 
the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered 
program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, 
who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall 
be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage 
determination for the classification of work actually performed. In 
addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of 
the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not 
less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the 
work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing 
construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its 
program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in 
percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the 
contractor's or subcontractor's registered program shall be 
observed.  

 Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in 
the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, 

expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified 
in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid 
fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the 
apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not 
specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of 
fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable 
classification. If the Administrator determines that a different practice 
prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be 
paid in accordance with that determination.  

In the event the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and 
Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the 
Office, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the 
contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less 
than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until 
an acceptable program is approved. 

b. Trainees (programs of the USDOL).  

Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to 
work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed 
unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in 
a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal 
certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and 
Training Administration.  

The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be 
greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment 
and Training Administration.  

Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the 
approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a 
percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable 
wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in 
accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee 
program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the 
full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination 
unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines 
that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the 
corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination 
which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any 
employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered 
and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and 
Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable 
wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work 
actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the 
job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program 
shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage 
determination for the work actually performed.  

In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws 
approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be 
permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable 
predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable 
program is approved. 

c. Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, 
trainees and journeymen under this part shall be in conformity with 
the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 
11246, as amended, and 29 CFR part 30. 

d.  Apprentices and Trainees (programs of the U.S. DOT). 

Apprentices and trainees working under apprenticeship and skill 
training programs which have been certified by the Secretary of 
Transportation as promoting EEO in connection with Federal-aid 
highway construction programs are not subject to the requirements 
of paragraph 4 of this Section IV. The straight time hourly wage 
rates for apprentices and trainees under such programs will be 
established by the particular programs. The ratio of apprentices and 



 

 

II-15 

 

trainees to journeymen shall not be greater than permitted by the 
terms of the particular program. 

5. Compliance with Copeland Act requirements.   The contractor 
shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 3, which are 
incorporated by reference in this contract. 

6. Subcontracts.   The contractor or subcontractor shall insert Form 
FHWA-1273 in any subcontracts and also require the subcontractors 
to include Form FHWA-1273 in any lower tier subcontracts. The 
prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any 
subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract 
clauses in 29 CFR 5.5. 

7. Contract termination: debarment.   A breach of the contract 
clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the 
contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as 
provided in 29 CFR 5.12. 

8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements.  
All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts 
contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by 
reference in this contract. 

9. Disputes concerning labor standards. Disputes arising out of 
the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to 
the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be 
resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of 
Labor set forth in 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the 
meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or 
any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S. 
Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives. 

10. Certification of eligibility. 

a. By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it 
(nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the 
contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded 
Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon 
Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1). 

b. No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or 
firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of 
section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1). 

c. The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. 
Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001. 

 
 
V.   CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT  

The following clauses apply to any Federal-aid construction contract 
in an amount in excess of $100,000 and subject to the overtime 
provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. 
These clauses shall be inserted in addition to the clauses required 
by 29 CFR 5.5(a) or 29 CFR 4.6.  As used in this paragraph, the 
terms laborers and mechanics include watchmen and guards. 

1. Overtime requirements.   No contractor or subcontractor 
contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or 
involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or 
permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or 
she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in 
such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives 
compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the 
basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such 
workweek. 

2. Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages.  In 
the event of any violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1.) of 
this section, the contractor and any subcontractor responsible 
therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such 
contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in 
the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or 
a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated 
damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect 
to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and 
guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph 
(1.) of this section, in the sum of $10 for each calendar day on which 
such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the 
standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime 
wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1.) of this 
section. 

3. Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The 
FHWA or the contacting agency shall upon its own action or upon 
written request of an authorized representative of the Department of 
Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable 
on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor 
under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same 
prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to 
the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by 
the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be 
necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or 
subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided 
in the clause set forth in paragraph (2.) of this section. 

4. Subcontracts.  The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any 
subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraph (1.) through (4.) of 
this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include 
these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor 
shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower 
tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1.) 
through (4.) of this section. 

 
 
 
 
VI. SUBLETTING OR ASSIGNING THE CONTRACT 
 
This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts 
on the National Highway System. 
 
1. The contractor shall perform with its own organization contract 
work amounting to not less than 30 percent (or a greater percentage 
if specified elsewhere in the contract) of the total original contract 
price, excluding any specialty items designated by the contracting 
agency.  Specialty items may be performed by subcontract and the 
amount of any such specialty items performed may be deducted 
from the total original contract price before computing the amount of 
work required to be performed by the contractor's own organization 
(23 CFR 635.116). 
 

a.  The term ñperform work with its own organizationò refers to 
workers employed or leased by the prime contractor, and equipment 
owned or rented by the prime contractor, with or without operators.  
Such term does not include employees or equipment of a 
subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor, agents of the prime 
contractor, or any other assignees.  The term may include payments 
for the costs of hiring leased employees from an employee leasing 
firm meeting all relevant Federal and State regulatory requirements.  
Leased employees may only be included in this term if the prime 
contractor meets all of the following conditions: 
 
  (1) the prime contractor maintains control over 
the supervision of the day-to-day activities of the leased employees; 

(2) the prime contractor remains responsible for the quality of 
the work of the leased employees; 

 (3) the prime contractor retains all power to accept or exclude 
individual employees from work on the project; and 





 

 

II-17 

 

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts, 
design-build contracts, subcontracts, lower-tier subcontracts, 
purchase orders, lease agreements, consultant contracts or any 
other covered transaction requiring FHWA approval or that is 
estimated to cost $25,000 or more ï  as defined in 2 CFR Parts 180 
and 1200. 
 
 
 
  1. Instructions for Certification – First Tier Participants:  
  
    a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective first 
tier participant is providing the certification set out below. 
 
    b. The inability of a person to provide the certification set out 
below will not necessarily result in denial of participation in this 
covered transaction. The prospective first tier participant shall 
submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set 
out below. The certification or explanation will be considered in 
connection with the department or agency's determination whether 
to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective first 
tier participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall 
disqualify such a person from participation in this transaction. 
 
    c. The certification in this clause is a material representation of 
fact upon which reliance was placed when the contracting agency 
determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that 
the prospective participant knowingly rendered an erroneous 
certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal 
Government, the contracting agency may terminate this transaction 
for cause of default. 
 
    d. The prospective first tier participant shall provide immediate 
written notice to the contracting agency to whom this proposal is 
submitted if any time the prospective first tier participant learns that 
its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become 
erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 
 
    e. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," 
"ineligible," "participant," "person,"  "principal," and "voluntarily 
excluded," as used in this clause, are defined in 2 CFR Parts 180 
and 1200.  ñFirst Tier Covered Transactionsò refers to any covered 
transaction between a grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds and a 
participant (such as the prime or general contract).  ñLower Tier 
Covered Transactionsò refers to any covered transaction under a 
First Tier Covered Transaction (such as subcontracts).  ñFirst Tier 
Participantò refers to the participant who has entered into a covered 
transaction with a grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds (such as 
the prime or general contractor).  ñLower Tier Participantò refers any 
participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a First 
Tier Participant or other Lower Tier Participants (such as 
subcontractors and suppliers).  
 
    f. The prospective first tier participant agrees by submitting this 
proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered 
into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered 
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared 
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered 
transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency entering 
into this transaction. 
 
    g. The prospective first tier participant further agrees by 
submitting this proposal that it will include the clause titled 
"Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and 
Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by 
the department or contracting agency, entering into this covered 
transaction, without modification, in all lower tier covered 
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered 
transactions exceeding the $25,000 threshold. 
 
    h. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a 
certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered 
transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the 
certification is erroneous.  A participant is responsible for ensuring 

that its principals are not suspended, debarred, or otherwise 
ineligible to participate in covered transactions.  To verify the 
eligibility of its principals, as well as the eligibility of any lower tier 
prospective participants, each participant may, but is not required to, 
check the Excluded Parties List System website 
(https://www.epls.gov/), which is compiled by the General Services 
Administration. 
 
    i.  Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require 
the establishment of a system of records in order to render in good 
faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and 
information of the prospective participant is not required to exceed 
that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the 
ordinary course of business dealings. 
 
    j. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph (f) of these 
instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly 
enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies 
available to the Federal Government, the department or agency may 
terminate this transaction for cause or default. 
 
* * * * * 
 
2.  Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility 
and Voluntary Exclusion – First Tier Participants: 
 
a.  The prospective first tier participant certifies to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, that it and its principals: 
 
    (1)   Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participating in covered transactions by any Federal department or 
agency; 
 
    (2)   Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal 
been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for 
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with 
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, 
State or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; 
violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of 
embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of 
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 
 
    (3)   Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly 
charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with 
commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (a)(2) 
of this certification; and 
 
    (4)   Have not within a three-year period preceding this 
application/proposal had one or more public transactions (Federal, 
State or local) terminated for cause or default. 
 
  b.   Where the prospective participant is unable to certify to any of 
the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall 
attach an explanation to this proposal. 
 
  2. Instructions for Certification - Lower Tier Participants: 
 
(Applicable to all subcontracts, purchase orders and other lower tier 
transactions requiring prior FHWA approval or estimated to cost 
$25,000 or more - 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200) 
 
    a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower 
tier is providing the certification set out below. 
 
    b. The certification in this clause is a material representation of 
fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was 
entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier 
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition 
to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the 
department, or agency with which this transaction originated may 
pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment. 
 

https://www.epls.gov/


 

 

II-18 

 

    c. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate 
written notice to the person to which this proposal is submitted if at 
any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its 
certification was erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 
 
    d. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," 
"ineligible," "participant," "person," "principal," and "voluntarily 
excluded," as used in this clause, are defined in 2 CFR Parts 180 
and 1200.  You may contact the person to which this proposal is 
submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations.  
ñFirst Tier Covered Transactionsò refers to any covered transaction 
between a grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds and a participant 
(such as the prime or general contract).  ñLower Tier Covered 
Transactionsò refers to any covered transaction under a First Tier 
Covered Transaction (such as subcontracts).  ñFirst Tier Participantò 
refers to the participant who has entered into a covered transaction 
with a grantee or subgrantee of Federal funds (such as the prime or 
general contractor).  ñLower Tier Participantò refers any participant 
who has entered into a covered transaction with a First Tier 
Participant or other Lower Tier Participants (such as subcontractors 
and suppliers). 
 
    e. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this 
proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered 
into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered 
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared 
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered 
transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with 
which this transaction originated. 
 
    f. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by 
submitting this proposal that it will include this clause titled 
"Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and 
Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transaction," without 
modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all 
solicitations for lower tier covered transactions exceeding the 
$25,000 threshold. 
 
    g. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a 
certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered 
transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the 
certification is erroneous. A participant is responsible for ensuring 
that its principals are not suspended, debarred, or otherwise 
ineligible to participate in covered transactions.  To verify the 
eligibility of its principals, as well as the eligibility of any lower tier 
prospective participants, each participant may, but is not required to, 
check the Excluded Parties List System website 
(https://www.epls.gov/), which is compiled by the General Services 
Administration.   
 
    h. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require 
establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith 
the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and 
information of participant is not required to exceed that which is 
normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of 
business dealings. 
 
    i. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph e of these 
instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly 
enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies 
available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with 
which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, 
including suspension and/or debarment. 
 
* * * * * 
 
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility 
and Voluntary Exclusion--Lower Tier Participants: 
 
  1. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of 
this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, 
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from participating in covered transactions by 
any Federal department or agency. 
 
  2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to 
any of the statements in this certification, such prospective 
participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 
 
* * * * * 
 
XI. CERTIFICATION REGARDING USE OF CONTRACT FUNDS 
FOR LOBBYING 
 
This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts 
and to all related subcontracts which exceed $100,000 (49 CFR 20). 
 
  1. The prospective participant certifies, by signing and submitting 
this bid or proposal, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, 
that: 
 
    a. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, 
by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal 
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, 
or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the 
awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, 
the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative 
agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, 
or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative 
agreement. 
 
    b. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been 
paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to 
influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member 
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of 
a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, 
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall 
complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to 
Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions. 
 
  2. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which 
reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into.  
Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or 
entering into this transaction imposed by 31 U.S.C. 1352.  Any 
person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a 
civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 
for each such failure. 
 
  3. The prospective participant also agrees by submitting its bid or 
proposal that the participant shall require that the language of this 
certification be included in all lower tier subcontracts, which exceed 
$100,000 and that all such recipients shall certify and disclose 
accordingly. 
 

https://www.epls.gov/






 

II-21 

 
 

FEDERAL REQUIREMENT TRAINING SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 _______________________________________________________________________________________________  

 

 

FEDERAL REQUIREMENT TRAINING SPECIAL 

PROVISION. -- As part of the Contractor's equal 

employment opportunity affirmative action program, training 

shall be provided as follows: 

 

The Contractor shall provide on-the-job training to 

develop full journeymen in the types of trades or job 

classification involved. 

The goal for the number of trainees or apprentices to be 

trained under the requirements of this special provision will 

be    0   . 

In the event the Contractor subcontracts a portion of the 

contract work, he shall determine how many, if any, of the 

trainees or apprentices are to be trained by the subcontractor, 

provided however, that the Contractor shall retain the 

primary responsibility for meeting the training requirements 

imposed by this special provision.  The Contractor shall also 

insure that this Training Special Provision is made 

applicable to such subcontract.  Where feasible, 25 percent 

of trainees or apprentices in each occupation shall be in their 

first year of apprenticeship or training. 

The number of trainees or apprentices shall be 

distributed among the work classifications on the basis of the 

Contractor's needs and the availability of journeymen in the 

various classifications within a reasonable area of 

recruitment.  Prior to commencing work, the Contractor shall 

submit to the Department for approval the number of 

trainees or apprentices to be trained in each selected 

classification and training program to be used.  Furthermore, 

the Contractor shall specify the starting time for training in 

each of the classifications.  The Contractor will be credited 

for each trainee or apprentice employed by him on the 

contract work who is currently enrolled or becomes enrolled 

in an approved program and will be reimbursed for such 

trainees or apprentices as provided hereinafter. 

Training and upgrading of minorities and women 

toward journeymen status is a primary objective of this 

Training Special Provision.  Accordingly, the Contractor 

shall make every effort to enroll minority and women 

trainees or apprentices (e.g., by conducting systematic and 

direct recruitment through public and private sources likely 

to yield minority and women trainees or apprentices) to the 

extent such persons are available within a reasonable area of 

recruitment.  The Contractor will be responsible for 

demonstrating the steps that he has taken in pursuance 

thereof, prior to a determination as to whether the Contractor 

is in compliance with this Training Special Provision.  This 

training commitment is not intended, and shall not be used, 

to discriminate against any applicant for training, whether a 

member of a minority group or not.

 

No employee shall be employed as a trainee or 

apprentice in any classification in which he has successfully 

completed a training course leading to journeyman status or 

in which he has been employed as a journeyman.  The 

Contractor should satisfy this requirement by including 

appropriate questions in the employee application or by 

other suitable means.  Regardless of the method used the 

Contractor's records should document the findings in each 

case. 

The minimum length and type of training for each 

classification will be as established in the training program 

selected by the Contractor and approved by both the 

Department and the Federal Highway Administration. The 

Department and the Federal Highway Administration will 

approve a program if it is reasonably calculated to meet the 

equal employment opportunity obligations of the Contractor 

and to qualify the average trainee or apprentice for 

journeyman status in the classification concerned by the end 

of the training period. Furthermore, apprenticeship programs 

registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of 

Apprenticeship and Training, or with the State of California, 

Department of Industrial Relations, Division of 

Apprenticeship Standards recognized by the Bureau and 

training programs approved but not necessarily sponsored by 

the U.S. Department of Labor, Manpower Administration, 

Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training shall also be 

considered acceptable provided it is being administered in a 

manner consistent with the equal employment obligations of 

Federal-aid highway construction contracts.  Approval or 

acceptance of a training program shall be obtained from the 

State prior to commencing work on the classification 

covered by the program.  It is the intention of these 

provisions that training is to be provided in the construction 

crafts rather than clerk-typists or secretarial-type positions.  

Training is permissible in lower level management positions 

such as office engineers, estimators, timekeepers, etc., where 

the training is oriented toward construction applications.  

Training in the laborer classification may be permitted 

provided that significant and meaningful training is provided 

and approved by the division office.  Some 

offsite training is permissible as long as the training is 

an integral part of an approved training program and does 

not comprise a significant part of the overall training. 

Except as otherwise noted below, the Contractor will be 

reimbursed 80 cents per hour of training given an employee 

on this contract in accordance with an approved training 

program.  As approved by the Engineer, reimbursement 

will be made for training of persons in excess of the 

number specified herein.



 

II-22 

 

 

FR-15 
 

This reimbursement will be made even though the Contractor receives additional training program funds from other sources, 

provided such other source does not specifically prohibit the Contractor from receiving other reimbursement.  Reimbursement for offsite 

training indicated above may only be made to the Contractor where he does one or more of the following and the trainees or apprentices 

are concurrently employed on a Federal-aid project; contributes to the cost of the training, provides the instruction to the trainee or 

apprentice or pays the trainee's or apprentice's wages during the offsite training period. 

No payment shall be made to the Contractor if either the failure to provide the required training, or the failure to hire the trainee or 

apprentice as a journeyman, is caused by the  

Contractor and evidences a lack of good faith on the part of the Contractor in meeting the requirements of this Training Special 

Provision.  It is normally expected that a trainee or apprentice will begin his training on the project as soon as feasible after start of work 

utilizing the skill involved and remain on the project as long as training opportunities exist in his work classification or until he has completed 

his training program.  It is not required that all trainees or apprentices be on board for the entire length of the contract.  A Contractor will 

have fulfilled his responsibilities under this Training Special Provision if he has provided acceptable training to the number of trainees or 

apprentices specified.  The number trained shall be determined on the basis of the total number enrolled on the contract for a significant 

period. 

Only trainees or apprentices registered in a program approved by the State of California's State Administrator of Apprenticeship may 

be employed on the project and said trainees or apprentices shall be paid the standard wage specified under the regulations of the craft or 

trade at which they are employed. 

The Contractor shall furnish the trainee or apprentice a copy of the program he will follow in providing the training.  The Contractor 

shall provide each trainee or apprentice with a certification showing the type and length of training satisfactorily completed. The 

Contractor will provide for the maintenance of records and furnish periodic reports documenting his performance under this Training 

Special Provision. 

 

 

 







 01014  

PROTECTION OF THE ENVIRONMENT 
- 1 - 

 01014 

 

PROTECTION OF THE ENVIRONMENT  

PART 1 - GENERAL  

1.01 GENERAL  

A. The Contractor shall maintain all work areas within and outside the project boundaries free from 

environmental pollution that would be in violation to any federal, state, or local regulations.  

1.02 PHASE II ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT  

A. The City has completed a Phase II Environmental Assessment of the soil near the railroad crossing.  As 

complete copy of the study is available at City Hall. 

B. The Assessment detected elevated total lead concentrations from 7 to 220 mg/kg.  The lead concentrations 

neither exceed the Total Threshold Limit Concentration (1000 mg/kg), nor the California Human Health 

Screening Level for commercial/industrial soil (320 mg/kg).  

C. Soluble lead concentrations by Title 22 Waste Extraction Test (WET; citrate extractant) in some soil 

samples exceed the Soluble Threshold Limit Concentration (STLC; 5 mg/L), indicating that the soil 

would be classified as hazardous waste if it were to be disposed at a landfill. 

D. Soluble lead concentrations were detected above the STLC (exceeded hazardous waste thresholds) at the 

location of the abandoned rail lines to be removed. The abandoned lines cross Grass Valley Street from 

north to south at a location 20 to 60 feet west of the UPRR Mainline. 

E. Excavation of earth material containing lead from the vicinity of the abandoned rail lines may cause it to 

be classified as a hazardous waste, and may require its disposal at an off-site solid waste facility. If the 

soil is to be excavated, the excavated soil would need to be stockpiled at the site for additional 

characterization prior to offhaul, with appropriate erosion control and dust control measures to protect the 

stockpile. 

F. The Geotechnical Firm, Holdrege & Kull (H&K), that prepared the Phase II Report recommends that this 

soil be managed in place without excavation. Soil that contains elevated lead concentrations (including 

those above hazardous waste classification thresholds) would not necessarily be classified as a waste if 

appropriately managed on site. Management may include leaving the material in place; or scarifying, 

moisture conditioning and recompacting in place. Provided that the soil represented by these samples is 

scarified and recompacted in place, H&K does not anticipate that further characterization would be 

required. 

G. According to the United States Department of Labor, Occupational Safety & Health Administration 

(OSHA) Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Title 29, Section 1926.62(c)(1), an employer shall assure 

that no employee is exposed to lead at concentrations greater than 50 micrograms per cubic meter of air 

(ug/m3) averaged over an 8-hour period. These regulations should be taken into consideration by the City 

of Colfax and any contractors and subcontractors during the construction of the proposed improvements. 

H. Pursuant to California Code of Regulations (CCR) Title 8, Section 1532.1, the contractor performing the 

work is required to prepare a lead compliance plan and perform lead awareness training. Special 

Provisions Section 1561 is provided to address these requirements. 

PART 2 - PROTECTION OF THE ENVIRONMENT  

2.01 WATERWAYS The Contractor shall observe the rules and regulations of Placer County, the State of 

California and agencies of the United States government prohibiting the pollution of stream or river waters by 

the dumping of any refuse, rubbish, or debris therein.  

2.02 AIR QUALITY  

A. Air pollution due to construction operations shall be minimized by wetting down bare soils during windy 

periods, use of properly operating combustion emission control devices on construction vehicles and 

equipment used by contractors, and by shutting down motorized equipment not actually in use.  









 01025  

MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
- 3 - 

C. Bid items are not intended to be exclusive descriptions of work categories and the Contractor shall 

determine and include in its pricing all materials, labor, and equipment necessary to complete each Bid 

Item (work phase) as shown and specified.  

D. All bid item work shall conform to the construction plans, these specifications, Caltrans Specifications, 

and manufacturerôs recommendation as required or appropriate. 

E. All bid items shall include all miscellaneous items of work as shown and specified, but not otherwise 

specifically included in any other bid item in this contract.  

F. BID ITEM 1. Mobilization and Demobilization  

1. This bid item shall not exceed 5 percent of total bid price and shall include payment for obtaining all 

bonds, all Contractor acquired permits, licenses, agreements, certifications, notices of intent, and 

temporary easements; moving onto the site of all equipment, materials and staff including set up of 

Contractorôs staging area/yard; furnishing and erecting all needed construction facilities, fencing, 

project signage, project security, demobilization, and all work as required for the proper performance 

and completion of the project, including preconstruction photographs, video recording of surface 

features, progress schedules and reports, contract meetings, and record drawings.  

2. Mobilization shall include preparation of a lead compliance plan and perform lead awareness 

training. Special Provisions Section 1561 is provided to address these requirements 

3. The Contractor may request payment for mobilization up to 75% of the amount for this bide item. 

The remaining retention for mobilization may be included for payment in the last progress payment.  

4. This bid item shall exclude the cost of Railroad Liability Insurance and the cost, time and labor to 

obtain necessary right-of-entry permits with the Union Pacific Railroad. 

5. Payment shall be "Lump Sum" for all that which is necessary for this item.  

G. BID ITEM 2. Railroad Right-of-Entry Permit, Insurance and Flagging   

1. This bid item includes payment for obtaining any necessary right-of-entry permits, railroad liability 

insurance, and railroad flagging costs required by Union Pacific Railroad.  The bid item further 

include any other costs imposed on the Contractor by Union Pacific Railroad. 

2. Payment shall be ñLump Sumò for all that which is necessary for this item. 

H. BID ITEMS 3. Traffic Control  

1. This bid item includes payment for all work, equipment and materials necessary to provide traffic 

control for completion of the entire project. No measurement will be made and shall be full 

compensation for submittals; furnishing detailed traffic control plans approved by the Owner, the 

City of Colfax, Placer County, Union Pacific Railroad and Caltrans as necessary.  The bid item 

further includes barricades, lighted arrow boards, signs, detours, lighting, pedestrian and traffic 

ramps, temporary striping and pavement markers, temporary traffic signal detection if required, and 

all incidentals necessary for worker, pedestrian and traffic protection.  

2. Payment shall be ñLump Sumò for all that which is necessary for this item. 

I. BID ITEM 4. Water Pollution Control Plan and Implementation 

1. The work under this contract item shall include the preparation of a Water Pollution Control Plan in 

conformance with all legal requirements and these specifications.  The work shall further include 

implementation, maintenance and removal of the measures required to conform to the approved 

Water Pollution Control Plan. 

2. Payment shall be ñLump Sumò for all that which is necessary for this item. 

J. BID ITEM 5. Construct Concrete Curb and Gutter  

1. This bid item includes payment for all work, equipment and materials necessary for constructing or 

replacing concrete curb and gutter.  Work further includes saw cutting, demolition, excavation, 

disposal, aggregate base, compaction, form and forming, concrete placement, flow testing and 

protection of work. 



 01025  

MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
- 4 - 

2. Measured quantity shall exclude the length of driveway which are provided for as a separate bid item. 

3. Payment shall be per Linear Foot (LF) of curb and gutter placed. 

K. BID ITEM 6. Construct Concrete Sidewalk  

1. This bid item includes payment for all work, equipment and materials necessary for constructing and 

replacing sidewalk, whether separated or monolithic with curb and gutter.  Work further includes saw 

cutting, demolition, excavation, disposal, aggregate base, compaction, form and forming, 

raising/lowering utility boxes, concrete placement and protection of work. 

2. This work excludes labor, equipment and materials necessary to place ADA detectable warning 

surface within concrete work. 

3. Payment shall be per Square Foot (SF) of sidewalk placed. 

L. BID ITEM 7. Construct Commercial Driveway (including Sidewalk) 

1. This bid item includes payment for all work, equipment and materials necessary for constructing and 

replacing commercial driveways.  Work further includes saw cutting, demolition, excavation, 

disposal, aggregate base, compaction, form and forming, reinforcement, raising/lowering utility 

boxes, concrete placement and protection of work. 

2. The bid item further includes excavation and re-contouring private parking lot pavement approaches 

to match new driveway 

3. Payment shall be per Square Foot (SF) of driveway placed.  Measurement shall not include area of 

asphalt placed for contouring which shall be included in the driveway area. 

M. BID ITEM 8. Construct Type C Corner Ramp 

1. This bid item includes payment for all work, equipment and materials necessary to demolish existing 

concrete corners and construct new ADA compliance Type C Corner ramps.  Work further includes 

saw cutting, excavation, disposal, aggregate base, compaction, form and forming, raising/lowering 

utility boxes, concrete placement and protection of work. 

2. This work excludes work, equipment and materials necessary to place ADA detectable warning 

surface within concrete work. 

3. Payment shall be per Each (EA) of corner ramps placed. 

N. BID ITEM 9. Install ADA Detectable Warning Surface 

1. This bid item includes payment for all work, equipment and materials necessary to install ADA 

detectable warning surfaces within or on top of existing or new concrete per manufacturerôs 

recommendations.  The work further includes glue, securing fasteners, etc. as required by the 

manufacturer. 

2. Payment shall be per Each (EA) of panel placed.  Placement of two or more panels side by side shall 

constitute separate panel installations for the purposes of payment quantity. 

O. BID ITEM 10. Place and Compact Soil between Curb and Sidewalk  

1. This bid item includes payment for all work, equipment and materials necessary for placement of soil 

between the separation of curb and sidewalk.  The work further include demolition, excavation, 

disposal, raising/lowering utility boxes, soil import, placement and compaction. 

2. Payment shall be ñLump Sumò for all that which is necessary for this item. 

P. BID ITEM 11. Construct Storm Drainage Facilities 

1. This bid item includes payment for all work, equipment and materials necessary for constructing 

reinforced concrete pipe and curbside drainage inlet.  Work further includes saw cutting, demolition, 

excavation, disposal, aggregate base, backfill, compaction, connecting to existing drainage facilities, 

grout, and concrete. 



 01025  

MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
- 5 - 

2. All work shall be in accordance with the Standard Specifications and Standard Plans and these 

Technical Provisions. 

3. Payment shall be ñLump Sumò for all that which is necessary for this item. 

Q. BID ITEMS 12. Road Dig-out 

1. These bid items includes payment for all work equipment and materials necessary replace roadway 

base and sub-base as provided on the plans.  Work further includes saw cutting, grinding, demolition, 

excavation, disposal, aggregate base, compaction and asphalt placement. 

2. Payment shall be per Square Foot (SF) of dig-outs performed. 

R. BID ITEM 13. Asphalt Grinding 

1. This bid item includes payment for all work, equipment and materials necessary for cold planning 

(grinding) asphalt roadway surfaces.  The work further includes protection of property, sweeping, 

hauling, disposal, recycling of grindings, placement of temporary measured for traffic, bicycle and 

pedestrian safety and protecting/lowering of manholes, valve and other boxes as necessary. 

2. Contractor shall, as necessary, locate the limit of the concrete base within the intersection of Main 

Street and Grass Valley.  It is the Contractorôs responsibility to protect the concrete based from 

damage due to its operation. 

3. Payment shall be per Square Foot (SF) of grinding performed. 

S. BID ITEM 14 & 15: İò Type A PG 64-16 HMAC Leveling Course and İò PG 64-16 RHMA Final 

Course 

1. This bid item includes payment for all work, equipment and materials necessary to resurface the 

roadway with asphalt per the plans and specifications.  The work further includes surface preparation, 

cleaning, sweeping, placement of asphalt binder, hauling, spreading and rolling, and installation of 

temporary traffic markings and controls.  

2. Payment shall be per TON of asphalt placed. 

T. BID ITEMS 16. Install Pedestrian Barrier  

1. These bid items include payment for all work, equipment and materials necessary to install pedestrian 

barriers   The work further includes surface preparation, forming and placing concrete bases, drilling 

bolts, assembling, painting and finishing barrier. 

2. Payment shall be ñLump Sumò for all that which is necessary for this item. 

U. BID ITEM 17. Install Signs, Posts and Markers  

1. This bid item includes payment for all work, equipment and materials necessary to install roadside 

signs and other signage per the construction plans.  The work further includes augering, concrete, 

post material and placement, and sign installation. 

2. This bid items further includes placement of retro-reflective hydrant marker at locations shown on 

construction plans. 

3. Payment shall be ñLump Sumò for all that which is necessary for this item. 

V. BID ITEM 18. Lane and Legend Thermostriping 

1. This bid item includes payment for all work, equipment and materials necessary for all 

thermostriping to place lane striping and legends on the roadway per the construction plans.  The 

work further includes surface cleaning, preplanning and marking for lane alignment and protection of 

work. 

2. All lane locations shall be approved by City Inspector prior to placement. 

3.   Payment shall be ñLump Sumò for all that which is necessary for this item. 

W. BID ITEM 19. 4ò Parking Stripes  



 01025  

MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
- 6 - 

1. This bid item includes payment for all work, equipment and materials necessary to paint parking stall 

striping.  Work further includes surface cleaning, preplanning and marking for parking stall 

alignment and protection of work. 

2. All parking stall locations shall be approved by City Inspector prior to placement. 

3.   Payment shall be per Linear Foot (LF) for placement of 4ò parking stripes. 

X. BID ITEM 20. Curb Painting  

1. This bid item includes payment for all work, equipment and materials necessary to paint the top and 

face of concrete curbs.  Work further includes surface cleaning, preplanning and marking for color 

and location of paint and protection of work. 

2. All curb painting locations shall be approved by City Inspector prior to placement. 

3. Payment shall be per Linear Foot (LF) for placement of curb painted. 

Y. ADDITIVE BID ITEM 1A. Excavation and Disposal of Tracks (Sheet 3, Add Alt. 2)  

1. This bid item includes payment for all work, equipment and materials necessary for excavation and 

removal of railroad track near or underneath the surface of the roadway.  Work further includes 

sawcutting, flame cutting, demolition, hauling, disposal, aggregate base, compaction, cut back and 

temporary striping. 

2. Payment shall be ñLump Sumò for all that which is necessary for this item. 

Z. ADDITIVE BID ITEM 2A. Install Stamped Colored Asphalt Crosswalk (Sheet 5, Add Alt. 1) 

1. This bid item includes payment for all work, equipment and materials necessary to place brick pattern 

colored stamped asphalt crosswalk in the new asphalt paving per manufacturerôs recommendations. 

2. Color samples shall be provided to the City for review and approval. 

3. Payment shall be per Square Foot (SF) for stamped asphalt completed. 

AA. ADDITIVE BID ITEM 3A. Place Stamped Colored Concrete (Sheet 3, Add Alt. 2)  

1. This bid item includes payment for all work, equipment and materials necessary for placing concrete 

in the same manner as concrete sidewalk and providing a brick stamped colored pattern to the 

concrete per manufacturerôs recommendations.  Work further includes excavation, grading, aggregate 

base, backfill, raising/lowering utility boxes, compaction and protection of the work. 

2. Color samples shall be provided to the City for review and approval. 

3. Payment shall be per Square Foot (SF) for placement of stamped concrete placed. 

BB. ADDITIVE BID ITEM 4A. Replace HMAC Final Course with RHMA  

1. This bid item includes payment for all work, equipment and materials necessary for placing 

Rubberized Hot Mix Asphalt (RHMA) per the Standard Specifications.  The work further includes 

surface preparation, cleaning, sweeping, placement of tack coat, hauling, spreading and rolling, and 

installation of temporary traffic markings and controls. 

2. PRICE IN BID SCHEDULE:  The Unit Price to be paid for this item of work shall be the incremental 

added cost to switch from Hot Mix Asphalt (HMA), in 3.01.S Bid Item 15, to RHMA.   

3. PAYMENT METHOD:  Payment to the Contractor for RHMA will be calculated by multiplying the 

actual tonnage of RHMA and recorded in Line Items 15 AND 4A and the Unit Price for each of those 

items.  The total payment to the Contractor for RHMA will be the summation of Item Total for Bid 

Schedule Line Items 15 AND 4A. 

4. Payment shall be per TON of asphalt placed. 

3.02 ADJUSTMENT OF QUANTITY AND PAYMENT AMOUNT  

A. The quantities shown in the bid schedule are for bid purposes only. Additive or deductive quantities of the 

work will be adjusted by the Ownerôs Representative. For lump sum items, payment for quantity 





 01030  

SPECIAL PROJECT CONSTRAINTS 
- 1 - 

 01030 

 

SPECIAL PROJECT CONSTRAINTS 

 

PART 1 - GENERAL  

1.01 GENERAL: The contractor is cautioned that all of the work generally involves construction on a major a 

major arterial roadway, as well as, next to and across a highly active railroad corridor.  

A. The Contractor must maintain safe and efficient control of vehicle, bicycle and pedestrian traffic during 

regular working hours. 

B. During off hours, the work area must be secured and cleaned to allow for full, safe and efficient 

movement of trains, vehicles, bicycles and pedestrian traffic. 

C. At all time, the Contractor must aware of the train traffic to ensure the safety of workers and the public. 

D. Under no circumstance will obstruction of train traffic be allowed without written approval of the Union 

Pacific Railroad. 

E. Underground Services Alert (USA) 

1. The Contractor shall notify the Construction Manager and the appropriate regional notification center 

for operators of subsurface installations at least 2 working days, but not more than 14 calendar days, 

prior to performing any excavation or other work close to any underground pipeline, conduit, duct, 

wire or other structure. 

2. A primary notification center is USA-Northern California:  800-227-2600 

3. The City is not a member of the USA system and contact for the locations of City facilities including 

storm and sewer systems is to be made to the City at (530) 346-2313. 

F. Union Pacific Railroad 

1. The Contractor shall obtain all necessary permits and insurance to work around the Union Pacific 

Railroad Tracks. 

2. The City has agreements for UP for this work.  The agreement and contractor stipulations are 

provided in the Appendix T-A of these specifications. 

3. The Contractor shall work directly with Union Pacific in the coordination of construction and 

flagging that UP may require. 

1.02 SUBMITTALS  

A. All submittals shall be done in accordance with Section 01300, Submittals. The submittals included in this 

Section 01030 are:  

1. Plan for stockpiling and/or disposal of excavated materials  

2. Roadway closure schedule 

3. Traffic control plan.  

1.03 SPECIFIC SEQUENCE AND CONSTRAINTS  

A. Concrete work within twenty feet of the rail guards and warning flasher devised shall be complete after 

the rail guards are relocated or moved by Union Pacific Railroad.   If UPRR provides conduit stubs for 

future installation of the equipment then Contractor may complete concrete work with approval of the 

Engineer and UPRR. 

B. July 3rd Parade and Celebration 

1. No construction will be allowed on July 3,, 2015. 



 01030  

SPECIAL PROJECT CONSTRAINTS 
- 2 - 

2. The City will conduct a parade on July 3 and downtown celebration on July 3rd.  The contractor is 

required to secure all trenches, provide safe pedestrian pathways across the railroad tracks, and 

remove all construction equipment and materials within the public right-of-way by end of day, July 

1st. 

3. The streets shall be swept clean and be free of debris by end of day July 2nd. 

1.04 CONSTRUCTION PERIOD 

A. City roadways are impacted by heavy traffic when school is in session. 

B. Construction work causing traffic delays or rerouting shall be performed between June 8 and August 7, 

2015. 

C. Any work prior to and after the above dates will not be allowed without prior written approval.  

Construction times shall be limited between 9AM and 2PM.  Exceptions may be allowed for work that 

does not interfere with the regular flow of traffic. 

1.05 TRAFFIC CONTROL 

A. The Contractor shall maintain steady traffic across the railroad track at all time.  Traffic control shall not 

cause vehicles to stop on tracks.  

B. During full closure of the street and intersection, traffic may be routed onto State Route 174 to North 

Main Street to Depot Street and to Grass Valley Street; and the reverse for the opposing traffic. 

C. The Contractor shall obtain all necessary permit for traffic control measures on Caltrans controlled State 

Highways, Routes, bridges and on/off ramps.  The facility may include, but may not be limited to, 

1. State Route 174 

2. Intersections 

(a) South Auburn & SR 174 

(b) I-80 Overpass & South Auburn 

(c) I-80 Overpass & South Canyon 

(d) I-80 on/off ramps & South Auburn 

D. Signing shall be provided to direct the public to downtown and parking within the business district during 

traffic rerouting. 

E. Work is schedule to be completed during school break between June 8 and August 11, 2015.  Contractor 

will be allowed to fully close Grass Valley Street and the intersection at Main Street and Grass Valley 

under the following circumstances. 

1. The roadway and intersection may be fully closed during working hours while roadway paving 

occurs.  This includes placement of pavement fabric and asphalt. 

2. A detailed traffic control plan shall be approved in writing to route traffic safely around the work 

area. 

3. The roadway and intersection shall be fully open during non-work hours. 

4. Full closure will not be allowed for sidewalk, drainage or other work. 

F.   The Contractor will be allowed to partially close the roadway and intersection under the following 

circumstances. 

1. Half of the roadway and/or intersection may be closed as necessary to safely complete all other work 

not allowing full closure. 

2. A detailed traffic control plan shall be approved in writing to manage traffic through the partial 

closure or partially reroute traffic around the work area. 

3. The roadway and intersection shall be fully open during non-work hours. 



 01030  

SPECIAL PROJECT CONSTRAINTS 
- 3 - 

PART 2 - PRODUCTS  

2.01 STORAGE OF MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT  

A. No public or private property adjacent to the site shall be used for storage or disposal of the Contractor's 

equipment and materials, and excess excavated material, unless prior written approval is obtained from 

the legal owner.  

PART 3 - EXECUTION  

3.01 CONVENIENCE AND ACCESS  

A. The Contractor shall conduct the operation so as to cause minimum obstruction or inconvenience to City 

staff, community and businesses. People must be able to access business buildings at all times.  

B. The Contractor shall provide clear unobstructed access to all fire hydrants at all times.  

C. The Contractor shall cooperate with the collection and removal of trash and garbage and coordinate as 

necessary with the local waste disposal company as necessary.  Contact (530) 885-3735 for such 

coordination.  

END OF SECTION 

 



 01040  

COORDINATION 
- 1 - 

 

 01040 

 

COORDINATION 

 

PART 1 - GENERAL  

1.01 SUBMITTALS  

A. Photographs and other records of examination, as required herein.  

1.02 OTHER WORK  

A. Coordination of Owner's Work by Others: Reference Article 7.02 of the General Conditions and Section 

01010 for coordination of Owner's work by others, if any, and coordinate Contractor's Work with Owner 

or Owner's designated coordinator.  

1.03 PROJECT MEETINGS  

A. General:  

1. Owner: Schedule physical arrangements for meetings throughout progress of Work, prepare meeting 

agenda with Contractor input and distribute with written notice of each meeting, preside at meetings, 

record minutes to include significant proceedings and decisions, and reproduce and distribute copies 

of minutes within 7 days after each meeting to participants and parties affected by meeting decisions.  

2. Representatives of Owner, Contractor, and Subcontractors shall attend meetings, as needed, or as 

requested by Owner.  

B. Preconstruction Conference:  

1. As set forth in Section 01010, Summary of Work, a preconstruction conference will be held at City 

Hall.  

2. Attendees may include but not be limited to:  

(a) Owner's representatives.  

(b) Contractor's office representative.  

(c) Contractor's resident superintendent.  

(d) Contractor's quality control representative.  

(e) Contractorôs safety program representative.  

(f) Subcontractors' representatives whom Contractor may desire or Owner may request to attend.  

(g) Utility agenciesô representatives (as required)  

(h) Others as appropriate.  

C. Progress Meetings:  

1. Owner will schedule regular progress meetings at City Hall or at a location of the Ownerôs choice, 

conducted weekly or as needed to review Work progress, progress schedule, Submittals submissions 

schedule, Application for Payment, contract modifications, and other matters needing discussion and 

resolution.  

2. Attendees will include:  

(a) Owner's representative(s).  

(b) Contractor, and appropriate Subcontractors and Suppliers.  

(c) Others as appropriate.  





 01040  

COORDINATION 
- 3 - 

2. These observations and photographs and videotapes are intended for use as indisputable evidence in 

ascertaining whether and to what extent damage occurred as a result of Contractor's operations, and 

are for protection of Contractor and Owner.  

1.06 OWNER'S OCCUPANCY  

A. Owner will occupy the premises during the entire period of construction for the conduct of its normal 

operations. Cooperate with Owner in all construction operations to minimize conflict and to facilitate 

Owner usage.  

1.07 RELOCATION OF EXISTING FACILITIES  

A. The Contractor shall take adequate measures to insure that his operations do not harm any existing 

underground facilities not specifically mentioned or shown on the Plans.  

B. The Contractor is required to hand excavate a minimum of two (2) feet each side of any existing utility 

prior to the use of power excavating equipment.  

C. Relocation of services conveying hazardous or toxic materials shall comply with all regulatory 

requirements for handling of these materials including, but not limited to, requirements of OSHA, PSM, 

EPA, AQMD, and UFC. 

D. Any relocation of water services or water mains shall be coordinated with the Placer County Water 

Agency (PCWA) at the beginning of the project.  PCWA may require relocations to be self (PCWA) 

performed. 

1.08 PHYSICAL CONDITIONS  

A. Exercise reasonable care to verify locations of existing subsurface structures and underground facilities, 

proceeding in accordance with Article 4 of the General Conditions.  

B. Thoroughly check immediate and adjacent areas subject to excavation by visual examination (and by 

electronic metal and pipe detection equipment, as necessary) for indications of subsurface structures and 

underground facilities.  

C. Make exploratory excavations where existing Underground Facilities or structures may potentially 

conflict with proposed Underground Facilities or structures. Conduct exploratory excavations in presence 

of Ownerôs Representative and sufficiently ahead of construction to avoid possible delays to Contractor's 

Work.  

1.09 REFERENCE POINTS AND SURVEYS  

A. Location and elevation of bench marks, as applicable, are shown on Drawings.  

B. Dimensions for lines and elevations for grades of structures, appurtenances, and utilities are indicated on 

Drawings, together with other pertinent information required for laying out Work. If conditions vary from 

those indicated, notify Owner immediately, who will make minor adjustments required.  

C. Ownerôs Representative may perform checks to verify accuracy of Contractor's layout Work and that 

completed Work complies with Contract Documents.  

D. Any existing survey points or other control markers destroyed without proper authorization shall be 

replaced by owner of the survey points or control markers at the Contractor's expense.  

E. Contractor's Responsibilities:  

1. Provide survey and layout as required.   

2. Locate and protect reference points prior to starting Work at site.  

3. Check and establish exact location of existing facilities prior to construction of new facilities and any 

connections thereto.  

4. In event of discrepancy in data provided by Owner, request clarification before proceeding with 

Work.  



 01040  

COORDINATION 
- 4 - 

5. Preserve and leave undisturbed control staking until Owner has completed checks it deems necessary.  

6. Re-establish reference points resulting from destruction by Contractor's operations.  

7. Retain professional land surveyor or civil engineer registered in California who shall perform or 

supervise engineering surveying necessary for additional construction staking and layout.  

8. Maintain complete accurate log of survey Work as it progresses as a Record Document.  

9. Submit documentation, as requested.  

10. Provide competent employee(s), tools, stakes, and other equipment and materials as Owner may 

require to:  

(a) Check layout, survey, and measurement Work performed by others.  

(b) Measure quantities for payment purposes.  

(c) Cooperate with Owner so that checking and measuring may be accomplished with least 

interference to Contractor's operations.  

1.10 SPILLS, OVERFLOWS, LEAKS, ILLEGAL DISCHARGES  

A. If an overflow, spill, discharge, or leak occurs due to the Contractorôs operations or neglect, and any fine 

is levied against the Owner, the fine shall be considered direct damages caused by the Contractor. Further, 

if the Contractor exceeds his allotted time for any shutdown or bypass, and the Owner is thereby required 

to expend additional time and expenses to maintain compliance with plant discharge requirements or 

inspect the Contractorôs work, the Contractor shall be solely liable for all such extra costs. The Contractor 

shall be responsible for the clean up of any spills caused by his operation.  

B. The above requirements shall be distributed, and be applicable, to all of the Contractorôs Subcontractors 

working on the project site.   

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)  

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)  

END OF SECTION 

 



 01060  

SAFETY, REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS, AND PERMITS 
- 1 - 

 01060 

 

SAFETY, REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS, AND PERMITS 

 

PART 1 - GENERAL  

1.01 CONTRACTORôS RESPONSIBILITY FOR SAFETY  

A. The Contractor shall at its own cost do whatever Work is necessary for safety and be solely and 

completely responsible for conditions of the jobsite, including safety of all persons (including employees) 

and property during the Contract period. This requirement shall apply continuously and not be limited to 

normal working hours. 

B. The Contractor shall prepare a lead compliance plan and perform lead awareness training per Section 

1561 of these Special Provisions. 

1.02 FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL SAFETY REQUIREMENTS  

A. Safety provisions shall conform to the Federal and State Departments of Labor Occupational Safety and 

Health Act (OSHA), and all other applicable federal, state, county, and local laws, ordinances, codes, the 

requirements set forth herein, and any regulations that may be specified in other parts of these Contract 

Documents. Where any of these are in conflict, the more stringent requirement shall be followed. The 

Contractorôs failure to thoroughly familiarize itself with the aforementioned safety provisions shall not 

relieve Contractor from compliance with the obligations and penalties set forth therein.  

1.03 SAFE ACCESS BY FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT OFFICIALS  

A. The Contractor shall at all times provide proper facilities for safe access to the Work by authorized 

government officials.  

1.04 CONSTRUCTION SAFETY PROGRAM  

A. Refer to General Conditions, Article 6.13.  

1.05 TRENCH OR EXCAVATION SAFETY PLAN  

A. Refer to General Conditions, Article 6.13.  

1.06 CONFINED SPACES  

A. The Contractor shall perform tests for the presence of combustible or dangerous gases and shall monitor 

oxygen and combustible gases levels with an approved device immediately prior to a worker entering a 

confined space and at intervals frequent enough to ensure a safe atmosphere during the time a worker is in 

such a structure. A record of such tests shall be kept at the jobsite. Post a permit at the entry point and 

conduct all such entries in conformance with Placer County policy.  

1. Sources of ignition, including smoking, are prohibited within 50 feet of any confined space including 

manholes, lift stations, trenches and tanks.  

(a) Note: Confined spaces for the purpose of this Section shall mean the interior of storm drains, 

sewers, vaults, drywells, utility pipelines, tunnels, manholes, reservoirs, and any other such 

structure which is similarly surrounded by confining surfaces so as to limit circulation of oxygen 

and/or permit the accumulation of dangerous gases or vapors, and has limited access or egress.  

B. No employee shall be permitted to enter or remain within a confined space until such confined space is 

free of concentrations of harmful gases, and lack of oxygen, unless the employee is wearing suitable and 

approved respiratory equipment.  

1. Confined spaces that contain or that have last been used as containers of toxic gases, light oils, 

hydrogen sulfide, corrosives, or poisonous substances, shall, in every case, be tested by means of 

approved devices or chemical analysis before being entered without wearing approved respiratory 

equipment.  



 01060  

SAFETY, REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS, AND PERMITS 
- 2 - 

2. When entering confined spaces, the Contractorôs employees shall follow all applicable safety 

requirements, including the use of additional employees on watch outside the confined space, the use 

of a lever with a lifting range to a surface tripod, etc.  

C. Before any Work is performed in a suspected confined space, a detailed procedure shall be submitted to 

the Engineer 14 days in advance of the Work. The Contractor shall follow as a minimum the provisions of 

the General Industry Safety Orders, Section 5156, Title 8, California Administrative Code.  

1.07 MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEET (MSDS)  

A. Refer to General Conditions, Article 6.14. Attention is directed to the provisions of General Industry 

Safety Orders, Section 5194, Title 8, California Administrative Code. The Contractor shall submit to the 

Engineer a Material Safety Data Sheet for each hazardous substance proposed to be used, ten days prior to 

the delivery of such material to the job site or use of such material at a manufacturing plant where the 

Engineer is to perform an inspection. Hazardous substance is defined as any substance included in the list 

(Directorôs List) of hazardous substances prepared by the Director, California Department of Industrial 

Relations, pursuant to Labor Code Section 6382.  

1.08 LEAD COMPLIANCE PLAN AND AWARENESS TRAINING 

A. Refer to Section 1561 of the Special Provisions. 

1.09 CONTRACTORôS RESPONSIBILITY FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION  

A. Refer to Section 01014, Protection of the Environment.  

B. Coordination: Construction equipment/vehicle refueling and maintenance operations shall be performed 

only in designated areas that are either paved or lined and surrounded by protective dikes to provide 

sufficient volume to contain any spill.  

C. A spill contingency plan shall be developed; upon detection of a spill or leak of construction material, oil, 

or fuels, clean up procedures shall be implemented. Adequate clean up equipment and supplies shall be 

kept onsite.  

D. Emission controls shall be installed on applicable construction equipment, and idling of equipment shall 

be minimized.  

E. Disturbed areas shall be watered whenever soil moisture conditions and weather conditions result in 

visible dust generation. Dirt stockpiles shall be covered. Dust producing activities shall be suspended 

during periods of high winds if dust control measures are unable to avoid visible dust plumes.  

F. Equipment and manpower shall be available at all times during construction for watering of disturbed soil 

surfaces. Materials subject to wind dispersion shall be covered, as necessary, on a daily basis during site 

grading and leveling operations.  

G. All construction vehicles and equipment shall be equipped with manufacturer approved muffler/baffles, as 

applicable.  

H. In the event paleontological specimens (fossils) are uncovered during construction activities, the 

Contractor shall notify the Owner. All ground disturbing Work in the immediate vicinity of the discovery 

shall cease until the Owner completes an evaluation of significance and significant specimens are 

scientifically removed for appropriate study and curation. Refer to Section 01040.  

PART 2 - PRODUCTS  

2.01 SAFETY EQUIPMENT  

A. The Contractor, as part of its safety program, shall maintain at its office or other well-known place at the 

jobsite, safety equipment applicable to the Work as prescribed by the governing safety authorities, all 

articles necessary for giving first-aid to the injured, and shall establish the procedure for the immediate 

removal to a hospital or a doctorôs care of any person who may be injured on the jobsite.  







 01300  

SUBMITTALS 
- 1 - 

 01300 

 

SUBMITTALS 

 

PART 1 - GENERAL  

1.01 DESCRIPTION. This section covers requirements for submittals and forms a part of all other specification 

sections in which submittals are specified or required. Refer to the specific sections and divisions of the 

specifications for additional submittal requirements.   

A. Submittal Requirements Included in This Section.  

1. Shop drawings.  

2. Samples.  

3. Material lists and equipment data.  

4. Sub-Contractor Qualifications.  

5. Certificates including, but not limited to warrantees, bonds, service agreements.  

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)  

PART 3 - EXECUTION  

3.01 SUBMITTALS-GENERAL REQUIREMENTS. The contractor shall submit to the owner for its review all 

shop drawings, samples, materials lists, equipment data, record documents, manufacturerôs equipment 

manuals, and other submittals required by the contract documents and herein, or subsequently required by 

modifications. All such items required to be submitted for review shall be furnished by and at the expense of 

the contractor, and any work affected by them shall not proceed without such review. Submittals and their 

contents shall be properly prepared, identified, and transmitted as provided herein or as the owner may 

otherwise direct. Except for record documents, and instructional manuals for operation and maintenance, each 

submittal shall be approved before the material or equipment covered by the submittal is delivered to the site.   

A. Digital copies of submittals will be accepted in Adobe PDF format.  If paper copies are required then such 

submittal shall include three (3) sets of black line or blue line printed copies.  

B. Submittal Review Time. Contractor shall allow a total period of not less than four  

1. (4) weeks for review and approval of submittals, not including the time necessary for delivery or 

mailing, and shall cause no delay in the Work. Extension of the Contract Time will not be granted 

because of the Contractorôs failure to make timely and correctly prepared and presented submittals 

with allowance for the checking and review periods.  

C. Deviations. At the time of the submission, the Contractor shall give notice, in writing, in the submittal, of 

any deviation from the requirements of the Contract Documents. The deviations shall be clearly indicated 

or described. The Contractor shall state in writing, all variation in costs occasioned by the deviations, and 

any assumptions of the cost of all related changes if the deviation is approved.  

D. Method of Submittal. The Contractor shall deliver submittals by means of dated, signed, and sequence 

numbered transmittals on the Owner provided forms (provided at the end of this section) identifying as to 

initial or resubmittal status, and fully describing the submittal contents. In each transmittal, the Contractor 

shall state the Project Number and Name, Name and Address of Contractor, Name and Address of 

Subcontractor, Manufacturer, Distributor, and specification Section (as applicable), Articles, and 

paragraphs to which the submittal pertains; accompanying data sheets, catalogs, and brochures shall be 

identified in the same manner. Where several types or models are contained in the literature, the 

Contractor shall delete non-applicable portions, or specifically indicate, which portions are intended and 

applicable. Submittal transmittals shall fully index all items submitted.  











 01310  

PROGRESS SCHEDULES 
- 1 - 

 01310 

 

PROGRESS SCHEDULES 

 

 

PART 1 - GENERAL  

1.01 SUBMITTALS  

A. Submit with Each Progress Schedule Submission:  

1. Contractorôs certification that progress schedule submission is the actual schedule being utilized for 

execution of the Work and certification by all Subcontractors with 5 percent or more of Work that 

they concur with Contractorôs progress schedule submission.  

2. Four legible copies of the progress schedule.  

3. One electronic copy of the progress schedule. See Paragraph 1.03 for format.  

B. Preliminary Progress Schedule: Submit within 10 days of the Notice to Proceed and as specified in the 

General Conditions.  

C. Initially Acceptable Progress Schedule: As provided in the General Conditions.  

D. Acceptable Progress Schedule: Submit adjusted schedule or confirm validity of current acceptable 

schedule with each monthly Application for Payment in accordance, and at such other times as necessary 

to reflect: i) progress of Work to within 5 working days prior to submission; ii) changes in Work scope 

and activities modified since submission; iii) delays in Submittals or resubmittals, deliveries, or Work; iv) 

adjusted or modified sequences of Work; v) other identifiable changes; and vi) revised projections of 

progress and completion.  

E. Narrative Progress Report: Submit with each monthly submission of progress schedule.  

F. Precedent to final payment, provide four copies of any Critical Path Method (CPM) type schedule utilized 

with certification that said schedule represents correctly the way the Work was performed.  

G. Progress quantity chart.  

1.02 PROGRESS OF THE WORK  

A. If Contractor fails to complete activity by its latest scheduled completion date and this failure may extend 

Contract Times (or Milestones), Contractor shall, within 7 days of such failure, submit a written statement 

as to how Contractor intends to correct nonperformance and return to the acceptable current progress 

schedule. Actions by Contractor to complete Work within Contract Times (or Milestones) will not be 

justification for adjustment to Contract Price or Contract Times.  

B. Owner may order Contractor to increase plant, equipment, labor force, or working hours if Contractor 

fails to: i) complete a critical scheduled activity by its latest Milestone completion date; or ii) 

satisfactorily execute Work as necessary to prevent delay to the overall completion of the Project.  

1.03 PROGRESS SCHEDULE REQUIREMENTS  

A. General:  

1. Schedule(s) shall reflect Work logic sequences, restraints, delivery windows, review times, Contract 

Times, and Milestones set forth in the Agreement and Section 01040, Coordination, and shall begin 

with the date of Notice to Proceed and conclude with the date of Final Completion.  

2. The schedule requirement herein is the minimum required. Contractor may prepare a more 

sophisticated schedule if such will aid Contractor in execution and timely completion of Work.  

3. Base schedule on standard 5-day Work week.  



 01310  

PROGRESS SCHEDULES 
- 2 - 

4. When bar chart or network analysis schedules are specified, use Microsoft Project latest version or 

compatible and approved software.  

5. Adjust or confirm on a monthly basis.  

6. Use of float suppression techniques such as preferential sequencing or logic, special lead/lag logic 

restraints, and extended activity times are prohibited and use of float time disclosed or implied by use 

of alternate float-suppression techniques shall be shared to proportionate benefit of Owner and 

Contractor.  

7. Pursuant to above float-sharing requirement, no time extensions will be granted nor delay damages 

paid until a delay occurs which: i) impacts Projectôs critical path; ii) consumes available float or 

contingency time; and iii) extends Work beyond contract completion date.  

8. If Contractor provides an accepted schedule with an early completion date, Owner reserves the right 

to reduce the duration of the Work to match the early completion date by issuing a deductive Change 

Order at no change in Contract Price.  

B. Network Analysis Diagram: Provide a comprehensive computer-generated schedule using CPM, 

generally as outlined in Associated General Contractors of America (AGC) publication ñThe Use of CPM 

in Construction ï A Manual for General Contractors and the Construction Industry,ò latest edition, 

prepared on reproducible paper, not larger than 30 inches by 42 inches.  

1. Show complete interdependence and sequence of construction and Project related activities 

reasonably required to complete the Work, identifying Work of separate stages and other logically 

grouped activities, and clearly identify critical path of activities.  

2. Include at a Minimum: Subcontract Work; major and other equipment and critical product design, 

fabrication, testing, delivery and installation times including required lead time for Owner-furnished 

products; move-in and other preliminary activities; Project closeout and cleanup; Substantial 

Completion dates; Submittals that may impact critical path; and system/subsystem/component 

testing, facility startup, and training activities that may impact critical path.  

3. Provide subschedules to further define critical portions of the Work, i.e., Process Instrumentation and 

Control System/Subsystems.  

4. Indicate dates for early-and late-start, early-and late-finish, float, and duration.  

5. No activity duration, exclusive of those for Submittals review and product fabrication/delivery, shall 

be less than 1 day nor more than 15 working days, unless otherwise approved by Engineer.  

6. Activity duration for Submittals review shall not be less than review time specified unless clearly 

identified and prior written acceptance has been obtained from Engineer.  

7. Monthly Schedule Submissions: Include overall percent complete, projected and actual, and percent 

completion progress for each listed activity.  

8. Prepare a schedule report listing information for each activity in network diagram in tabular format, 

and sorted according to:  

(a) Early-start, within responsibility.  

(b) Early-start.  

(c) Activity number sequence.  

(d) Activity number sequence with predecessor and successor activity.  

C. Disposition of Progress Schedules: In accordance with Section 01300, Submittals.  

1.04 NARRATIVE PROGRESS REPORT REQUIREMENTS  

A. Include, as a minimum:  

1. Summary of Work, completed during the past period between Narrative Progress Reports.  





 01400  

QUALITY CONTROL 
- 1 - 

 01400 

 

QUALITY CONTROL 

 

 

PART 1 - GENERAL  

1.01 INSPECTION AND TESTING  

A. Additional requirements for tests are described other Technical Paragraphs of these Specifications.   

1.02 GENERAL  

A. Where the Contract Documents require work to be field tested or approved, it shall be tested in the 

presence of the Construction Manager or its authorized representative. The Construction Manager shall 

have the right to witness all on-site tests performed by the Contractor and any shop tests. The results of 

any tests performed by the Contractor shall be made available for the information of the Construction 

Manager.  Inspections, tests or favorable reviews by the Construction Manager or others shall not relieve 

the Contractor from its obligation to perform the work in accordance with the requirements of the 

Contract Documents or for its sole responsibility for the quality of workmanship and materials.  

B. Except as specifically required under the technical specifications for testing and inspection, all tests for 

materials furnished by the Contractor will be done in accordance with commonly recognized standards of 

national organizations. Where tests are to be performed by the Construction Manager or by an 

independent laboratory or agency, the Contractor shall furnish such samples of all materials as required by 

the Construction Manager without charge.  The sample or samples of materials to be tested shall be 

selected by such laboratory or agency, or the Construction Manager, and not by the Contractor.  No 

material for which the Contract Documents require the submittal and approval of tests, certificates of 

compliance or other documentation shall be incorporated in the Work until such submittal has been made 

and approved.  

C. The Contractor shall provide safe access for the Construction Manager and inspectors to adequately 

inspect the quality of work and the conformance with the Contract Documents.  The Contractor shall 

furnish the Construction Manager the necessary labor and facilities for such things as excavation in the 

compacted fill to the depths required to take samples.  The Contractor shall provide adequate lighting, 

ventilation, ladders and other protective facilities as may be necessary for the safe performance of 

inspections.   

D. Upon completion of the Work, the Construction Manager will conduct a final inspection as provided for 

in Article 14.06 of the General Conditions, Final Inspection and Payment.  Records shall be available at 

all reasonable hours for inspection by other local or State agencies to ascertain compliance with laws and 

regulations.  

1.03 NOTICE  

A. The Contractor shall notify the Construction Manager at least 24 hours before any field testing or special 

inspections are required to be performed by the Construction Manager or independent laboratory 

furnished by the City.  The Contractor shall notify the Construction Manager at least two hours before any 

inspection is required to be performed or to witness the Contractorôs on-site field testing.  

B. Whenever the Contractor varies the period during which work is carried on each day, the Contractor shall 

give due notice to the Construction Manager so that proper inspection may be provided.  Any work done 

in the absence of the Construction Manager shall be subject to rejection.   

C. The Contractor shall give the Construction Manager written notification at least 30 days prior to the 

shipment of materials and equipment to be tested and/or inspected at the point of origin. Satisfactory tests 

and inspections at the point of origin shall not be construed as a final acceptance of the materials and 

equipment nor shall such tests and inspections preclude retesting or reinspection at the site of the Work.  

1.04 COSTS OF TESTING  



 01400  

QUALITY CONTROL 
- 2 - 

A. The Contractor shall be responsible for, and shall pay for, all quality control and off-site tests of materials 

required including all source and mix design tests for the approval of soil and concrete materials.    

B. The Contractor shall be responsible for, and shall pay for, all source quality control and all on-site tests of 

materials required, except those tests specifically noted to be performed and paid for by the City. The City 

will perform the soils compaction and concrete confirmation tests detailed in the Technical Specifications 

during the performance of the Work.  

C. The Construction Manager shall have the authority to require additional tests or inspections due to the 

manner in which the Contractor executes its work. Examples of such additional tests and inspections 

include; tests of materials substituted for previously accepted materials, or substituted for specified 

materials, or retests made necessary by failure of material to comply with the requirements of the 

Specifications.  Where such tests and inspections are required by Contract to be performed by the City, 

the City will pay for the additional tests and inspections but will issue a unilateral Change Order to deduct 

these costs from the Contract price.   

1.05 WORK COVERED PRIOR TO INSPECTION AND/OR TESTING  

A. Work requiring inspection and/or testing shall not be concealed or buried prior to the acceptance of such 

inspection or testing.  Work covered without the favorable review or consent of the Construction Manager 

shall, if required by the Construction Manager, be uncovered for inspection and/or testing at the 

Contractor's expense.  

1.06 WORK COVERED WITH PRIOR INSPECTION AND/OR TESTING  

A. If the Construction Manager considers it necessary or advisable that covered work which was favorably 

inspected and tested be uncovered for reinspection and/or retesting, the Contractor, at the Construction 

Manager's request, will uncover, expose or otherwise make available for observation, inspection or testing 

as the Construction Manager may require, that portion of the work in question, furnishing all necessary 

labor, materials, tools, and equipment.  If it is found that such work is defective, the Contractor will bear 

all expenses of such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection and testing and of satisfactory 

reconstruction. If, however, such work is not found to be defective the Contractor will be allowed an 

increase in the Contract price or an extension of the Contract time, or both, directly attributable to such 

uncovering, exposure, observation, testing and reconstruction, and a Change Order shall be issued for 

such additional work.  

1.07 TEST WATER  

A. The Contractor shall furnish and dispose of the water which is required for testing of piping and 

structures. The Contractor shall dispose of all testing water without damage to property, and in 

accordance with applicable regulations.   

END OF SECTION 
 





 01500  

CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES AND TEMPORARY CONTROLS 
- 2 - 

B. Keep OWNER informed of serious accidents on the site and related claims.  

C. Use of Explosives: No blasting or use of explosives will be allowed on the site.  

D. During the performance of the Work, CONTRACTOR is responsible for adapting its means, methods, 

techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to allow OWNER to maintain operation as 

described in Section 01030, SPECIAL PROJECT CONSTRAINTS, at the existing level of facility 

production and consistent with applicable permit requirements, and Laws and Regulations. In performing 

such Work and in cooperating with OWNER to maintain operations, it may be necessary for 

CONTRACTOR to plan, design, and provide various temporary services, utilities, connections, temporary 

piping and heating, access, and similar items that will be included within the Contract Price.  

PART 2 - PRODUCTS  

2.01 OWNERôS TRAILER: A trailer for use as the OWNERôs field office will NOT be required.  

2.02 CONTRACTOR FIELD OFFICE   

A. It is optional that the CONTRACTOR install a project field office at the WORK site. The 

CONTRACTOR shall provide and pay for all temporary utilities including water, sanitary connection, 

telephone and electric power services for its field office. The CONTRACTOR is responsible for all costs 

associated with obtaining and maintaining temporary utilities.  

PART 3 - EXECUTION  

3.01 OWNER'S FIELD OFFICE (NOT REQUIRED)  

3.02 TEMPORARY UTILITIES  

A. Power:  

1. The CONTRACTOR shall arrange, at its own cost, with the local utility to provide adequate 

temporary electrical service at a location acceptable to the City. The Contractor shall then provide 

adequate jobsite distribution facilities conforming to applicable codes and safety regulations and with 

the approval of the City. The Contractor shall provide, at its own cost, all electric power required for 

construction, testing, general and security lighting, and all other purposes whether supplied through 

temporary or permanent facilities.  All the power provided to the Contractor shall be through a meter 

that is separate from any and all City electrical supply.  

2. The CONTRACTOR shall provide its own diesel or gasoline engine driven air compressor system 

when required for its pneumatic tools or equipment if any.  

B. Lighting: Provide temporary lighting at least to meet all applicable safety requirements to allow erection, 

application or installation of materials and equipment, and observation or inspection of the Work. Cost of 

temporary lighting required for performing the Work will be borne by the CONTRACTOR.  

C. Heating, Cooling, and Ventilating:  

1. Provide as required to maintain adequate environmental conditions to facilitate progress of the Work, 

to meet specified minimum conditions for the installation of materials, and to protect materials, 

equipment, and finishes from damage due to temperature or humidity.  

2. Provide adequate forced air ventilation of enclosed areas to cure installed materials, to dispense 

humidity, and to prevent hazardous accumulations of dust, fumes, vapors, or gases.  

3. Pay all costs of installation, maintenance, operation, removal, and fuel consumed.  

4. Provide portable unit heaters, complete with controls, oil- or gas-fired, and suitably vented to outside 

as required for protection of health and property.  

5. If permanent natural gas piping is used for temporary heating units, do not modify or reroute gas 

piping without approval of OWNER. Provide separate gas metering as required by OWNER.  

D. Water:  







 01500  

CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES AND TEMPORARY CONTROLS 
- 5 - 

2. Do not dispose of volatile wastes such as mineral spirits, oil, chemicals, or paint thinner in storm 

drains or sanitary sewers. Disposal of wastes into streams or waterways is prohibited. Provide 

acceptable containers for collection and disposal of waste materials, debris, and rubbish.  

B. Erosion, Sediment, Runoff, and Flood Control:  

1. Provide, maintain, and operate temporary facilities to control erosion and sediment releases, prevent 

runoff of recycled water, and to protect Work and existing facilities from flooding during 

construction period.  

2. Obtain and comply with the General NPDES Permit for Storm Water Discharges associated with 

Construction Activity.  

3.05 STAGING AREA  

A. The CONTRACTORôs staging area shall be approved by the Owner prior to staging any equipment or 

vehicles.  

B. Temporary Storage Area: Construct temporary storage area for storage of products that are not subject to 

damage by weather conditions.  

C. Temporary Storage Buildings:  

1. Provide environmental control systems that meet recommendations of manufacturers of equipment 

and materials stored.  

2. Arrange or partition to provide security of contents and ready access for inspection and inventory.  

3. Store combustible materials (paints, solvents, fuels, etc.) in a well-ventilated and remote building 

meeting safety standards.  

3.06 ACCESS ROADS AND DETOURS  

A. Road closures and detours are anticipated for the Work. Contractor shall provide traffic control measures 

as specified in Section 02800 to construct the project.  

B. Maintain drainage ways.  

C. Where required, or as directed by OWNERôs Representative, provide gravel, crushed rock, or other 

stabilization material to permit access by all motor vehicles at all times.  

D. Maintain road grade and crown to eliminate potholes, rutting, and other irregularities that restrict access.  

E. Where construction affects existing fences, install and maintain gates. Temporary fencing will be 

adequate to perform the function of the permanent fencing it will replace on s short term basis. Refer also 

to any permit requirements in Section 01040, COORDINATION.  

F. Upon completion of construction, leave roads and fences in same or better condition as prior to start of 

construction activities, and suitable for future use by OWNER.  

3.07 PARKING AREAS  

A. Control vehicular parking to preclude interference with public traffic or parking, access by emergency 

vehicles, OWNER's operations, or construction operations.  

B. Provide parking facilities for personnel working on the Project in CONTRACTOR's staging area. No 

employee or equipment parking will be permitted on OWNER's existing paved areas.  

3.08 CLEANING DURING CONSTRUCTION  

A. General:  

1. In accordance with the General Conditions, as may be specified in specific Specification sections, 

and as required herein.  

2. Wet down exterior surfaces prior to sweeping to prevent blowing of dust and debris.  







 01561  

EARTH MATERIALS CONTAINING LEAD 
- 1 - 

 01561 

 

EARTH MATERIALS CONTAINING LEAD 

 

PART 1 - GENERAL  

1.01 GENERAL  

A. This work includes handling earth material containing lead under the Standard Specifications and these 

special provisions.  

1.02 Submittals 

A. Submit a lead compliance plan under Section 7-1.07, "Lead Compliance Plan," of the Standard 

Specifications. 

1.03 Project Conditions 

A. Lead is present in earth material within the project limits at average concentrations below 1,000 mg/kg 

total lead and below 5 mg/l soluble lead. Earth material within the project limits: 

1. 1. Is not a hazardous waste 

2. 2. Does not require disposal at a permitted landfill or solid waste disposal facility. 

B. Levels of lead found within the project limits range from 7 to 220 mg/kg total lead with an average 

concentration of 195 mg/kg total lead as analyzed by EPA Test Method 6010 or EPA Test Method 7000 

series and based upon a 95% Upper Confidence Limit. Three samples in which the highest total lead 

values were detected (220, 110 and 74 mg/kg) were analyzed for soluble lead, resulting in soluble 

concentrations of 8.0, 6.1 and 0.6 mg/l as analyzed by the California Waste Extraction Test. This material, 

located in the vicinity of the abandoned rail lines that are to be removed, is to managed on site, and is not 

to be excavated. Management on site includes scarifying, moisture conditioning and recompacting in 

place. 

1.04 Construction 

A. Handle earth material containing lead under all applicable laws, rules, and regulations, including those of 

the following agencies: 

1. 1. Cal/OSHA 

2. 2. CA Regional Water Quality Control Board, Region 5 ï Central Valley 

3. 3. CA Department of Toxic Substances Control 

B. Manage earth material as shown in the following table. 

Earth Material Management 

Location Depth Management Requirements 

Grass Valley Street 

20 to 60 west of 

UPRR Mainline 

All depths Manage soil on site. No soil excavation. 

Scarify, moisture condition and 

recompact in place 
 

1.05 Earth Material Management 

A. If earth material is disposed of: 

1. Dispose of under Section 7-1.13, "Disposal of Material Outside the Highway Right of Way" of the 

Standard Specifications 







 01700  

CONTRACT CLOSEOUT 
- 2 - 

1.03 FINAL INSPECTION. Reference Article 14.06, General Conditions. Also, all applicable permitting agencies.  

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)  

PART 3 - EXECUTION  

3.01 FINAL CLEANING  

A. At completion of Work or of a part thereof and immediately prior to Contractorôs request for certificate of 

Substantial Completion; or if no certificate is issued, immediately prior to Contractorôs notice of 

completion, clean entire site or parts thereof, as applicable.  

1. Leave the Work and adjacent areas affected in a clean condition satisfactory to Owner.  

2. Remove grease, dirt, dust, paint or plaster splatter, stains, labels, fingerprints, and other foreign 

materials from exposed surfaces. Broom clean exterior paved driveways and parking areas. Hose 

clean sidewalks, loading areas, and others contiguous with principal structures.  

3. Repair, patch, touch up marred surfaces to specified finish and match adjacent surfaces.  

4. Rake clean all other surfaces.  

5. Leave water courses, gutters, and ditches open and in condition satisfactory to Owner.  

B. Use only cleaning materials recommended by manufacturer of surfaces to be cleaned.  

END OF SECTION 
 

 



 01720  

RECORD DOCUMENTS 
- 1 - 

 01720 

 

RECORD DOCUMENTS 

 

PART 1 - GENERAL  

1.01 SUBMITTALS  

A. Quality Control Submittals: Written procedures for maintaining and markup of record documents.  

B. Contract Closeout Submittal: Submit Record Documents in accordance with the requirements of this 

section. Submit prior to application for final payment.  

1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE  

A. Furnish qualified and experienced person, whose duty and responsibility shall be to maintain record 

documents.  

B. Accuracy of Records:  

1. Coordinate changes within record documents, making legible and accurate entries on each page of 

Specifications and each sheet of Drawings and other documents where such entry is required to show 

change.  

2. Purpose of Project record documents is to provide factual information regarding aspects of Work, 

both concealed and visible, to enable future modification of Work to proceed without lengthy and 

expensive site measurement, investigation, and examination.  

C. Make entries within 24 hours after receipt of information that a change in Work has occurred.  

D. Prior to submitting each request for progress payment, request Owner's review and approval of current 

status of record documents. Failure to properly maintain, update, and submit record documents may result 

in return of Contractor's Application for Progress Payment by Owner as provided in Article 14.02 of the 

General Conditions.  

1.03 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING  

A. Maintain record documents completely protected from deterioration, loss, and damage until completion of 

Work.  

B. In event of loss of recorded data, use means necessary to again secure data to Owner's acceptance.  

1. Such means shall include, if necessary in Owner's opinion, removal and reconstruction of covering 

materials, at no cost to Owner.  

PART 2 - PRODUCTS  

2.01 RECORD DOCUMENTS  

A. Promptly following commencement of Contract Times, secure from Owner at no cost to Contractor, one 

complete set of Contract Documents. Drawings will be half size, 11 by 17 inches.  

PART 3 - EXECUTION  

3.01 MAINTENANCE OF RECORD DOCUMENTS  

A. General:  

1. Label or stamp each record document with title, "RECORD DOCUMENTS," in neat large printed 

letters.  

2. Record information concurrently with construction progress and within 24 hours after receipt of 

information that change has occurred. Do not cover or conceal Work until required information is 

recorded.  



 01720  

RECORD DOCUMENTS 
- 2 - 

B. Preservation  

1. Maintain documents in a clean, dry, legible condition and in good order. Do not use record 

documents for construction purposes.  

2. Make documents and Samples available at all times for observation by Owner.  

C. Making Entries on Drawings  

1. Using an erasable colored pencil (not ink or indelible pencil), clearly describe change by graphic line 

and note as required.  

(a) Color Coding:  

(i) Green when showing information deleted from Drawings.  

(ii) Red when showing information added to Drawings. 3) Blue and circled in blue to show 

notes.  

2. Date entries  

3. Call attention to entry by "cloud" drawn around area or areas affected.  

4. Legibly mark to record actual changes made during construction, including, but not limited to:  

(a) Location, rim elevation, and invert elevation of manholes, rodding inlets, cleanouts, or sewer 

laterals if not shown or where it differs from that shown.  

(b) Final inside diameters and lengths of sewer lined with cured-in­place-pipe.  

(c) Changes made by Addenda and Field Orders, Work Change Directive, Change Order, Written 

Amendment, and Owner's written interpretation and clarification using consistent symbols for 

each and showing appropriate document tracking number.  

D. Make entries in other pertinent documents as accepted by Owner.  

E. If documents are not accepted by Owner, secure a new copy of that document from Owner at Owner's 

usual charge for reproduction and handling, and carefully transfer change data to new copy to acceptance 

of Owner.  

END OF SECTION 
 

 



 01740  

WARRANTIES 
- 1 - 

 01740 

 

WARRANTIES 

 

PART 1 - GENERAL  

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK  

A. Preparation and submittal of warranties.  

B. Time and schedule of submittals.  

1.02 RELATED SECTIONS  

A. Section C-700 - General Conditions: Contractorôs General Warranty and Guarantee.  

B. Section 01700 - Contract Closeout: Contract closeout procedures.  

C. Individual Specifications Sections: Warranties required for specific Products or Work.  

1.03 FORM OF SUBMITTALS  

A. Bind in commercial quality 8-1/2 x 11 binders with durable plastic covers.  

B. Cover: Identify each binder with typed or printed title WARRANTIES with title of Project; name, address 

and telephone number of Contractor [and equipment supplier]; and name of responsible company 

principal.  

C. Table of Contents: Neatly typed, in the sequence of the Table of Contents of the Project Manual, with 

each item identified with the number and title of the specification section in which specified, and the 

name of Product or work item.  

D. Separate each warranty with index tab sheets keyed to the Table of Contents listing. Provide full 

information, using separate typed sheets as necessary. List Subcontractor, supplier, and manufacturer, 

with name, address, and telephone number of responsible principal.  

1.04 PREPARATION OF SUBMITTALS  

A. Obtain warranties executed by responsible Subcontractors, suppliers, and manufacturers, within 15 days 

after completion of the applicable item of work. Except for items put into use with Owner's permission, 

leave date of beginning of time of warranty until the Date of Substantial completion is determined.  

B. Verify that documents are in proper form, contain full information, and are notarized.  

C. Co-execute submittals when required.  

D. Retain warranties until time specified for submittal.  

1.05 TIME OF SUBMITTALS  

A. Make other submittals within ten days after Date of Substantial Completion, prior to final Application for 

Payment.  

B. For items of Work for which acceptance is delayed beyond Date of Substantial Completion, submit within 

ten days after acceptance, listing the date of acceptance as the beginning of the warranty period.  

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED) 

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED) 

END OF SECTION 
 





 02090  

ABANDONMENT OF PIPELINES AND STRUCTURES, DEMOLITION 
- 2 - 

condition as possible at no additional cost to the City. The Contractor shall provide shoring, bracing, and 

supports, as required. The Contractor shall ensure that structural elements are not overloaded and shall be 

responsible for increasing structural elements as needed due to any cutting, abandonment, removal, or 

demolition Work performed under any part of this Contract. The Contractor shall remove all temporary 

protection when the Work is complete or when so authorized by the Construction Manager.  

1.06 JOB CONDITIONS  

A. The City assumes no responsibility for actual condition of the facilities to be abandoned or demolished. 

The Contractor shall visit the site, inspect all facilities, and become familiarized with all existing 

conditions and utilities.  

B. No existing pipeline or structure shall be abandoned without appropriate provision for continuous service.  

PART 2 - PRODUCTS  

2.01 CONCRETE  

Concrete for pipeline plugs shall be as specified in Section 03300.  

2.02 CONTROL LOW STRENGTH MATERIAL  

Control low strength material for filling pipeline to be abandoned in place shall be as specified in Section 

02200.  

PART 3 - EXECUTION  

3.01 ABANDONMENT OF EXISTING SEWER MAIN AND LATERALS:  

A. No sewer facility shall be abandoned until all new facilities serving the same area are in operation and as 

authorized by the Construction Manager. In the case of sewers that are to be removed due to conflicts 

with new work, the sewers may be removed after the bypass system has been installed and tested (see 

Section 02145, Bypassing and Dewatering of Facilities).  

B. Where existing piping is to be abandoned, the Contractor shall cut back the abandoned pipe for a distance 

of five (5) feet from any connecting structures that are to remain in service. All holes at the existing 

structures shall be repaired. The abandoned pipe shall be filled with CLSM or approved alternate 

pumpable mix design and capped or plugged with 2-feet thick concrete at both ends prior to backfill.  

3.02 DEMOLITION  

A. General: Demolition Work shall be conducted in a manner that protects against damage to facilities to 

remain and that provides necessary protection against injury to the Contractorôs and Cityôs personnel. In 

general the Contractor shall perform the Work with prime consideration to the following:  

1. Protection of Contractor and City personnel, as well as the public.  

2. Protection of existing facilities to remain.  

3. Control noise, shocks, and vibration.  

4. Control dust and debris.  

5. Access to existing facilities for operation and maintenance by City personnel.  

6. Coordination and cooperation with the City and other Contractors, particularly with respect to 

shutdown of existing facilities.  

7. Timely and proper disposal of demolition debris.  

B. Disposal of all materials shall be performed in compliance with applicable local, state, and federal codes 

and requirements. No trace of these structures shall remain prior to placing of backfill in the areas from 

which structures were removed.  

C. The Contractor shall note that the Drawings are approximate and are a compilation of local agencies and 

survey data. The plans and sections have been reproduced to clarify the scope of Work as much as 

possible.  



 02090  

ABANDONMENT OF PIPELINES AND STRUCTURES, DEMOLITION 
- 3 - 

D. The identification and extent of demolition, such as, but not limited to, pavement demolition and utility 

demolition are the responsibility of the Contractor. The Contractor shall make every attempt to minimize 

the extent of the demolition unless noted otherwise.  

E. Asphalt pavement and concrete curbs and gutters shall be removed as necessary to perform the specified 

Work. The limits of removal shall be saw cut. When the required improvements have been constructed, 

new asphalt pavement and concrete curbs and gutters shall be constructed in accordance with the Contract 

Documents.  

F. When existing pipe is removed, the Contractor shall plug all resulting abandoned connections whether or 

not shown.  

G. When the existing piping is removed from existing structures, the Contractor shall fill all resulting holes 

in the structures and repair any damage such that the finished rehabilitated structure shall appear as a new 

homogeneous unit with little or no indication of where the new and old materials join. The holes in water-

bearing structures shall be filled with nonshrink grout to be watertight and reinforced, as required. In all 

locations where the surface of the grout will be exposed to view, the nonshrink grout shall be recessed to 

approximately one-half (½) inch back of the exposed surface, and the recessed area shall be filled with 

cement mortar grout.  

3.03 STRUCTURE AND PIPING REHABILITATION   

A. Certain areas of existing structures, piping, conduits, and the like will be affected by work necessary to 

complete modifications under this Contract. The Contractor shall rehabilitate those areas affected by its 

construction activities.  

B. When new piping is installed in existing structures, the Contractor shall accurately position core-drilled 

openings in the concrete. Openings shall be of sufficient size to permit a final alignment of pipelines and 

fittings without deflection of any part and to allow adequate space for satisfactory packing where the pipe 

passes through the wall to ensure water tightness around openings so formed. The boxes or cores shall be 

provided with continuous keyways to hold the filling material in place, and they shall have a slight flare to 

facilitate grouting and the escape of entrained air during grouting. Before placing the nonshrink grout, 

concrete surfaces shall be sandblasted, thoroughly cleaned of sand and any other foreign matter, and shall 

be coated with epoxy bonding compound.  

C. When new piping is to be connected to existing piping, the existing piping shall be cut square and ends 

properly prepared for the connection required. Any damage to the lining and coating of the existing piping 

shall be repaired by the Contractor. Dielectric insulating joints shall be installed at connections between 

new and existing piping, if required.  

D. Existing reinforcement to remain in place shall be protected, cleaned, and extended into new concrete. 

Existing reinforcement not to be retained shall be cut off as follows:  

1. Where new concrete joins existing concrete at the removal line, reinforcement shall be cut off flush 

with the concrete surface at the removal line.  

2. Where the concrete surface at the removal line is the finished surface, the reinforcement shall be cut 

back two (2) inches below the finished concrete surface, the ends painted with epoxy paint, and the 

remaining holes patched with cement mortar grout.  

3.04 DISPOSAL OF DEMOLISHED MATERIALS  

Demolition and removal of debris shall be conducted to ensure minimum interferences with roads, streets, 

sidewalks, and other adjacent occupied or used facilities. Alternate routes shall be provided around closed or 

obstructed traffic ways. Site debris, rubbish, and other materials resulting from demolition operations shall be 

legally removed and disposed of at the Contractorôs expense.  

3.05 SALVAGE  

A. The Contractor may salvage and restore such items as, but not limited to, fences, gates, street signs, 

retaining walls, road barriers, guard rails, and other items when in good and reasonable condition and 

approved by the Construction Manager. The salvage shall be performed in a manner that will preserve the 

condition of the item being salvaged. Items not in salvageable condition shall be demolished, removed, 



 02090  

ABANDONMENT OF PIPELINES AND STRUCTURES, DEMOLITION 
- 4 - 

and replaced. All items not in usable condition at the time of replacement shall be removed and replaced 

at the Contractorôs cost to the satisfaction of the Construction Manager.  

B. Manhole frames, covers, and other castings for abandoned sewers shall become the property of the 

Contractor. These items shall not be used in the new Work without the written approval of the 

Construction Manager.  

3.06 PROTECTION  

A. Safe passage of persons around the area of demolition shall be ensured. Operations shall be conducted to 

prevent injury to people and damage to adjacent buildings, structures, or other facilities.  

B. Interior and exterior shoring, bracing, or supports shall be provided to prevent movement, settlement, or 

collapse of structures to be demolished, and to adjacent facilities to remain.  

C. Existing landscaping materials, structures, and appurtenances that are not to be demolished shall be 

protected.  

3.07 CLEANING  

A. During and upon completion of Work, the Contractor shall promptly remove unused tools and equipment, 

surplus materials, rubbish, debris, and dust and shall leave areas affected by the Work in a clean, 

approved condition.  

B. Adjacent structures shall be cleaned of dust, dirt, and debris caused by demolition, as directed by the 

Construction Manager or governing authorities, and adjacent areas shall be returned to the condition 

existing prior to start of Work.  

C. The Contractor shall clean and sweep streets using a vacuum type pick-up broom truck at the end of each 

work day in accordance with Section 01560-12.0, Construction Cleaning. The Contractor shall minimize 

the accumulation of dust, dirt, and debris caused by the construction activities.   

3.08 REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT  

A. When portions of asphalt pavements and concrete pads are to be removed and later construction is to be 

connected, edges shall be saw cut, on a neat line at right angles to the curb face.  

B. Sidewalks, curbs and concrete pavement shall be removed at the nearest expansion joint. Mid-joint saw 

cutting shall not be allowed.  

3.09 PAVEMENT:  

A. When portions of asphalt pavements and concrete pads are to be removed and later construction is to be 

connected, edges shall be saw cut, on a neat line at right angles to the curb face.  

B. Sidewalks, curbs and concrete pavement shall be removed at the nearest expansion joint. Mid-joint saw 

cutting shall not be allowed  

END OF SECTION 
 



 02100  

SITE PREPARATION 
- 1 - 

 02100 

 

SITE PREPARATION 

 

PART 1 - GENERAL  

1.01 DESCRIPTION  

A. SCOPE:  

This section specifies site preparation which consists of protecting and replacing any existing features 

damaged during construction.  

B. EXISTING CONDITIONS:  

The Drawings indicate the condition of the site as it affects this portion of work related to items to be cleared, 

grubbed or demolished as part of this project. Existing landscaped improvements shall be protected wherever 

possible.  

The Contractor shall replace, in kind, all grass, plants, sidewalks, curbs and gutters, pavement, fences, 

mailboxes, irrigation sprinklers and piping, and other improvements that are removed during site preparation 

or construction.  

Approval shall be obtained from the Construction Manager in writing prior to removing items that cannot 

practicably be replaced in kind, such as trees and limbs.  

C. PROTECTION:  

1. SITE: Site preparation shall not damage existing improvements, structures or other surface features 

on or adjacent to the site. The Contractor shall repair or replace any damage as a result of work to a 

pre-construction condition.  

2. TREES: The Contractor is responsible for the protection of all trees including roots and canopies. 

The Contractor shall be responsible for any damage to trees along the pipeline alignment caused by 

construction of the Project.  

3. WORK WITHIN ROADWAYS: Where possible, Contractor shall perform all work so as to 

minimize damage to existing pavement. Damaged pavement, sidewalks, curbs, gutters, medians, and 

signage outside of limits shown on the drawings shall be at Contractorôs expense at no additional cost 

to the Owner. Any pavement, curb, gutter, median, or sidewalk, which is damaged due to activity by 

the Contractor, shall be removed and replaced by the Contractor at no cost to the City. For a 

minimum period of one (1) year following the date of final acceptance of the work, the Contractor 

shall promptly patch, maintain, repair, and/or replace any pavement, curb, or sidewalk which settles 

or becomes damaged due to settlement or defective materials or workmanship. If settlement has 

occurred, the pavement, curb, or sidewalk shall be removed and the subbase and/or base course 

restored to proper grade before restoration of the surface course.  

All damages or claims resulting from improper maintenance of pavements, curbs, and sidewalks shall 

be borne entirely by the Contractor.  

PART 2 - PRODUCTS  

No products are included in this section.  

PART 3 - EXECUTION  

3.01  PRECONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTATION  

Contractor shall conduct a preconstruction audio/video survey of the project site.   

A. Documentation shall consist of a DVD format recording of existing surface conditions.  

B. Video shall have date of recording.   







 02160  

EXCAVATION SUPPORT SYSTEMS 
- 2 - 

7. As permitted by the specifications, allow for removal or abandonment of shoring in a manner that is 

(1) in step with the backfilling sequence (i.e., shoring should not be removed ahead of backfilling), 

(2) does not cause loosening or shifting of backfill particularly within the pipe embedment material, 

and (3) does not damage the finished pipeline or manhole structures or existing structures, 

pavements, and utilities through settlement, heave, or vibrations (contractor to address 

removal/abandonment concerns specific to the type of shoring proposed in the shoring submittal). 

Any void space created by shoring should be completely filled with CLSM or approved equivalent.  

The Contractor shall design and construct the shoring system in accordance with all applicable codes, 

and in accordance with the specific requirements described herein.  

The Contractor shall at all times furnish, install, and maintain sufficient shoring and bracing in 

trenches and pits to insure safety of the workmen and to protect and facilitate the work. System shall 

be designed and constructed in accordance with Section 02200 of this Specification.  

8. Design each member or support element to support the maximum loads that can occur during 

construction with appropriate safety factors.  

9. Design the support system to prevent raveling, running, and flowing of excavation walls and 

associated loss of adjacent ground and adjacent ground surface settlement or existing trench material 

at utility crossings. Design the support system to retain noncohesive granular soils subject to raveling, 

flowing, and/or running upon vibration from construction equipment including compaction of 

backfill.  

10. Design excavation support systems in accordance with all CAL/OSHA, and OSHA, requirements.  

11. Contractor shall take into account all surcharge loadings. Surcharge loadings can be due to such 

things as material or soil stockpiles, sloping ground adjacent to shoring, and adjacent building 

foundations. Contractor shall assure that his assumed conditions and loadings are not exceeded in the 

field during construction.  

12. The Contractor shall design shoring to withstand any construction loading.  

13. The design of shoring shall conform to accepted engineering practice in this field. The Ownerôs 

approval of the Contractorôs plans and methods of construction does not relieve the Contractor of his 

responsibility for the adequacy of this support.  

B. Performance Criteria:  

1. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for, and bear the sole burden of cost for, any and all 

damages resulting from improper shoring or failure to shore.  

2. The safety of workmen, the protection of adjacent structures, property and utilities, and the 

installation of adequate supports for all excavations shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor.  

3. The design, planning, installation, (and removal, if required) of all shoring shall be accomplished in 

such a manner as to maintain stability of the required excavation and to prevent movement of soil and 

rock that may cause damage to adjacent shoring systems, structures and utilities, damage or delay the 

work, or endanger life and health.  

1.03 SUBMITTALS  

A. Shop Drawings:  

Submit plans for shoring to the Construction Manager for review at least 30 days prior to commencement 

of work. No excavations shall be started until the Engineer has received the Contractorôs shoring design. 

The shoring and bracing system plans shall permit the Engineer to review the overall completeness and 

effectiveness of the proposed system. Receipt of the shoring and bracing plans by the Engineer in no way 

relieves the Contractor of complete responsibility for providing effective and safe shoring and bracing of 

the construction area and/or pipeline under construction. Shoring and bracing submittals shall demonstrate 

coordination with the dewatering method and submittal.  

B. Include:  



 02160  

EXCAVATION SUPPORT SYSTEMS 
- 3 - 

1. Design assumptions, analyses, calculations, and information on Contractorôs proposed method of 

installation (and removal, if required) of all shoring. The design and calculations shall be performed 

by, sealed and signed by a professional civil or structural engineer registered in the State of California 

and experienced in the design of earth retaining structures.  

2. The maximum design load to be carried by the various members of the support system.  

3. Detailed excavation support drawings, showing all pertinent dimensions, spacings, and relationships 

among the components of the shoring, as well as construction sequence and scheduling.  

4. The method of bracing.  

5. The full excavation depth and depth(s) below the main excavation to which the support system will 

be installed.  

6. Detailed sequence of construction and bracing removal.  

7. Detailed drawings and descriptions of the method to be used by the Contractor to monitor shoring 

and adjacent ground/structure movements.  

8. Demonstrate coordination with interior (sump pumps) and exterior (dewatering wells) dewatering 

methods and dewatering submittal.  

9. Calculations demonstrating that shoring has been designed for hydrostatic pressures if external 

dewatering wells are not planned to fully draw down the groundwater level behind the shoring to 

below the excavation bottom.  

1.04 QUALITY CONTROL SUBMITTALS:  

A. Submit proof of experience and qualifications required in this section.  

1.05 PERMITS:  

A. Contractor shall obtain appropriate permits.  

1.06 QUALITY ASSURANCE  

A. Qualifications of Designer and Installer:  

1. Work of this Section shall be performed by an individual or firm of established reputation (or, if 

newly organized, whose personnel have previously established a reputation in the same field) for at 

least 5 years, which is regularly engaged in, and which maintains a regular force of workmen skilled 

in design, installation and maintenance of shoring.  

B. Welding Requirements:  

1. All welding shall be done by skilled welders, welding operators, and tackers who have had adequate 

experience in the type of materials to be used. Welders shall be qualified under the provisions of 

ANSI/AWS D1.1 by an independent local approved testing agency not more than six (6) months 

prior to commencing work; unless having been continuously employed in similar welding jobs since 

last certification. Machines and electrodes similar to those used in the work shall be used in 

qualification tests. The Contractor shall furnish all material and bear the expense of qualifying 

welders.  

1.07 PROJECT CONDITIONS  

A. Existing ground and groundwater conditions:  

1. No geotechnical reports or other subsurface analysis were prepared for this project.  

B. Existing Utilities:  

1. Contract Drawings do not show all utilities. Contractor shall notify the Underground Service Alert 

(USA), the City, and field-check locations of utilities prior to commencing work. The Contractor 

shall protect any overhead wires and any sewer, water, gas, electric or other pipelines or conduits 

uncovered during work from damage caused by the work of this contract.  





 02200  

EARTHWORK 
- 1 - 

 02200 

 

EARTHWORK 

 

PART 1 - GENERAL  

1.01 DESCRIPTION  

A. SCOPE  

This section specifies earthwork which consists of excavation, filling, grading, and disposal of excess material, 

including contaminated materials.  

B. DEFINITIONS  

1. RELATIVE COMPACTION (ASTM METHOD): The ratio expressed as a percentage, of the dry 

density of the backfill material as compacted in the field, to the maximum dry density of the same 

material determined in the laboratory by ASTM D1557.  

2. Optimum Moisture Content (ASTM Method): The ratio, expressed as a percentage, of the weight of 

water in the solid material to the weight of the solids which occurs at the maximum dry density as 

determined by ASTM D1557.  

3. RELATIVE COMPACTION (CALTRANS METHOD): The ratio expressed as a percentage, of the 

wet density of the backfill material as compacted in the field, to the maximum wet density of the 

same material determined in the laboratory by Caltrans Test Method 216.  

4. Optimum Moisture Content (Caltrans method): The ratio, expressed as a percentage, of the weight of 

the water in the soil material to the weight of the solids which occurs at the maximum wet density as 

determined by Caltrans Test Method 216.  

5. EXCAVATION: Excavation shall mean all of the below ground surface work (including cutting and 

removal of pavement and stockpiling topsoil) necessary to install the sewer line and structures.  

6. EXCAVATION SLOPE: Excavation slope shall be defined as an inclined surface formed by 

removing material from below existing grade.  

7. BACKFILLING: Trench and pit backfilling shall consist of all materials, native or imported, returned 

to an excavation in the process of constructing a sewer line and/or appurtenances.  

8. PIPE FOUNDATION: The pipe foundation shall be the 12 inches of trench between the trench 

bottom and the sewer subgrade. Sewer subgrade is defined as a horizontal plane located 6 inches 

below the bottom of the pipe barrel.  

9. PIPE EMBEDMENT: Pipe embedment or pipe zone backfill shall mean that portion of the material 

placed within the trench from the sewer subgrade, 6 inches below the bottom of the pipe barrel, to a 

point 12 inches above the outside top of the pipe barrel.  

10. TRENCH BACKFILL: Trench backfill is considered to be all material placed in the trench between 

the pipe embedment and the road bed or ground surface.  

1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE  

A. REFERENCES  

Unless otherwise specified, references to documents shall mean the documents in effect at the time of 

Advertisement for Bids or Invitation to Bid (or on the effective date of the Agreement if there were no Bids). 

If referenced documents have been discontinued by the issuing organization, references to those documents 

shall mean the replacement documents issued or otherwise identified by that organization or, if there are no 

replacement documents, the last version of the document before it was discontinued. Where document dates 

are given, references to those documents shall mean the specific document version associated with that date, 

whether or not the document has been superseded by a version with a later date, discontinued or replaced.  



 02200  

EARTHWORK 
- 2 - 

REFERENCE TITLE   

ASTM C136 Standard Test Method for Sieve Analysis of Fine and Coarse Aggregates   

ASTM C150 Standard Specification for Portland Cement   

ASTM C260 Standard Specification for Air-Entraining Admixtures for Concrete   

ASTM C494 Standard Specification for Chemical Admixtures for Concrete   

ASTM C618 Standard Specification for Coal Fly Ash and Raw or Calcined Natural Pozzolan for 

Use in Concrete   

ASTM D1557 Standard Test Methods for Laboratory Compaction Characteristics of Soil Using 

Modified Effort (56,000 ft-lbf/ft3(2,700 kN-m/m3))   

ASTM D2922 Standard Test Methods for Density of Soil and Soil-Aggregate in Place by Nuclear 

Methods   

ASTM D3017 D3017-04 Standard Test Method for Water Content of Soil and Rock in Place by 

Nuclear Methods (Shallow Depth)   

California Test Method 202 Mechanical Analysis of Soils   

California Test Method 216 Relative Compaction of Untreated and Treated, Soils & Aggregates   

California Test Method 217 Sand Equivalent Test   

California Test Method 229 Durability Index Test   

California Test Method 301 Resistance ñRò Value of Treated and Untreated Bases, Subbases, and Basement 

Soils by the Stabilometer   

California Test Method 342 Surface Skid Resistance with the California Portable Skid Test   

 

B. TESTS  

1. The geotechnical firm hired by the Construction Manager will take samples and perform moisture 

content, gradation, compaction, and density tests during placement of backfill materials to check 

compliance with these specifications. The Contractor shall remove surface material at locations 

designated by the Construction Manager and provide such assistance as necessary for sampling and 

testing. The Construction Manager may direct the Contractor to construct inspection trenches in 

compacted or consolidated backfill to determine that the Contractor has complied with these 

specifications.  

2. Tests will be made by the geotechnical firm hired by the Construction Manager in accordance with 

the requirements of the agency having jurisdiction. In the absence of such jurisdiction, or with the 

concurrence of the agency, tests shall be made in accordance with the following:  

Test  Standard Procedure  

Moisture content  ASTM D3017  

Gradation  ASTM C136  

Density in-place  ASTM D2922  

Moisture-density relationships ASTM D1557  

3. Initial compaction testing will be paid for by the City. However, the Contractor shall be responsible 

for all costs associated with retesting materials which fail to meet City and County standards.  

All costs due from the Contractor for retesting will be charged against the contract and deducted from 

monies due or to become due to the Contractor. In order for the geotechnical firm to have sufficient 







 02200  

EARTHWORK 
- 5 - 

The excavation shall be made to enable the sewer to be laid to the grade and alignment designed on the 

Plans.  

Unprotected, open excavations during nonworking hours shall not be permitted.  

It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to conform to all the requirements of all permits obtained 

from all agencies and to make the construction site safe against injury to people and/or livestock by 

erection of adequate posted barricades and/or temporary fences and covering the excavations with plating.  

Free access shall be maintained to all fire hydrants, water gates, meters, and private drives, and means 

shall be provided so that water can flow in the gutters without interruption.  

Arrangements for access to the construction site over private property shall be mutually agreed upon by 

the Contractor and the City before start of construction.  

Any pavement, curb, or sidewalk constructed or reconstructed which is subsequently damaged due to 

activity under this Contract shall be removed and replaced by the Contractor at no additional cost to the 

City. For a period of one (1) year following the date of final acceptance of the work, the Contractor shall 

promptly patch, maintain, repair, and/or replace any pavement, curb, or sidewalk which settles or 

becomes damaged due to settlement or defective materials or workmanship. If settlement has occurred, 

the pavement, curb, or sidewalk shall be removed and the subbase and/or base course restored to proper 

grade before restoration of the surface course.  

All damages or claims resulting from damaged or improperly restored or maintained pavements, curbs, 

and sidewalks shall be borne entirely by the Contractor.  

B. EXISTING UTILITIES  

Existing utilities shall be protected at all times. Contractor shall be responsible for locating, verifying, and 

potholing all existing utilities.  

C. OPEN TRENCHING  

Unless otherwise indicated, the walls of the sewer trench shall be vertical and supported by shoring or 

bracing and no side sloping of the trench walls will be allowed. Twelve-inch minimum and 18-inch 

maximum clearance shall be maintained between the outer wall of the pipe barrel and the shoring or 

bracing, unless otherwise approved by the Engineer.  

The trench shall be excavated to a level section and to such elevation as will give a uniform bearing and 

true flow line elevation when the sewer pipe is laid. All loose dirt in the bottom of the trench must be 

removed.  

The amount of open trench permitted at any time during working hours shall not exceed 100 feet. Open 

trench during nonworking hours shall not be permitted.  Open trench that is not backfilled shall be 

covered with steel plates that conform to Caltrans skid-resistance guidelines and have a coefficient of 

friction of 0.35 or greater made from machined surface.  

All sheets/shoring extending no deeper than the bottom of the excavation shall be extracted by static pull 

only without the use of vibratory equipment.  

D. TRENCH PLATES  

Steel plates shall be used for temporary cover of trenches and other excavations. All trench plates shall 

have a skid resistant surface treatment. When backfilling trenches and excavations, whether transverse or 

longitudinal, and the work cannot be properly completed within the same working day, trench plates with 

non-skid surface treatment will be required to maintain all vehicular, bicycle and pedestrian traffic flow. 

The following conditions shall apply:  

1. All steel trench plates shall extend beyond the edge of the trench wall a minimum of twelve (12ò) 

inches.  

2. All steel trench plates shall be fully supported around the perimeter to prevent tipping.  

3. Trenches and excavations shall be adequately shored or braced to withstand highway traffic loads.  





 02200  

EARTHWORK 
- 7 - 

I. HAULING:  

When hauling is done over highways or city streets, the loads shall be trimmed and the vehicle shelf areas 

shall be cleaned after each loading. The loads shall be watered and covered after trimming to eliminate 

dust.  

3.02 CONTROLLED LOW STRENGTH MATERIAL  

CLSM shall be utilized for backfilling excavation trenches, tunnels, or utilities where normal compaction 

requirements cannot be met due to presence of existing utilities or foundations. The Contractor shall receive 

no extra compensation for the use of CLSM materials.  

3.03 EARTHWORK FOR PIPELINES AND CONDUITS  

A. GENERAL:  

Earthwork for pipelines and conduits is shown on the drawings and in the following paragraphs.  

B. PIPELINE EXCAVATION:  

The bottom of the trench shall be carried to the specified lines and grades with proper allowance for pipe 

thickness and for bedding as specified.   

C. PIPELINE TRENCH AND INSTALLATION PIT BACKFILL:  

1. PLACEMENT OF MATERIAL: All material shall be placed in uniform lifts not to exceed 6 inches 

per lift using mechanical compaction and/or vibration. No jetting or flooding shall be allowed. 

Trench or pit excavations shall be backfilled with materials as shown on the drawings.  

2. PIPE ZONE BACKFILL: The Contractor shall not proceed with backfill placement in excavated 

areas until the subgrade has been inspected by the Construction Manager. All pipe shall have a 

minimum thickness of pipe zone backfill material below the barrel of the pipe as shown on the 

drawings. Pipe zone backfill material shall be placed in the bottom of the trench, leveled and 

compacted. Bell holes shall be excavated at each pipe joint to permit proper inspection and uniform 

bearing of pipe on pipe zone backfill material. No backfill shall be deposited over a sewer line and/or 

appurtenances until placed pipe has been inspected and approved for backfilling operations.  

That portion from the sewer subgrade to a point 12 inches above the outside top of the pipe shall be 

installed in two stages:  

STAGE ONE - Shall be from the sewer subgrade to the outside bottom of the sewer pipe. This import 

shall be graded so that the pipe can be laid to proper line and grade. The bedding material shall be 

seated by mechanically compacting with a Vibraplate 220Y Wacker with a 12-inch square shoe, or 

equal. A minimum of four passes uniformly over the rock surface shall be performed.  

STAGE TWO - After the pipe has been installed to the proper line and grade, the remaining import 

shall be installed around the pipe, in 6-inch maximum lifts, from the outside bottom of the pipe to a 

point 12 inches above the outside top of the pipe barrel the full width of the trench. The pipe 

embedment material shall be hand shovel sliced around the pipe before compaction to ensure the 

absence of voids beneath the pipe haunches. After pipe embedment has been placed to a point 12 

inches above the top outside of the pipe barrel, the surface shall be mechanically compacted with four 

passes of a Vibraplate 220Y Wacker with a 12-inch square shoe, or equal. Impact tampers shall not 

be used directly above the pipe to mitigate damaging the pipe in accordance with pipe manufacturerôs 

recommendations.  

3. INTERMEDIATE BACKFILL:  

Intermediate backfill material, placement and compaction above the pipe zone shall be as specified. 

Backfill above the pipe bedding shall not commence until pipe bedding backfill has been inspected 

and accepted by the Construction Manager. In paved areas or future paved areas, the specified 

intermediate backfill material shall be compacted to a minimum of 90 percent relative compaction. 

Relative compaction in paved areas to be determined by Caltrans California Test 216 in Caltrans 

right-of-way and ASTM D1557 elsewhere. The moisture content of the trench zone backfill material 

being placed shall be at or above optimum moisture content to achieve required compaction.  



 02200  

EARTHWORK 
- 8 - 

Trench intermediate backfill shall be placed in horizontal layers no thicker than 8 inches 

uncompacted. Each layer shall be moistened, if necessary, tamped, rolled or otherwise compacted to 

the density shown on the Drawings.  

Compaction testing of trench materials within paved areas shall be done in accordance with the 

requirements of the Caltrans Standard Specifications and referenced standard tests. The compaction 

tests shall be California Test 216, using wet-wet sample densities for lime-treated materials and dry-

dry sample densities for nonlime-treated materials. Compaction testing of trench materials within 

unpaved areas shall be done in compliance with ASTM D1557 (Modified Proctor Test). Maximum or 

relative densities refer to dry soil densities obtainable at optimum moisture content.  

3.04 SUBGRADE FOR PAVEMENT  

The prepared subgrade shall be scarified to a depth of at least 30 inches and recompacted in maximum 8-inch 

lifts to at least 95 percent of the maximum density.  

3.05 EXPLOSIVES AND BLASTING  

Blasting or the use of explosives shall not be permitted.  

3.06 CONTAMINATED MATERIALS  

No contaminated materials are known in the project area. If contaminated materials are encountered, a change 

of condition will be addressed in accordance with these Specifications.  

Activities involving contaminated materials, should they be encountered, shall be in accordance with:  

A. California Hazardous Water Control Law (HWCL), Health and Safety Code, Sections 25100 through 

25249.  

B. California Code of Regulations, Title 22, Division 4, Chapter 30, Minimum Standards for Management of 

Hazardous and Extremely Hazardous Wastes.  

C. Federal Resources Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), 42 USC, Sections 6901 through 6987.  

D. Federal Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA), PL 98-6 16.  

E. California State Water Resources Control Board Regulations, California Code of Regulations, Sections 

2501 through 2610.  

F. California Code of Regulations, Title 8, General Industry Safety Orders, Section 5194, Hazard 

Communication.  

G. California Labor Code, Chapter 2.5, Hazardous Substances Information and Training.  

H. California Occupational Safety and Health Administration (CAL/OSHA) regulations (Title B, CCR, 

Section 5192).  

I. Other codes and regulations related to the scope of work.  

The Contractor shall prepare and submit a site-specific Health and Safety Plan (HSP), subject to review 

by the Engineer, which details how the Contractor intends to protect workers while working in the 

presence of contaminated soils and groundwater.  

If contaminated materials are encountered during construction, the Contractor shall stop work 

immediately in this area, and shall sufficiently secure the work area such that contaminated materials or 

potentially contaminated materials are not exposed to public. This shall be accomplished through 

temporary backfilling, trench plating, covering exposed areas with plastic sheeting, or other means. The 

Contractor shall immediately notify the Construction Manager of his findings, shall secure the area, and 

then shall continue work in another area away from the area in question. The Contractor shall not continue 

work in the potentially contaminated area until directed by the Construction Manager. Stopping work in a 

potentially contaminated area and moving to another work area will be considered part of the change of 

condition.  



 02200  

EARTHWORK 
- 9 - 

The HSP shall be prepared, signed, and stamped by a Certified Industrial Hygienist employed by or under 

contract to the Contractor. The HSP shall be reviewed and signed by the Contractor and all personnel who 

will be overseeing work in the contaminated construction zones, including subcontractors.  

A copy of the HSP shall be provided to all personnel working in the contaminated areas. All Contractor 

personnel performing work in the identified contaminated areas shall be required to read the HSP and 

shall be required to sign an acknowledgment that he/she has obtained and read a copy of the HSP. No 

worker shall be allowed in the identified contaminated areas until a copy of his/her signed 

acknowledgment has been submitted to the Engineer by the Contractor.  

The HSP shall conform to the requirements of all local, state, and federal ordinances, rules, regulations, 

and guidelines concerning occupational health and safety issues. Included as part of the HSP is the 

requirement for and the implementation of ongoing monitoring of the project by the Contractor for 

contaminated materials. This monitoring shall, at a minimum, include visual observation and odor 

detection by personnel with appropriate hazardous materials training, including 40 hours of EPA-

approved Health and Safety training.  

The excavation or exposure of soil within 100 yards of the described locations shall be monitored by the 

Contractor for subsurface contamination in compliance with CAL/OSHA. This monitoring shall, at a 

minimum, include visual observation by personnel with appropriate hazardous materials training, 

including 40 hours of EPA-approved Health and Safety training.  

Analysis for contamination of soil and water samples will be provided by the Contractor through a State 

of California certified hazardous waste laboratory using U.S. EPA approved analytical methods. The 

laboratory shall be approved by the City.  

Implementation of the HSP for the project, beyond the monitoring which is included with the HSP, 

requires: first, detection of contaminated materials; second, a written request by the Contractor to the 

Engineer; and third, approval by the Engineer in writing that the HSP shall be implemented.  

Stockpiling of contaminated material will be allowed only at locations approved by the Engineer and shall 

comply with all regulatory requirements. Unless otherwise indicated on the plans, Contractor shall 

provide temporary site or sites for stockpiling, and no stockpiling of contaminated material shall be 

allowed within or adjacent to the pipeline alignment.  

In the event that groundwater contamination is encountered, Contractor shall comply with all applicable 

federal, state, and local laws and regulations pertaining to the work performed during the dewatering and 

disposal of contaminated groundwater. A permit from the City will be required if the Contractor wants to 

dispose of treated groundwater into the Cityôs sewer.  

END OF SECTION 
 

 







 02500  

PAVING 
- 3 - 

3.06 PAVEMENT RESTORATION  

A. Pavement shall be restored to original condition within 14 days of excavation or bypass pipe removal 

whichever is sooner. Permanent paving shall be completed no later than 5 working days after backfilling, 

unless otherwise approved by the City.  

B. Asphalt concrete shall be placed in lifts as specified in Section 39-3 of the State Standard Specifications 

to restore roadway to its original condition. Storing, proportioning, mixing, equipment, spreading, 

compacting, and miscellaneous asphalt concrete materials and installation shall conform to the 

requirements of the agency having jurisdiction.  

C. When asphalt concrete is placed in contact with existing asphalt concrete, the surface shall be completely 

dry of water, clean of dirt and debris, and a tack coat of asphaltic emulsion shall be applied to insure 

proper bond.  

D. At gutter lips the finished grade shall not be less than flush and no more than one-hundredth of a foot 

(0.01ô) higher than the lip of gutter. Pavement within 50 feet of a structure or approach slab shall conform 

to the smoothness tolerances specified in Section 51.1.03F(5), ñFinishing Roadway Surfacesò of the State 

Specifications.  

E. Connection to the existing surfacing shall match edge grinding or be feathered to conform to the 

requirements for smoothness. Private driveways are to have a minimum two (2ô) foot paveouts and are to 

be placed during mainline paving with the mainline paver screed extended. If necessary, additional 

rubberized asphalt concrete surfacing material shall be placed along the vertical edge of the surfacing at 

private drives, hand raked (if necessary), and compacted to form smooth tapered conforms.  

F. Bring the aggregate base material to a smooth, even grade at the correct distance below the top of the 

existing pavement surface so as to provide adequate space for the pavement. Trim existing pavement to a 

straight line to remove any pavement which has been damaged or which is broken and unsound to provide 

a smooth, sound edge for joining the new pavement.  

G. Compact the subgrade to a minimum of 95 percent of maximum dry density as determined by ASTM D 

1557 and accomplish supplementary compaction where required with approved mechanical vibrating or 

impact type tampers.  

H. Place the asphalt concrete on the prepared subgrade over the trench to a depth as shown on the Plans. 

Place asphalt concrete after the prime coat has set. Spread and level the asphalt concrete with hand tools 

or by use of a mechanical spreader, depending upon the area to be paved. Bring the asphalt concrete to the 

proper grade and compact by rolling or the use of hand tampers where rolling is impossible or impractical.  

I. Roll with power rollers capable of producing required compaction as specified by the agency having 

jurisdiction.  

J. The finished surface of the new compacted paving shall be flush with the existing surface and shall 

conform to the grade and crown of the adjacent pavement. Immediately after the new paving is 

compacted, all joints between new and original asphalt pavement shall be painted with hot asphalt or 

asphalt emulsion and be covered with dry paving sand before the asphalt solidifies.  

K. Surface Smoothness: The surface smoothness of the replaced pavement shall be such that when a 12-foot 

straightedge is laid across the patched area between the edges of the old surfacing and the surface of the 

new pavement, the new pavement shall not deviate from the straightedge more than 1/4 inch. If the 

finished surface of the asphalt concrete does not meet the specified surface tolerances, it shall be brought 

within tolerance by either (1) abrasive grinding or (2) removal and replacement.  

The method will be selected by the Engineer and the corrective work shall be at the Contractor's expense.  

L. If the finished surface does not meet the specified surface tolerances, it shall be brought within tolerance 

by either (1) abrasive grinding with slurry seal of the entire roadway width on the areas which have been 

ground (limits to be determined by the Engineer), (2) removal and replacement, or (3) placing an overlay 

of asphalt concrete. The method will be selected by the Engineer after meeting with the Contractor. The 

corrective work shall be at the Contractorôs expense.  



 02500  

PAVING 
- 4 - 

M. If abrasive grinding is used to bring the finished surface to specified surface tolerances, additional 

grinding shall be performed, as necessary, to extend the area ground in each lateral direction so that the 

lateral limits of grinding are at a constant offset from, and parallel to, the nearest lane line or pavement 

edge, and in each longitudinal direction so that the grinding begins and ends at lines normal to the 

pavement centerline within any ground area.  

N. All ground areas shall be neat rectangular areas of uniform surface appearance. Abrasive grinding shall 

use equipment with diamond cutting blades mounted on a self-propelled machine designed for grinding 

and textured concrete pavement.  The grinding residue may be legally disposed of outside the Cityôs right 

of way. 

3.07 PAVEMENT OVERLAY  

A. Once existing pavement is restored, the entire traffic lane or lanes containing the restored trench area shall 

be overlaid with 1 İò inches of new pavement where shown on the Plans.  

B. Paving shall be as specified in Section 39 of the State Standard Specification.  

C. Grind existing asphalt pavement at the locations and to the dimensions shown on the Plans and as directed 

by the City Representative.  

D. Pavement grinding shall conform to the provisions of Section 42, Groove and Grind Pavement, of the 

State Standard Specifications.  

E. A seal coat shall be applied to the surface of all newly paved surfaces and shall extend a minimum of 12 

inches beyond the new pavement to existing paved surfaces and seal the joint between existing and new 

pavement. Seal coat shall consist of a mixture of asphaltic emulsion and added water and be applied in 

accordance with the requirements of State Standard Specification Sections 37-2.  

3.08 TEMPORARY PAVEMENT DELINEATION  

A. Whenever the work causes obliteration of any or all of the pavement delineation, temporary or permanent 

delineation shall be in place prior to opening the traveled way to public traffic.  

3.09 THERMOPLASTIC STRIPES, PAVEMENT MARKINGS AND PAVEMENT MARKERS  

A. Replace existing stripes, pavement markings and pavement markers to conform to that which previously 

existed. Where portions of legends, markings or stripes are damaged due to construction, entire legend, 

marking or stripe shall be replaced.  

B. Application of thermoplastic pavement stripes and markings shall conform to Section 84-2 of the State 

Standard Specifications.  

C. Application of pavement markers shall conform to Section 85 of the State Standard Specifications.  

END OF SECTION 
 





 02701  

PRECAST CONCRETE STRUCTURE 
- 2 - 

be manufactured by a process that will produce a dense, homogeneous concrete of first quality. The 

sections shall be steel reinforced and have a minimum wall thickness of four (4) inches. Cement used in 

manufacturing the sections shall be Type II, Portland cement. Precast concrete sections, cones, and grade 

rings shall be joined using preformed joint sealant only. Use of mortar will not be allowed. All manholes 

precast concrete bases and formed channels with inverts to match the adjoining pipes. 

1. Manhole Manufacturers, or Approved Equal:  

(a) Teichert Precast, 8775 Jackson Road, Sacramento, California 

(b) Hanson Concrete Products, 7020 Tokay Avenue, Sacramento, California 

2. Joint-Seal Material, or Approved Equal:  

(a) Ram-Nek, K.T. Snyder Company  

B. Castings: Castings for manhole frames and covers and drainage inlet frames and grates shall conform to 

Section 05541.  

C. Concrete Sealant: Concrete sealant and waterproofing compound shall be applied to the outside of the 

manhole barrel prior to backfill. Sealant material shall be submitted to the Engineer for approval.  

2.05 DESIGN LOADS   

A. Vertical Loads: Design all precast manhole rings and accessories to support an AASHTO H-20 truck 

loading, in addition to soil weight above sloping ring sections and the dead load of all material supported 

above.  

B. Lateral Loads: Lateral loads shall be as dictated by the following formula: 

Operating:  95 x H (psf) triangular equivalent fluid pressure for dead load plus a live load surcharge 

from an H-20 truck, including impact.  

Seismic:  23 x H2 (psf) uniform pressure distribution.  

Where H = depth below finished grade.  

PART 3 - EXECUTION  

3.01 WORKMANSHIP  

A. General  

Manholes or special structures shall be sound watertight structures, constructed as shown on the Plans. 

The type of manhole and its location is to be as shown on the Plans. The manhole shall be constructed to 

the rim elevations shown on the Plans. In paved areas, the Contractor shall set the manhole rim after 

backfill and site settlement to match the proposed finish pavement elevation based on pavement 

restoration and pavement overlay requirements, if applicable.  

B. Manhole Protection  

Particular care must be taken to protect new and existing manholes from damage and to keep rock, dirt, or 

debris from entering the sewer.  

On new manholes, or manholes that have had frame and cover removed, a steel cover of adequate 

strength, close fitted and well secured, shall be installed over the manhole opening until the frame and 

cover are permanently installed.  

Ground or surface water shall not be allowed to drain into or be discharged to existing sewers. Temporary 

watertight plugs shall be installed by the Contractor to effect this protection.  

C. Sewer Pipeline Through Manholes  

The sewer shall be laid continuously through manholes on all straight runs except where manhole is used 

as a closure for field joint, at connections to existing pipe, and at angle points. When excavation is made 

below the pipe for manhole construction, care must be taken that the pipe spanning this area is firmly 

supported.  













 02800  

TRAFFIC CONTROL 
- 4 - 

D. The Contractor shall be responsible for the placement of advisory signs to inform the public of any street 

closure, detour, or construction affecting traffic at least 7 days before the closure or other significant 

disruption of normal traffic flow. The signs shall include a 24 hour emergency phone number. The 

emergency phone number shall be provided to the Fire Department, CalFire, Sheriffôs Department and 

Department of Public Works prior to start of work.  

E. Existing roadside signs conflicting with the construction area signs shall be either removed and reset upon 

completion of work or securely covered.  

3.06 ILLUMINATION  

Provide sufficient visibility on a 24-hour basis to approaching traffic whenever a street is closed partially or 

completely.  Ensure that sufficient illumination is provided by means of portable flashing beacons, floodlights, 

or other similar devices.  Mount all lighting fixtures in a manner which precludes glare to approaching traffic.  

Arrow boards or other traffic control devices and lighting which will operate outside of the normal working 

hours shall be battery-operated.  The use of gas-fired generators during nonworking hours will not be allowed.  

3.07 FLAGGING  

Flaggers shall be required:  

1. Where workers or equipment intermittently block a traffic lane.  

2. When trucks or equipment enter or leave the work site from an adjacent traffic lane.  

3. Where plans or permit allow the use of one lane for two directions of traffic.  

4. Wherever the safety of the public and/or workers, determine there is a need.  

Flagging shall be carried out in accordance with Caltrans Standard Specifications. All flagging costs shall be 

considered as included in pay items for traffic control.  

3.08 PEDESTRIAN SAFETY The Contractor shall maintain safe and adequate pedestrian zones and public 

transportation stops as well as provide pedestrian crossings at intervals not to exceed 300 feet within the work 

zone.  

When the construction area crosses a crosswalk, the crosswalk shall be barricaded and sign ñNo Ped Crossing 

Use Crosswalkò posted.  

3.09 TRAFFIC HANDLING AT SPECIFIC LOCATIONS The Contractor shall maintain the full visibility and 

function of all school safety signing and striping within the work area.  Additional temporary safety striping 

and signage shall be installed if deemed necessary by the agency having jurisdiction.  

Vehicular and pedestrian ramps  

The Contractor shall provide and maintain ramps as shown on plans.  

END OF SECTION 
 

 



 02930  

SITE RESTORATION 
- 1 - 

 02930 

 

SITE RESTORATION 

 

PART 1 - GENERAL  

1.01 GENERAL  

A. This section specifies the restoration of features and includes restoration of surface features damaged 

during the course of execution of this contract to be restored as part of this work. The work may include 

such repairs as manhole appurtenances, pavement, sidewalk, curb and gutters, fencing, landscape, 

vegetation, grass, and plants.  

B. Unless otherwise specified, all public and private property impacted by construction shall be restored to 

original condition or better.  

C. Restrict operations to cause the least amount of damage to surrounding property and do not damage off-

site features or adjacent vegetation.  

D. The Contractor shall be held responsible for any damage to existing structures, features, materials, or 

equipment due to the work in this contract, and the Contractor shall repair or replace any damaged 

structures, features, materials or equipment to the satisfaction of the property owner.  

E. Construction Manager shall be notified immediately if accidental damage occurs. Contractor shall insure 

that adjacent roads are maintained and clear of soil and/or other debris at all times during the construction 

period. Any changes or modifications to this plan shall receive prior approval from the Construction 

Manager.  

F. Contractor shall remove or obliterate all USA markings at project completion.  

1.02 SUBMITTALS  

A. The Contractor shall provide the following submittals in accordance with Section 01300.  

B. The Contractor shall, at minimum, submit the following:  

1. Methods, materials, and equipment to be used at each site requiring restoration.  

PART 2 - NOT USED  

PART 3 - EXECUTION  

3.01 TRENCHING EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL  

A. Trench safety requirements are specified in Section 02160.  

3.02 PAVEMENT RESTORATION  

A. Placement of aggregate base and asphalt concrete shall be in accordance with these specifications and 

Caltrans specifications.  

3.03 POST-CONSTRUCTION PAVEMENT INSPECTION  

A. Restoration of pavement, curb, gutter, and sidewalks shall be to the satisfaction of the Construction 

Manager.  

3.04 FENCES  

A. All existing fences affected by the work shall be maintained by the Contractor until completion of the 

work. Fences which interfere with construction operations shall be relocated or dismantled for the period 

of the construction at that particular property and then shall be replaced after demobilization of 

equipment.  

3.05 TREES AND PLANTS  



 02930  

SITE RESTORATION 
- 2 - 

A. All trees and plants not removed shall be protected against injury from the construction operations. Prune, 

thin out and shape trees and shrubs in accordance with standard horticultural practice. Do no pruning prior 

to approval by the Construction Manager.  

B. Tree roots greater than 3-inch in diameter shall be inspected by an arborist prior to cutting to ensures 

stability and health of tree.  

3.06 CURB, GUTTER AND SIDEWALK  

A. Restoration per Placer County Land Development Manual and as indicated on Drawings.  

3.07 OTHER SITE FEATURES  

A. All other site features either damaged or destroyed during the execution of this contract shall be repaired 

or replaced to the satisfaction of the Construction Manager to the installation specifications of the 

manufacturer of the approved replacement item.  

3.08 WARRANTY  

A. Contractor shall warrant for a period of one (1) year from the date of substantial completion of the project 

that the turf and plant materials used in the public right-of-way, Caltrans right-of-way, schools fields, 

open spaces, or easements are in good, healthy, and flourishing condition. During the one year warranty 

period, the Contractor shall replace any turf or plant materials, that are defective, have died, or failed to 

thrive.  

END OF SECTION 
 







 03200  

CONCRETE REINFORCEMENT 
- 3 - 

In slabs, beams, girders and walls, reinforcing steel shall not be spliced in areas of maximum stress. Splices of 

adjacent bars shall be staggered at least one splice length, unless otherwise specified. Splices in welded wire 

fabric shall be at least 1-1/2 meshes wide.  

3.04 CLEANING  

Reinforcing steel shall be cleaned of mill rust scale, dried concrete, or other coatings that may reduce bond. 

Reinforcement reduced in section is not acceptable. When concrete placement is delayed, reinforcement shall 

be cleaned by sandblasting if directed by the Construction Manager.  

3.05 REPAIR OF EPOXY COATING  

Epoxy coating damage need not be repaired in cases where the damaged area is 0.1 square inch or smaller. All 

damaged areas larger than 0.1 square inch shall be repaired in conformance with ASTM A775.  

END OF SECTION 
 





 03300  

CAST-IN-PLACE CONCRETE 
- 2 - 

ASTM C309 Standard Specification for Liquid Membrane-Forming Compounds for Curing 

Concrete   

ASTM C143 Standard Test Method for Slump of Hydraulic-Cement Concrete   

ASTM C467 Standard Classification of Mullite Refractories   

ASTM C494 Standard Specification for Chemical Admixtures for Concrete   

ASTM CD39 (should 

be C39) 

Standard Test Method for Compressive Strength of Cylindrical Concrete 

Specimens   

ASTM E329 Standard Specification for Agencies Engaged in Construction Inspection and/or 

Testing   

 

1.03 SUBMITTALS  

Contractor shall submit concrete, mix designs, recent test data for the submitted mixes, and test data for mix 

components confirming that the mixes meet the requirements of this section.  

Reports of concrete mix designs shall be provided in accordance with Section 01300. Requirements for the 

reports are specified in paragraph 03300-2.02 D.  

Submittal data on concrete accessories specified herein that the Contractor intends to install in the work.  

PART 2 - PRODUCTS  

2.01 MATERIALS  

A. CEMENT:  

Portland cement shall be ASTM C150, Type II or Type V, low alkali, containing less than 0.60 percent 

alkalies.  

B. AGGREGATES: GENERAL: Fine and coarse aggregates shall conform to ASTM C33. Fine and coarse 

aggregates shall be tested in accordance with ASTM C136. Aggregates shall be nonreactive and shall be 

washed before use.  

When sources of aggregates are changed, test reports shall be provided for the new material. The tests 

specified shall be performed prior to commencing concrete work.  

FINE AGGREGATE: Fine aggregate shall be hard, dense, durable particles of either sand or crushed 

stone regularly graded from coarse to fine. Gradation shall conform to ASTM C33.  

COARSE AGGREGATE: Coarse aggregate shall be hard, dense and durable gravel or crushed rock free 

from injurious amounts of soft and friable particles, alkali, organic matter and other deleterious 

substances. Gradation of each coarse aggregate size specified in paragraph 03300-2.02 A shall conform to 

ASTM C33­Table 2.  

C. ADMIXTURES:  

GENERAL: Admixtures shall be compatible with the concrete. Calcium chloride or admixtures 

containing calcium chloride are not acceptable. Admixtures shall be used in accordance with the 

manufacturer's recommendations and shall be added separately to the concrete mix.  

WATER REDUCING RETARDER: Water reducing retarder shall be ASTM C494, Type D, and shall be 

Master Builders, Pozzolith 300-R; Sika Chemical Corp., Plastiment; or equal.  

AIR ENTRAINING AGENT: Air entraining agent shall be Master Builders, MB-AE10; W. R. Grace and 

Co., DaraVair; or equal. The air entraining agent added shall produce, in accordance with ASTM C260, 

an entrained air content specified in paragraph 03300-2.02 A for each class of concrete.  

D. WATER:  



 03300  

CAST-IN-PLACE CONCRETE 
- 3 - 

Water for washing aggregate, for mixing and for curing shall be free from oil and deleterious amounts of 

acids, alkalies, and organic materials.  

2.02 CONCRETE CHARACTERISTICS  

A. Mix Proportioning:  Concrete shall be normal weight concrete composed of specified cement, admixtures, 

aggregates and water proportioned and mixed to produce a workable, strong, dense, and impermeable 

concrete.  

B. Concrete shall be provided in accordance with the following:  

Concrete 

class 

ASTM 

coarse 

aggregate 

size 

Min. 

cement 

content, 

sacks/cu yd 

concrete 

Maximum 

water/ 

cement ratio 

by weight 

Pozzolan percent 

by weight of 

portland cement 

Air/ 

Entraining 

Maximum 

slump in 

inches 

Minimuma 

28-day 

compressive 

strength, psi 

A 467 6 0.45 

(if allowed by the 

Engineer) 18-20 

(if allowed by 

the Engineer) 3 to 4 4000 

C 67 4 0.45 

(if allowed by the 

Engineer) 18-20 

(if allowed by 

the Engineer) 4 to 8 2500 

Eb 467 3.25 0.55 0 No 6 2000 

Notes for table:  
(a) Compressive strength shall be determined at the end of 28 days based on test cylinders made and tested in 

accordance with ASTM C39.  

(b) Concrete encasement for electrical conduit shall contain 3 pounds of red oxide per sack of cement.  

C. Use:  Concrete shall be provided by class for the corresponding use listed as follows:  

Type of use Class of concrete 

Structural Concrete A 

Mass Concrete C 

Pipe bedding and encasement, electrical conduit encasement 

(duct banks) and concrete fill E 

 

D. Control: Before beginning concrete work, the Contractor shall determine the proper proportions of 

materials for class of concrete A and C. Methods for selecting and adjusting proportions of the ingredients 

shall be in accordance with ACI 211.1. Reports from the concrete supplier of each mix design shall state 

whether the items reported comply with the specifications and shall show (1) the expected strength, (2) 

corresponding slump, (3) expected drying shrinkage, (4) weights and test results of the ingredients on the 

basis of field experience and/or trial mixtures in accordance with ACI 318, Chapter 5 with at least 30 

tests, and (5) other physical properties necessary to check each mix design. Copies of the reports shall be 

submitted in accordance with paragraph 03300-1.03.  

2.03 WATERSTOPS  

Waterstops in construction joints shall be The Burke Company's Vinylock Type RB316-6; Water Seals, Inc., 

6-inch Flex-Bulb; or equal. Waterstops in expansion joints shall be The Burke Company's Vinylock Type 

RB38-9; Water Seals, Inc., 9-inch heavy-duty Flex-Bulb; or equal.  

2.04 SEALANTS AND JOINT FILLERS (NOT USED)  

2.05 BONDING COMPOUNDS  

Epoxy resin bonding compounds shall be used for wet areas and shall be Master Builders Technologies, 

Concresive series as applicable; Sika Chemical Corporation, Sikadur 35, Hi-Mod LV, Sikadur 32, Hi-Mod, or 

Sikadur 31, Hi-Mod Gel as applicable; Burke Company 881 LPL Epoxy; or equal.  



 03300  

CAST-IN-PLACE CONCRETE 
- 4 - 

Nonepoxy bonding compounds shall be used for dry areas and shall be Burke Company, Acrylic Bondcrete; 

Imperial Chemical Industrial, Inc., Thoro System Products, Acryl 60; Thorobond; or equal. Bonding 

compounds shall be applied in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions.  

2.06 RETARDANT  

Retardant for exposing aggregates for nonformed surfaces in construction joints shall be Sika Rugasol-S, Horn 

Aggretex-H, Burke Company True Etch Surface Retarder, or equal. Retardant shall be applied in accordance 

with manufacturer's instructions sufficient to assure a minimum penetration of 1/8 inch.  

2.07 CURING AND SEALING COMPOUNDS  

Curing and sealing compound shall be Master Builders, Masterseal; A. C. Horn Inc., Horn Clearseal EM180; 

Burke Company Spartan-Cote WB Cure Seal Hardner; or equal; conforming to ASTM C309. Curing 

compounds shall be clear and shall be applied in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions, except as 

otherwise specified.  

2.08 PRODUCT DATA  

The following product data shall be provided in accordance with Section 01300.  

2.09 MANUFACTURER'S DATA:  

A. Copies of manufacturer's data shall be provided for the following:  

1. Waterstops  

2. Retardants  

3. Curing compounds  

4. Bonding compounds  

5. Admixtures  

B. TEST REPORTS:  

Three copies of reports from the concrete supplier shall be provided certifying that all concrete materials 

comply with the specifications and all test requirements.  

C. READY-MIXED CONCRETE TRUCK DELIVERY TICKETS:  

Each load of ready-mixed concrete delivered to the job site shall be accompanied by a delivery ticket 

showing the information listed in ASTM C94, Section 16.  

PART 3 - EXECUTION  

3.01 GENERAL  

Construction of cast-in-place concrete shall be in accordance with the pertinent recommendations contained in 

ACI Manual of Concrete Practice of 300 Group.  

3.02 CONCRETE  

Concrete shall be truck-mixed, ready-mixed concrete conforming to the applicable portions of ASTM C94. 

Materials shall be proportioned by weighing. The Contractor shall be responsible for producing concrete of the 

specified characteristics.  

Concrete shall be delivered to the site of work, and discharge shall be completed within 1-1/2 hours after 

introduction of the water to the mixture.  

3.03 CONVEYING AND PLACING CONCRETE  

A. CONVEYING CONCRETE:  

Concrete shall be conveyed from the mixer to the forms in accordance with ACI 301, Chapter 8. Concrete 

which has segregated in conveying shall be removed from the site of the work.  

B. PLACING CONCRETE:  









 03300  

CAST-IN-PLACE CONCRETE 
- 8 - 

Standard cylinders shall represent the concrete placed in the forms. One set of three standard 

cylinders shall be cast for each 50 cubic yards, or fraction thereof, for concrete placed in structures, 

building slabs and footings, but at least three cylinders shall be taken from any one batch. Casting, 

handling and curing of cylinders shall be in accordance with ASTM C31. Additional cylinders shall 

be provided when an error in batching is suspected. For the first 24 hours after casting, the cylinders 

shall be kept moist in a storage box constructed and located so that its interior air temperature will be 

between 60 and 80 degrees F. At the end of 24 hours, the cylinders shall be transported to the testing 

laboratory.  

Testing of specimens for compressive strength shall be in accordance with ASTM C39. Tests shall be 

made at 7 and 28 days from time of casting. One test cylinder from each group of three shall be tested 

at the end of 7 days, and two shall be tested at the end of 28 days. Each strength test result shall be 

the average of the strengths of two test cylinders at 28 days, except that if one cylinder in a set of two 

shows evidence of low strength due to improper sampling, casting, handling or curing, the result of 

the remaining one cylinder shall be used.  

The average of any three consecutive 28-day strength test results of the cylinders representing each 

class of concrete shall be equal to or greater than the specified strength and not more than 10 percent 

of the strength test results shall have values less than the specified 28-day strength for the total job 

concrete. No individual strength test results shall be less than the specified strength by more than 500 

pounds per square inch.  

Certified reports of the test results shall be provided directly to the Construction Manager. Test 

reports shall include sufficient information to identify the mix used, the stationing or location of the 

concrete placement, and the quantity placed. Slump and ambient temperature shall be noted.  

If the 28-day test results fall below the specified compressive strength for the class of concrete 

required for any portion of the work, adjustment in the proportions, water content, or both, shall be 

made as necessary at the Contractor's expense. Changes and adjustments shall be reported in writing 

to the Construction Manager.  

If compressive test results indicate concrete in place may not meet structural requirements, tests shall 

be made to determine if the structure or portion thereof is structurally sound. Tests may include, but 

not be limited to, cores in accordance with ASTM C42 and any other analyses or load tests 

acceptable to the Construction Manager. Costs of such tests shall be borne by the Contractor.  

2. TESTS FOR CONSISTENCY OF CONCRETE: The slump shall be as specified when measured in 

accordance with ASTM C143. Samples for slump determination shall be taken from the concrete 

during placing. Slump tests shall be performed whenever standard cylinders are cast.  

D. FINAL LABORATORY REPORT:  

A final report, prepared by the testing laboratory, shall be provided at the completion of all concreting. 

This report shall summarize the findings concerning concrete used in the project and provide totals of 

concrete used by class and structure.  

3.15 CLEANUP  

Upon completion of the work and prior to final inspection, the Contractor shall clean all concrete surfaces, 

except outside sidewalks or paved areas and those having curing and sealing compound.  

END OF SECTION 
 









































































 

APPENDIX T-B 

PEDESTRIAN BARRIER DETAIL 

  













City of Colfax

Project Budget Sheet
CIP#: 12-01.02 MPFP#(s):

Last Updated: March 2014 Original Approval: July 2013
Project Owner: Public Works Revised: February 2015

Project Manager: Jim Fletter Project Resource: Ponticello Enterprises

Description:

Authority:

Budget:
Item Amount Item Amount

Project Management 13,128$       Permits/NEPA 15,550$             
Design/Bidding 62,000$       Construction 223,000$           

UP Design/Field Prep 52,990$       UP Signal Construction 100,000$           

CM, Testing, Insp. 50,000$       Contingency 20% 20,000$             

Project Total: 536,668$ 

Financing Schedule: Project Start: 2012 Project Completion: 2015

Phases: Final Design, Bid, and Construction
Fund Code:

Name: RSTP PTMISEA PCTPA Ped RSTP-Exchange

FY 12/13: 20,379$         20,379$               

FY 13/14 42,429$         42,429$               

FY 14/15 6,000$              57,192$         14,893$                    78,085$               
FY 15/16 300,000$       61,107$            34,668$                   395,775$            

Fund Totals: 300,000$       67,107$            120,000$       49,561$                    -$                     -$                                 536,668$             

Ratios: 55.9% 12.5% 22.4% 9.2% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

Recommended for Approval Alan Mitchell, City Engineer Feb-15

Finance Department Approval
Laurie Van Groningen, Finance (date)

City Manager Approval
Mark Miller, City Manager (date)

UPRR Ped Xing and Bike Path Improvements

Grind and place AC pavement on Grass Valley from east of the Main Street Intersection to S. Auburn Street.  Construction 
pedestrian xing across railroad tracks and bike pathway over the entire Grass Valley Street.  Work also includes ADA 
improvements and relocation of UPRR Signals.

The City has general authority to maintain the existing city roadway infra-structure.  Caltrans, California PUC, and Union 
Pacific Railroad have authorized the City to complete work within and over the railroad right-of-way.


	00A 2-25-15 Agenda
	02A 150211 Minutes
	02B Cash Summary Report January 2015
	2015-07 Staff Report Cash Summary Jan 2015
	Cash Summary Data

	02C 150211 Proclamation David Breninger
	02D Update on Abatements
	150225 Staff Report Abatement Update
	150217 Abatement Letter Hotel
	150219 Dingus McGees Abatement Letter

	05A Contract Services Update
	05B 44 Gearhart Demolition Contract
	150225 Staff Report 44 Gearhart Contract and Update
	Cunningham Excavating Bid
	Lorang Brothers
	Hanson Bros Enterprises Bid

	05C Grass Valley St Construction Plans and Specs
	Staff Rpt ConstAuth 2-25-15
	Road Rehab and RR Ped Xing Design 1-22-15
	UPRR Draft Bid Document
	PBS GV  2-25-15
	PBS  PedXing 2-25-15




